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China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (stock code: 1586.HK), listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 2016, is an internationally
recognized leading inspection and testing Company. The Company provides
24/7 comprehensive inspection, testing, technical, and consulting services to
global industry leaders in four key areas: commodity services, clean energy,
environmental protection and climate change. It focuses on addressing
climate change and delivering integrated solutions for green, low-carbon,
and sustainable development, actively empowering global industry leaders
to achieve green and low-carbon transition. The Company continues to
strengthen its global network, expanding its service coverage from major
trade ports and hub cities in the Asia-Pacific region to emerging markets in
South America and Africa. With 78 branches and professional laboratories
worldwide and a global workforce of 3,374, the Company leverages its
extensive global service network and professionals to significantly enhance its
ability to serve leading global clients. Details of the Company’s services and
business scope are as follows:

Commodity services: With 78 service outlets and 18 categories of
professional qualification certifications worldwide, the Company provides
customers with services for over 50 types of commodities and natural
resources. We provide customers with the following energy and commodity
services: (1) Quality testing services: In-house laboratory testing according
to international, national, and regional industry standards; (2) Weight
survey services: Weighing services for vessel water gauges, flow meters,
weighbridges, and cabin/shore tank capacities, according to international,
national, and regional industry standards such as ISO/API/ASTM/GB/SH; (3)
Witnessing supervision and joint inspection services: participate in and witness
the inspection process of other third party inspection agencies on behalf of
our clients, or participate in the customs inspection of imported goods by
way of witnessing/joint-inspection to protect the interests of our clients; (4)
Other technical services: Supervision of assembly and disassembly, arbitral
inspection, inventory surveys, on-site witnessing, and cleanliness inspections.
The scope of services covers all energy and commodity categories, including
but not limited to coal, crude oil, petroleum products, petrochemicals, LPG/
LNG, biofuels, raw ores, non-ferrous concentrates, metals and alloys, industrial
minerals, agricultural products, and more. By thoroughly implementing the
long-term vision of sustainable development and upholding the fundamental
principles of fairness and impartiality, we continues to expand its professional
service capacity in commodity services to facilitate a better flow of global
trade.

Clean Energy: We provide services in new energy sectors, focusing on
wind power, solar power generation, and other clean energy testing. Our
services include quality inspection and re-inspection of wind power systems,
photovoltaic manufacturing supervision, hoisting supervision, wind turbine
inspections, quality assurance testing, and operation and maintenance. We
also conduct data collection, analysis, and regular operation and maintenance
for wind power and photovoltaic systems to enhance power generation
stability.
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Environmental protection: Our environmental protection services are
divided into environmental protection consulting and environmental
monitoring. Environmental protection consulting services include:
environmental housekeeping, environmental impact assessment, soil pollution
investigation and risk assessment, environmental acceptance upon completion
of construction projects as well as management and application for sewage
discharge permits. Environmental monitoring services cover monitoring of
water, wastewater, ambient air, exhaust gas, indoor air, soil, groundwater,
solid waste, sediment, and noise. Our services support industrial enterprises in
major industrial parks, including rubber, metal casting, recycling, automobile
manufacturing, and more, government-commissioned inspections of the
natural environment, soil pollution assessments commissioned by the Land
Resources Allocation Department, and acceptance of indoor air quality
upon completion of residential and commercial buildings. The Company
enhances its environmental protection capabilities through Leakage Detection
and Repair ("LDAR") services, screening and precisely locating suspected
pipeline leaks. By integrating pipeline data platforms, risk identification and
assessment systems, and detection and repair processes, we offer diversified,
comprehensive services. These efforts assist enterprises in mitigating pipeline
safety risks, reducing accident rates, and strengthening environmental
protection services. LDAR services are provided to numerous industrial
enterprises, including those in petroleum and petrochemicals, chemical
processing (including coal), resin production, natural gas, pharmaceuticals,
and other industries. Playing a major role in low-carbon emission reduction,
LDAR services are indispensable for achieving green low-carbon by providing
accurate carbon emission reduction data.

Climate Change: We provide clients with comprehensive solutions,
primarily including carbon peak and neutrality advisory services, carbon asset
development and trading services, ESG technical consulting, and low-carbon
information-based integrated solutions. The detailed services include: (1)
Carbon peak and neutrality advisory services: carbon emission checks and
evaluations, product carbon footprint assessments, carbon emission reduction
target setting and roadmap development, carbon emission management
indexing and system development, low-carbon supply chain management,
emission reduction and carbon neutrality planning, carbon neutrality project
consulting, green manufacturing technical services, and energy management
and energy-saving diagnostic services. (2) Carbon asset development and
trading services: carbon asset evaluation and due diligence, carbon asset
development and management, carbon asset value-added management, and
carbon asset trading. (3) ESG technical consulting: ESG report preparation,
ESG strategy formulation and system development, ESG management
enhancement and rating improvement, and ESG due diligence. (4) Low-carbon
information-based integrated solutions: customized low-carbon management
information systems, Software-as-a-Service (Saa$S) carbon neutrality
management platforms, and SaaS carbon asset management platforms. The
Company serves domestic and international clients engaged in climate change
and sustainable development projects across various industries, including but
not limited to power generation, petrochemicals, chemicals, iron and steel,
nonferrous metals, building materials, and papermaking.
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The Company considers that its senior management are the Directors whose ~ANARRAESHREEBAEZS HBEEFHN T -
biographies are set out below.

The Board currently consists of eight Directors, comprising four executve ZEZ2BRHBN\LESMHAK  BENLHNITES -
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive =~ — & IFHITEBER =LBYIFNITESE - TXRET
Directors. The following table sets forth information regarding the Directors. EREENER -

Date of Appointment

Name Age Position as Director

®E Fie B EZEESHAEH
Executive Directors

HTES

Mr. LI Xiangli 62 Chairman, CEO and executive Director 13 January 2016
FmF L IR CITHRAHFNTES 20161 A13H
Ms. ZHANG Ailying 61 Vice president and executive Director 13 January 2016
RERLL BB RNTES 20164 1 A 13H
Mr. LIU Yi 60 Vice president and executive Director 13 January 2016
2t BIRERATES 201641 A 13 H
Mr. YANG Rongbing 44 Vice chairman and executive Director 18 June 2016

s 18 o i RIERFHITES 201656 18 H
Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. HAO Yilei 53 Non-executive Director 23 December 2021
RIEE S E EITES 2021812 A23H
Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. WANG Zichen 58 Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2016
ITHERE BIIFRITES 20166 A 18 H
Mr. ZHAO Hong 64 Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2016
AT S A BIERITESF 201656 A 18 H
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung 60 Independent non-executive Director 23 July 2018

BRE Lt

BIUFRITES

2024 FEHRE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Xiangli, aged 62, is the chairman, CEO and an executive Director. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Li is the spouse of
Ms. ZHANG Aiying. He is primarily responsible for the strategic planning and
overall management of our Group. Mr. Li joined the Group in April 2009 and
was appointed as executive Director on 13 January 2016. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Li has approximately 35 years of experience in the energy testing and
inspection field. Prior to joining the Group, from October 2008 to April 2009,
Mr. Li served as a project manager of China Certification & Inspection Group
Co., Ltd. (P EI#% 5 R E (£ B) AR A A)), a state-owned testing company
that serves different industries, and was responsible for the establishment of
the platform for mineral inspection. From January 1989 to September 2008,
he worked at the coal inspection technology center of Qinhuangdao Entry-
Exit Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (£ 8 £ AEHBRHZH) and was
promoted to a deputy director in April 2004, responsible for coal testing and
inspection.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’'s degree in chemistry from Hebei Normal College
(R4t BT #3E2B% ) in the PRC in July 1985, and a master’s degree in materials
science from Yanshan University (#& L/ KX £) in the PRC in December 1999,
He obtained the qualification as a senior engineer in November 2001 granted
by State Administration for Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC (
KEARRBIRER).

Mr. Li is the sole director and sole shareholder of Leon Cornerstone
Investment Holding Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company, as
disclosed in the “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Shares” section of
the Directors’ Report. In addition, Mr. Li, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi
entered into an acting-in-concert deed on 31 January 2016. Pursuant to the
deed, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi shall support Mr. Li's decisions on
material matters in relation to the operation and management of the Group
by exercising their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and
boards of the members of the Group in accordance with the decisions of Mr.
Li. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi, as persons
acting in concert, are deemed to be interested in the Shares which are
interested by each other. As disclosed in the “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in the Shares” section of the Directors’ Report, by virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Li had interests in 362,011,361 Shares (approximately 61.00% of the
issued share capital of our Company as at the date of this Report).

Ms. ZHANG Aiying, aged 61, is a vice president of the Company and an
executive Director. She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee. Ms.
Zhang is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiangli. She is primarily responsible for overall
management of the procurement and human resources of the Group. Ms.
Zhang was appointed as executive Director on 13 January 2016. She is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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Ms. Zhang has over 22 years of experience in energy field. Prior to joining our
Group, from May 1995 to February 2005. Ms. Zhang served as a manager of
examination department of Shanxi Coal Import & Export Group Qinhuangdao
Branch (LIFEE R L O EBZR 2S5 R F]), a company primarily engaged
in coal trading, and was responsible for coal testing. From August 1988 to
May 1995, she was a teacher at No. 11 High School of Qinhuangdao (R 2 &
& +—H ), and was responsible for teaching chemistry.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hebei Normal
College (AT 3L AM &3 2P ) in the PRC in July 1988.

Ms. Zhang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Swan Stone Investment
Holding Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed in the
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Shares” section of the Directors’
Report. In addition, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. Zhang and Mr. LIU Yi entered into an
acting-in-concert deed on 31 January 2016. Pursuant to the deed, Ms. Zhang
and Mr. LIU Yi shall support Mr. LI Xiangli’s decisions on material matters in
relation to the operation and management of the Group by exercising their
voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and boards of the members
of the Group in accordance with the decisions of Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. Zhang and Mr. LIU Yi , as persons acting in
concert, are deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by
each other. As disclosed in the “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
the Shares” section of the Directors’ Report, by virtue of the SFO, Ms. Zhang
had interests in 362,011,361 Shares (approximately 61.00% of the issued
share capital of our Company as at the date of this Report).

Mr. LIU Yi, aged 60, is a vice president of the Company and an executive
Director. He is primarily responsible for overall management of sales, quality
control and research. Mr. Liu joined the Group in February 2010 as deputy
general manager of Leon Inspection Group Co., Ltd. (a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company), and was appointed as executive Director on 13
January 2016. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Liu has approximately 36 years of experience in the energy testing and
inspection field. Prior to joining the Group, from September 1988 to January
2010, Mr. Liu worked with Qinhuangdao Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine
Bureau (R 25 AR B ZH) and was promoted to the director of the
coal inspection technology center in September 2003, responsible for coal
inspection. From July 1987 to September 1988, he was a teacher at Hebei
Building Materials Vocational and Technical College (A4t 324 Bk 2 i385,
and was responsible for teaching analytical chemistry.

Mr. Liu obtained a master’'s degree in materials engineering from Yanshan
University (3% L KX 2) in the PRC in November 2006. He obtained the
qualification as a senior engineer in June 1998 granted by the former State
General Administration of Import and Export Commodity Inspection (BIZ
HARERRRER).
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Mr. Liu is the sole director and sole shareholder of Hawk Flying Investment
Holding Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed in the
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Shares” section of the Directors’
Report. In addition, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. Liu entered
into an acting-in-concert deed on 31 January 2016. Pursuant to the deed, Mr.
Liu and Ms. ZHANG Aiying shall support Mr. LI Xiangli's decisions on material
matters in relation to the operation and management of the Group by
exercising their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and boards
of the members of the Group in accordance with the decisions of Mr. LI
Xiangli. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. Liu, as
persons acting in concert, are deemed to be interested in the Shares which are
interested by each other. As disclosed in the “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in the Shares” section of the Directors’ Report, by virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Liu had interests in 362,011,361 Shares (approximately 61.00% of the
issued share capital of our Company as at the date of this Report).

Mr. YANG Rongbing, aged 44, is a vice chairman and an executive Director.
Mr. Yang was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 18 June
2016 and was mainly responsible for providing independent opinion to the
Board. He was re-designated as executive Director and the vice chairman of
the Board on 23 July 2018 and is mainly responsible for corporate strategies,
capital planning, internal control and compliance, overseas business
management of the Group. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Yang holds a professional title of senior accountant, and holds a master
degree in management from Central University of Finance and Economics and
a master degree in science from the City University of Hong Kong. He was
a distinguished professor of Capital University of Economics and Business.
He has served on the capital markets in both Mainland China and Hong
Kong for a long period of time, and is engaged in theoretical research and
practical innovation work on corporate governance. Mr. Yang previously
served as an executive director and the chief executive officer of SMI Holdings
Group Limited (2 =R EE B R 2 @) (“SMI Holdings”), a company
once listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 0198).
Before joining SMI Holdings in 2010, Mr. Yang served in various financial and
investment roles in State-owned enterprises and institutions such as Beijing
Energy Holding Co., Ltd (3t 3R 82 JR & B B R & £ 2 7l), Foreign Economic
Cooperation Office of the Ministry of Environmental Protection (B %K 3% 3%
REBEINE EEL X A A ) and Center for Development of Trade and
Control of Investment in Europe (BUM 2R B E IR L)),
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. HAO Yilei, aged 53, is the non-executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for providing business guidance in relation to the industry to the
Group. Mr. Hao was appointed as the non-executive Director on 23 December
2021.

Mr. Hao has over 30 years of experience in the inspection-related industry
and is currently General Manager of China Inspection and Certification
Group Malaysia. Mr. Hao joined Hong Kong China Inspection Company
Limited (CIC) in 2017 as the general manager of the renewable resources
inspection department. CIC is a company primarily engaged in inspection
and certification service and is a substantial shareholder of the Company,
indirectly holding more than 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
through its subsidiary. In December 2023, Mr. Hao has been transferred to
the General Manager of China Inspection and Certification Group Malaysia.
Prior to joining CIC, Mr. Hao was responsible for managing and inspecting
the issuance of certificates of origin in China at the Division of the Inspection
and Certification Department (#7528 7F 7)) of the former China Commodity
Inspection Bureau (Bl 5K # O & @1 8 &) from 1995 to 1998. He was
responsible for the management of inspection and supervision of the imports
and exports of light industrial products such as textile raw materials, textile
products and toys at the Inspection and Supervision Department (25 E5& =])
of the former State Administration for Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine
Bureau (Bl H A5 %5 1% 5) from 1998 to 2001. From 2001 to 2004,
he was in charge of the handling of China’s technical barriers to trade in the
Department of International Cooperation (WTO Office (BB & #E & (WTO ##
AZ)) of the former General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection
and Quarantine of the People’s Republic of China (Bl & #%42/3) (AQSIQ).
From 2004 to 2012, he was the deputy director and director of Chemical
and Mineral Products Inspection and Supervision Division of the Inspection
and Supervision Department (#5255 7]) of the former AQSIQ, and was in
charge of the management of inspection and supervision of China’s import
and export of commodities, chemicals and renewable resources. From 2012 to
2017, Mr. Hao served as the director of the Mechanical and Electrical Products
Office of the Inspection and Supervision Department (1% 5 25 & &) # & & &
%5 E ) in the former AQSIQ and was responsible for the inspection and
supervision of the import and export of mechanical and electrical products in
the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Hao obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree in International Trade,
Commodity Inspection and Survey from the School of Business Administration
of the University of International Business and Economics in 1995.
Subsequently, he obtained a degree in Master of Laws from the School of
Law at the same university in 2002.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Zichen, aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for providing independent advice and
judgment to the Board. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wang was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2016.

Since September 2007, Mr. Wang has been working with China Bohai Bank
Co., Ltd (B /BIR1TAR 7 B BR A F)) and is currently the general manager of
the corporate banking department of Tianjin Branch of China Bohai Bank Co.,
Ltd (B IRTTIRD AR A FIRED1T), responsible for the management and
operation of the corporate banking.

Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in software engineering from Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (16 A ZEFT K K E) in the PRC in
July 2010. He obtained the qualification as a certified cost engineer (FEffi&
& T#2A0) granted by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of the PRC (FREE A R HE B (EFE A 4572 2R E6) in 2001. He also obtained
the qualification as a senior engineer granted by China State Construction
Engineering Corporation (Bl &£ T #2482 7)) in December 2008.

Mr. ZHAO Hong, aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Zhao is primarily responsible for providing independent advice and
judgment to the Board. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Zhao was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 18 June 2016.

Mr. Zhao was an independent director of Zhejiang Kaier New Materials Co.,
Ltd. (Stock code: 300234), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
in the PRC, and ceased to be in that position since 25 July 2022 upon expiry
of term.

Mr. Zhao has extensive experience in thermal engineering. Since March 1991,
Mr. Zhao has been serving as a teacher in College of Energy Engineering
of Zhejiang University and has been responsible for teaching and scientific
research.

Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in thermal energy from Zhejiang
University in the PRC in July 1984, and a master’s degree in engineering from
Zhejiang University in the PRC in January 1991. He obtained the qualification
as a professor in December 2001 granted by Personnel Department of
Zhejiang Province GHT T & A EE2).
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Mr. LIU Hoi Keung, aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Liu is primarily responsible for providing independent opinion and judgement
to the Board. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Liu was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 23 July 2018.

Mr. Liu has over 35 years of experience in the field of auditing, accounting,
finance, management and secretarial work. Mr. Liu received his Master of
Science degree from the University of Hong Kong in 2002. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Liu was appointed as the company secretary of S&P International Holding
Limited (Stock Code: 1695) with effect from 31 December 2023. He previously
served as director and senior management positions with a number of public
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including being a director and joint
chief executive officer of PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (Stock code:
2078); an executive director and the chief financial officer of Genvon Group
Limited (now known as Beijing Health (Holdings) Limited, Stock code: 2389);
a director, the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of Tonic
Industries Holdings Limited (now known as China Merchants Land Limited,
Stock code: 0978); the company secretary of Tungtex (Holdings) Company
Limited (Stock code: 518) and an executive director and the company
secretary, and the chairman and chief executive officer of Alco Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 328). Besides, Mr. Liu previously worked at international
accounting firms for a total of nine years and gained extensive experience in
accounting, auditing and taxation of listed companies.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information concerning the
Directors which shall be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

As a leader in the niche sector of TIC (Testing, Inspection, and Certification)
industry, we deliver high-quality, professional services to support our global
clients in addressing a wide range of supply chain challenges, spanning safety,
environmental concerns, social responsibility, and product or service quality,
which enable them to transition more effectively toward green and low-
carbon practices. The Group collaborates with partners to co-create enduring
business value.

The Group remains committed to effective strategic planning and robust
business development, aiming for steady and sustainable progress while
evolving into a pragmatic enterprise with deep foundations and strong growth
potential. Since its listing, the Company has consistently delivered impressive
results to investors. Since its listing, the Company has achieved a compound
annual growth rate (CAGR) of 24.7% in revenue, 15.8% in company profit,
and 9.9% in net profit attributable to the parent.

We fully recognize that the Group’s steady growth relies on the unwavering
support of all shareholders, and the Company’s shareholder returns are
closely tied to its high-quality, sustainable development. According to Webb-
site Database, the total return rate for the Company’s shareholders was
291.2% from 2016 to 2024." The Company places great importance on
shareholder returns. Since its listing, the Company has actively rewarded
shareholders through various methods, including cash dividends and bonus
issues. Despite the severe impact of the pandemic on the global economy
since 2020, the Company has maintained a long-term stable dividend policy,
delivering substantial cash dividends. Based on broader considerations, the
Company adjusted its shareholder return approach in 2024, suspending cash
dividends for the first time. To fully maximize shareholder value and returns,
we officially launched a share repurchase on 13 December 2024, and as of 28
February 2025, a total of 10,684,000 shares were repurchased. Guided by the
core principle of long-term sustainable development, the Company remains
committed to safeguarding shareholders’ interests and sharing the benefits of
its economic achievements.

Inspired by Mr. Warren Buffett and the value investing philosophy of Berkshire
Hathaway, the Group is guided by a “long-term vision” business philosophy
and a corporate strategy focused on sustainable development. This approach
drives us to comprehensively expand sustainable business value and create
long-term value for all stakeholders. Benjamin Graham, the “father of value
investing,” once said: “In the short run, the market is a voting machine, but in
the long run, it is a weighing machine.”

! Source: https://webb-site.com/dbpub/ctr.asp
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Since its listing, the Company’s controlling shareholders, acting in concert,
have increased their shareholdings multiple times without any divestment.
Their total equity interest in the Company has risen from approximately
52.7% at the time of listing to approximately 61.0% as of the date. We
strongly affirm the Company’s long-term value and maintain unwavering
confidence in its future strategic planning and growth prospects. Moving
forward, we intend to continue to increase our holdings in the Company’s
shares in compliance with regulatory requirements. We have fostered a long-
term, stable, and mutually trusting relationship with all shareholders, growing
alongside the Company and anticipating a return of value. This enables
all shareholders to effectively share in the Company’s growth and achieve
reasonable investment returns.

Upholding the development policy of seeking progress in the midst of stability,
the Group continued to enhance its brand credibility, operational efficiency
and core competitive advantages. The “long-term vision” and “sustainable
development” require a high degree of respect for the spirit of contract and
the value of credibility, specifically implemented in various dimensions of
corporate management strategies and tactics. Under the guidance of sound
business philosophy and corporate culture, we have consistently adhered to
clear and definite development strategic goals since listing, and strengthened
the deployment for long-term growth. The first two three-year strategies had
achieved promising results, expanding significantly in personnel scale, service
networks, business segments and revenue and profit scale, and steadily
stepping into rapid development. In the first three-year strategic plan from
2018 to 2020, the Group continued to consolidate its leading position in the
niche segment of energy testing and expand the commodity services mainly
focused on energy, and successfully deployed overseas business, with the
service offerings and network coverage having been successfully expanded. In
the second three-year strategic plan from 2021 to 2023, the Group continued
to consolidate pillar businesses in the energy and commodity, enhanced the
layout of the commodity services, and successfully extended new business
scopes to clean energy, environmental protection, and climate change and
other ESG related fields, deepening the globalized layout and diversified
business expansion. The Group has expanded its presence from major trading
ports and hub cities in the Asia Pacific region to emerging markets in South
America and Africa. The Group is currently advancing its third development
strategy with steady progress. In addition to accelerating the development of
product lines in its energy and commodity businesses, the Group will continue
to increase investment and efforts in clean energy, low-carbon transition, and
other ESG-related derivative businesses (X businesses). This aims to expedite
its global expansion and maximize corporate value.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

The rapid advancement of Artificial intelligence (Al) technology is reshaping
the global economic landscape in the medium to long term. In 2025, the
Group designates Al as key application of the new technologies, firmly seizing
the opportunities presented by the Al industry’s growth. The Group is fully
embracing the Al era by cultivating Al capabilities, integrating Al resources,
and continuously advancing Al progress through rapid iteration, ongoing
improvement, and relentless innovation. Leveraging Al and robotics, the
Group is accelerating technological innovation and upgrades, accelerating Al
empowerment in business scenarios and establishing a blueprint for corporate
development.

The Group is actively fostering an internal innovation ecosystem to accelerate
corporate growth. It prioritizes innovation development and technology
incubation by establishing a dedicated technology incubation platform
to continuously strengthen its technological innovation capabilities. By
addressing key technological innovation management challenges, including
innovation and development, industry-university-research collaboration, and
the development of a high-caliber technical talent pool, the Group ensures
that its technological innovation is both systematic and comprehensive.

Benefiting from effective strategic policies and the successful implementation
of the “unique M&A approach” model, the Group has achieved significant
results in international expansion, with remarkable performance in emerging
market development and continuous growth in revenue. In the future, the
Group will intensify its efforts in M&A, actively focusing on selecting high-
quality M&A projects to further leverage the scale of fast globalized growth
and deepen the advantages of its international service network.

On behalf of the Group’s management, | would like to express my gratitude

to our employees for their invaluable contributions, our partners for their
trust, and our shareholders for their continued support.

Li Xiangli
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, the global energy industry continued to thrive, with new models
and formats constantly emerging. Benefiting from the robust growth of the
global energy industry and the TIC sector, the Group, guided by effective
strategies, continued to enhance its brand credibility, improve operational
efficiency, and strengthen its core competitive advantages, steadily advancing
high-quality development. During the Year, the Company recorded revenue
of HK$1,263.1 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 12.9%; profit
for the Year reached HK$126.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 3.2%; profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$82.7
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.4%, further consolidating its
industry-leading position.

The Group continued to deepen the globalized layout and diversify its
business expansion. The Company had extended the business scope from
traditional energy pillar business to clean energy, environmental protection,
climate change, and other ESG-related sectors, while expanding its service
network from major trading ports and hub cities in the Asia-Pacific region to
multiple emerging markets. The Group operates 78 branches and professional
laboratories worldwide, spanning 19 countries. As the global economy
continues to develop, the importance of emerging markets has become
increasingly evident. The Group strategically seizes development opportunities
in emerging markets, proactively expanding into regions such as Africa and
the Middle East with its superior global service capabilities. The Group’s
business presence has flourished across multiple regions, further reinforcing
the strengths of its internationalized service network.

Business review of each segment

The Group provides global industry leaders with a wide range of one-stop
services in testing, and inspection, as well as technical and consulting services
around the clock, focusing on four key areas, namely commodity services,
clean energy, environmental protection and climate change, empowering
global industry leaders to achieve eco-friendly and low-carbon transformation.
ESG-oriented development is a key priority for the Group's “3+X"
development strategy. Through the three main implementation dimensions of
(1) ESG-Friendly; (2) ESG+; and (3) ESG-Focused, we have achieved our long-
term sustainable strategies, fulfilled our corporate social responsibilities, and
contributed to the green and low-carbon transition of the industry. In 2024,
the Group leveraged synergies across its business segments to drive overall
revenue growth. Details are set out below:
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ESG-Friendly:
Commodlity Business

With as many as 78 service outlets and 18 categories of professional
qualification certifications around the world, the Group’s services cover
more than 50 types of commodities and natural resources. Supported
by its robust overall capabilities, exceptional technical expertise, and
outstanding talent pool, the Group has become a designated inspection
institution for multiple exchanges. In 2024, the Group continued to
secure qualifications as a designated quality inspection institution for
futures exchanges, further reinforcing its extensive experience and
brand credibility in bulk commodity inspection.

On 22 January 2024, the Shanghai Futures Exchange authorized the
Group as its designated inspection institution for alumina futures.
Having already been designated as the inspection institution for the
Shanghai Futures Exchange’s key non-ferrous metals-copper, aluminum,
and zinc, the Group became its designated inspection institution for
alumina futures as well, further enhancing its brand recognition with
non-ferrous metal clients.

On 14 June 2024, the Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange designated
the Group as its inspection institution for ferroalloy futures, reflecting
its high recognition of the Group’s extensive experience and brand
credibility in bulk commodity inspection.

The Group has established a comprehensive presence on the four
leading futures exchanges, thereby significantly strengthening its brand
credibility in specialized sectors. Below is the list of futures inspection
qualifications obtained by the Group and its subsidiaries from major
exchanges to date:

Exchange Futures products

Shanghai Futures Exchange Copper, aluminum, zinc, alumina,
aluminum alloy
Dalian Commodity Exchange
Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange  Thermal coal, ferrosilicon,
manganese-silicon
Industrial silicon, lithium carbonate
International copper

Coking coal, coke, iron ore

Guangzhou Futures Exchange
Shanghai International Energy
Exchange

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's testing and inspection product line continues to expand,
and it has now become the leading quality inspection institution for
lithium carbonate, ferroalloys, and industrial silicon. With fair, efficient,
and professional services, the Group will contribute positively to the
high-quality and sustainable development of the new energy industry
while continuously enhancing its international competitiveness. The
Group continues to strengthen its ability to serve international leading
customers, establishing business cooperation with several major clients
during the Year.

The Group continues to increase its R&D investments and participates
in the formulation and revision of standards to drive industry
development. The Group actively participated in the drafting of the
group standard for recycled steel raw materials organized by the Dalian
Commodity Exchange, serving as the third drafting unit to complete the
development of the Operational Specifications for Sampling Recycled
Steel Raw Materials (published). Concurrently, recommended by the
Dalian Commodity Exchange, the Group joined the drafting team for
the national standard Recycled Steel Raw Materials, which was issued
on 28 November 2024. Additionally, commissioned by the Dalian
Commodity Exchange, the Group continues to undertake inspection
tasks for recycled steel raw materials in 2024.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to ensure the quality and safety
of futures deliveries with professional, high-quality services, support
the stable operation of commodity futures and options markets, and
provide expert services for the in-depth market of energy commodity
inspection.
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Research Development

The Group is accelerating its integration into the wave of intelligent
development, leveraging Al to drive technological innovation and
upgrades, and leading industry advancement. The Group has taken
the lead in deploying Al application technologies across its business
lines, including coal, commodity services, integrated refining and
chemicals, new energy, and environmental sectors. It has introduced
automated spectral analysis pre-processing systems and Al-powered
visual inspection devices, significantly improving automation rates in
key processes and data verification efficiency. With the support of its
partners, the Group has established the “Smart Testing Laboratory 3.0”
and developed a blockchain-based platform for certifying testing data.
Through the in-house smart test system, customers can track testing
progress in real time and independently authorize report circulation,
greatly enhancing service response speed. By leveraging technological
innovations such as Al applications to optimize and upgrade service
capabilities, the Group continuously strengthens its ability to serve top-
tier clients, enhances customer loyalty and market competitiveness, and
solidifies its leading position in the industry.

The Group plans to complete the global deployment of its Al system
by 2025, while achieving continuous breakthroughs in areas such as
establishing a cross-border Al inspection mutual recognition system,
developing an Al-powered carbon emission accounting module, and
creating a quality prediction model for bulk energy commodities. In
the medium to long term, the Group will bolster its support for R&D
innovation, continuously driving the deep integration of technologies
like Al, digital twins, and blockchain into testing technologies,
equipment, and laboratory management. This will facilitate the
development of Al-powered unmanned testing and laboratory
platforms, ultimately establishing a new paradigm of “Al-driven,
human-machine collaboration” in testing and inspection.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ESG+:

As the construction of a new power system accelerates, the Group

leverages its ESG+ business, encompassing the three core segments of

clean energy, environmental protection, and climate change, to fully

harness its deep industry experience and strengths. The Group actively

aligns with the transition needs of existing clients, introduces advanced

technologies, and drives technological innovation. With a multifaceted

focus on environmental protection, it supports clients in proactively

addressing climate change, directly contributing to the green and

low-carbon transition of the industry and facilitating the high-quality,
accelerated development of new power systems.

(M

)

Clean Energy Business: The Group has expanded into new
energy sectors, focusing on wind power and solar power
generation, alongside testing services in other clean energy fields.
Our service scope includes quality inspection and re-inspection for
wind power and photovoltaic projects, covering manufacturing
supervision, hoisting supervision, wind turbine inspections,
pre-warranty expiration quality assessments, and operational
maintenance. Additionally, we provide data collection, testing,
and regular maintenance during the operation of wind and
photovoltaic systems to improve power generation stability.

Environmental protection business: The Group enhances its
environmental protection capabilities through Leakage Detection
and Repair (“LDAR") services, screening and precisely locating
suspected pipeline leaks. By integrating pipeline data platforms,
risk identification and assessment systems, and detection and
repair processes, we offer diversified, comprehensive services.
These efforts assist enterprises in mitigating pipeline safety
risks, reducing accident rates, and strengthening environmental
protection services. LDAR is a key contributor to low-carbon
emissions reduction and an essential element in achieving green
low carbon goals. Additionally, the Group provides a wide range
of ecological and environmental consulting and testing services,
including environmental protection monitoring, ecological
monitoring, soil pollution investigation, environmental pollution
prevention, professional total solution operator for environmental
protection, consulting on environmental protection technology,
soil and water conservation, water resources argumentation,
social stability risk assessment, environmental protection
equipment sales, as well as sales and operation maintenance of
online monitoring equipments.

BEENWED

ESG+ -

PEERRFEENRAINRES - KAEE
BBEEERER RRERERAERZE L=
AL ETERIBEESG+ET » O FIEITH
BEARKBRED BREARBEEFPEIT
ko HERRS| AR - B RTAIRT - 2T
BERRRRE HHEPEREYRIRE
fb'ETQ?%FF%@@&EK%*”?&E’EjJ
NFNENZBERSESNREE -

(1) FREREYK: SEFEMURNEE.
KB BHERERNIERIREINA R E
175 B BE IR B I ) 08I AR 75 o AR 7% 80
BREEE KRGS ’L‘iﬂﬁ&}_ﬁ%
#leE  REDEAT ARG A -

ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ’] n B iR SE i ﬁﬁ
BERARELHEETRERS B

é}t&i,ﬁﬂ@%’g CREERENREKE -

() RRREEL : SEELMFRBIEE
8 ([LDARJ) fR 75 - 1 & B & LUt R B4
T E%DFEEM 15 & EE BT
=N R 2% BIRTE B &t~ 0B Ry
@*ﬁ%é TTyTE—anHﬁ“ By h
¥EREBELRERE RETBSIHE
BN IRIBRERIRTEBE /I o LDARAR

BREBRINEE2EE  TERKE
BRI BN AEKE D < I &
BIEHERRBRERR - £REER
TEBRRNAL  REBRIA

ERRER - RRBMFEH - KLREF
KERWRE  HERERRTMGE  RR
RIBHE R EERNREBHELETH

E S N A REIR I R A MR IR TS -

2024F EHE TEIBRBERERA

21



22

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

=5 2L 2A kg A
EIEfERmEE DM
(3) Climate change business: The Group offers a wide range

of professional, integrated solutions in the fields of low-
carbon and sustainable development. These services primarily
encompass four key areas: due diligence, development, technical
consulting, and trading of carbon emission reduction assets; low-
carbon technology consulting; ESG (Environmental, Social, and
Governance) technical consulting; and low-carbon digitalization.
Our key strategic clients are core contributors to building clean,
low-carbon, safe, and efficient energy systems. The Group
actively supports these clients in enhancing efficiency, achieving
their goals, and implementing large-scale energy-saving and
carbon reduction initiatives, enabling them to pursue sustainable,
low-carbon, and green development strategies. Furthermore,
through a one-stop comprehensive carbon neutrality solution,
the Group has successfully assisted industry-leading clients in
meeting their corporate carbon neutrality commitments. With a
deep understanding of the global carbon market's current status
and trends, we proactively help clients complete the registration
of projects under various international carbon reduction
mechanisms. This support empowers our clients to fully uphold
their corporate social responsibilities and establish themselves as
leaders in low-carbon and sustainable development within their
industries.

During the Year, the climate change business continued to build
on its momentum. As one of the leading carbon asset traders
in the Beijing carbon market, the Group significantly expanded
its carbon asset trading volume in collaboration with clients this
year, enabling more customers to meet their annual compliance
obligations cost-effectively. The Group also strengthened its
global operational capabilities, securing several overseas carbon
asset projects during the Year to support the industry and
clients in achieving sustainable low-carbon transitions. With the
progressive rollout and clarification of new global carbon market
regulations, the market is poised for substantial growth. The
Group is well-positioned to seize these opportunities, leveraging
its internal experts, recognized as specialists in emerging global
carbon market mechanisms, and its strong brand credibility and
influence among clients and governments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

lll. ESG-Focused:

The Group have bolstered our sustainability capabilities, sharpening our
expertise in ESG-related areas such as green and low-carbon solutions,
energy-saving initiatives, and emission reduction services, while keeping
a keen eye on potential investment opportunities. Looking ahead, the
Company will accelerate investment plans aligned with the Group’s ESG
strategy, targeting mergers, acquisitions, and investment opportunities
in emerging markets with strong potential for green, low-carbon, and
sustainable growth. By integrating Al innovative technologies, we aim
to deliver a broader range of high-quality services, empowering our
clients to achieve their green and low-carbon transition goals.

PROSPECT

As a leading player in the Asia-Pacific region, we aim to capitalize on the
thriving TIC market. The Group is dedicated to fully integrating Al and cutting-
edge technology across the entire service process, from planning and precise
guidance before testing, to real-time monitoring and accurate predictions
during testing, and rapid data processing, in-depth analysis, and decision-
making support post-testing. This holistic approach significantly boosts service
efficiency and customer satisfaction.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

WA
ZAUNCIE/ S PN AR UbE

Revenue
Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by 12.9% from approximately HK$1,118.5
million in 2023 to approximately HK$1,263.1 million in 2024. Leveraging the
dynamic trends in emerging markets and an expanding international service
network, the Group has steadily advanced its business development. On one
hand, ESG+ new businesses have experienced rapid growth, significantly
broadening the customer base and exceeding expectations. On the other
hand, the Group achieved outstanding results in overseas market expansion,
with overseas revenue increasing by 21.3% to HK$567.6 million in 2024,
accounting for 44.9% of total Group revenue. The dual momentum from new
businesses and markets had collectively fueled the Group’s overall revenue
growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE I wE

vl

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
increased by 3.4% from approximately HK$80.0 million in 2023 to
approximately HK$82.7 million in 2024. The Group relies on its global service
networks to efficiently meet the one-stop service demands of customers
worldwide. The Group places great emphasis on the forward-looking strategic
investments required for long-term sustainable development, increasing costs
in the development of new businesses and emerging markets during the Year,
which increased overall operational expenditures, ultimately laying a solid
foundation for future profit growth.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group's cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash and bank
balances denominated in RMB, HKD, USD and SGD. The Group remained
in a strong cash position throughout 2023 and 2024, with cash and cash
equivalents of HK$227.3 million and HK$267.2 million as at 31 December
2023 and 2024 respectively.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The Group had net cash inflows from operating activities of approximately
HK$203.6 million in 2024 (2023: HK$175.1 million). The decrease in the
Group's cash flows from operating activities was primarily due to higher
revenue generation.

Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities

The Group had net cash outflows used in financing activities of approximately
HK$93.0 million in 2024 (2023: HK$40.1 million). This was primarily due to
(1) repayment of borrowings, interest and lease liabilities of HK$85.7 million
(2023: HK$107.0 million); (2) convertible bond redeemed by cash of HK$56.3
million (2023: Nil); (3) dividend payment of HK$9.2 million (2023: HK$27.4
million); and (4) purchase of shares for share award scheme and cancellation
of HK$35.2 million (2023: HK$14.5 million), partially offset by additional
borrowings of HK$59.5 million (2023: HK$106.6 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Commitments

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total capital commitment of
approximately HK$3.4 million for contracted but not performed acquisition of
property, plant and equipment.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$267.2 million as at 31
December 2024. The Group is in a strong and healthy financial position and
has enough resources to support its operations and meet its foreseeable
capital expenditures.

Treasury Management and Funding Policy

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023
respectively.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards its
treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout
the year under review. To manage the Group’s liquidity risk, the management
monitors the Group’s liquidity position and maintains sufficient cash and cash
equivalents within the Group, as well as ensuring the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to
settle the payables of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities or guarantees to third parties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWED

Gearing Ratio

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The calculation
of gearing ratio is based on total net debt divided by capital plus net debt and
multiplied by 100.0%. Net debt is calculated as trade payables, other payables
and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and convertible bonds, less cash and
cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Total capital is calculated as “equity attributable to owners of the Company”
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

et

AEBMENERLRERER - BEFFERNE
$bﬂ1fﬁ‘*§$%ﬁjtiu1ooo%a+§i BB FRIR

m/\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁiﬁi’%ﬁﬁmf’f%ﬂ’éﬁ H fth F& A 50R
KEEtEA - quE'fE %\&—H‘%Hxﬁﬁﬂfﬁ%&
ReEEYS é‘ﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂv?éﬁﬁ%ﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁ

AR ﬂ%ﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁfﬂ%ﬁﬂa 8-

2024 2023
2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
Trade payables 2 5 e /18 47,558 51,910
Other payables and accruals ﬁtﬂgﬁ?ﬂg KREETIEE 79,992 71,155
Interest-bearing bank loans u‘l' BRITER 47,882 48,530
Convertible bonds ?@Hx%ﬁ 19,945 48,612
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B EERREEED (267,235) (227,250)
Net surplus BBFERE (71,858) (7,043)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRARHEB AEILER 468,503 424,501
Capital and net debt BEXRRBEEE 396,645 417,458
Gearing ratio (Note) TEAR b (F5) -

Note: Gearing ratio is zero when the amount of cash and cash equivalents is higher than

gross debt (2023: Zero).

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a customer’s or counterparty’s
inability to meet its obligations. The Group enters into transactions only with
recognized and creditworthy parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to have credit transactions with the Group are subject to credit
verification procedures taking into account the customers’ financial position

and the Group's past experience with the customers.

In addition, the Group monitors receivable balances on an ongoing basis.
The management of the Group evaluates the creditworthiness of its existing
and prospective customers and ensures that the customers have adequate
financing for the projects as well as the source of the financing. No collateral

is required.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's other financial assets include financial assets included in deposits
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The credit risk of
these financial assets arises from default of the counterparty. The maximum
exposure to credit risk equals to the carrying amounts of these assets.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group was exposed to foreign currency risk on cash and cash equivalents,
receivables, payables and interest-bearing bank loans that were denominated
in a currency other than respective functional currencies of the Group’s
entities. The currencies giving rise to this risk were primarily Hong Kong dollar,
Renminbi, United States dollar and Singapore dollar.

Significant Investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during the year.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2024, no investment properties of the Group (2023:
HK$15.2 million) were pledged to obtain a banking facility from a bank (2023:
HK$11.0 million); certain of the Group’s buildings with a total carrying value
of HK$26.0 million (2023: HK$29.1 million) were pledged to obtain a banking
facility from a bank amounting to HK$29.8 million (2023: HK$19.2 million);
no trade and bills receivables (2023: HK$20.2 million) were pledged to obtain
a banking facilities from a bank (2023: HK$14.4 million).

SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company repurchased a total
of 6,504,000 of its ordinary shares (“Shares”) on the Stock Exchange at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$12,982,560 (exclude expenses)
(HK$13,030,026 include expenses). All these repurchased Shares were
cancelled subsequently after the year end date.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company further
repurchased 4,180,000 of its Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$9,699,040 (exclude expenses). Out of
those repurchased Shares, 2,404,000 Shares of approximately HK$5,457,040
(exclude expenses) were cancelled up to the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other significant events after the
reporting period up to the date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
L2 M\Aiﬁd:

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
for enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving the
interests of its Shareholders and other stakeholders. The Company has
adopted the CG Code. Corporate governance provides the framework within
which the Board forms its decisions and build its businesses. The entire Board
focuses on creating long-term sustainable growth for Shareholders and
delivering long-term values to all stakeholders. We believe that an effective
corporate governance structure allows the Company to have a better
understanding of, evaluate and manage, risks and opportunities (including
environmental and social risks and opportunities).

The corporate value of the Company is to serve our customers in lawful,
ethical and responsible manner. All Directors act with integrity and promote
the culture of integrity. Such culture instils and continually reinforces
across the corporate values. During the year, the Board closely monitor the
implementation of corporate governance practice, risk management and
internal control systems to ensure the corporate objective, values and strategy
and the Company’s culture are aligned.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31 December
2024, the Company had complied with all code provisions as set out in the
CG Code save for the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code
while such deviation is explained in the relevant paragraph below of this
corporate governance report.

The Board will, from time to time, review and enhance its corporate

governance practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet the
requirements of the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. THE BOARD

A1.

A2.

Responsibilities and Delegation

The powers and duties of our Board include managing our
business, convening general meetings, reporting our Board's work
at our Shareholder’s meetings, preparing financial budgets and
financial reports, formulating proposals for profit distributions as
well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred
by our Articles.

Board Composition, Succession and Evaluation

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises eight
members, which consist of four executive Directors, one non-
executive Director, and three independent non-executive
Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli (Chairman and CEO)
Ms. ZHANG Aiying

Mr. LIU Yi

Mr. YANG Rongbing (Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Director
Mr. HAQ Yilei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Zichen

Mr. ZHAO Hong

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung

Mechanism regarding independent views and inputs to the
Board

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. The Board reviews the
implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism(s) on an
annual basis. The Board considers that such mechanism has been
implemented properly and effectively.
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Deeesagp s

A summary of the mechanisms is set out below:

(i) Composition

The Board ensures the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one-
third of its members being independent non-executive
Directors (or such higher threshold as may be required
by the Listing Rules from time to time), with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Further, independent non-
executive Directors will be appointed to Board Committees
as required under the Listing Rules and as far as practicable
to ensure independent views are available.

(ii) Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
Nomination Policy of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”) with regard to the nomination and appointment
of independent non-executive Directors, and is mandated
to assess annually the independence of independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that they can continually

exercise independent judgement.

(iii) Compensation

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to independent non-executive
Directors as this may lead to bias in their decision-making
and compromise their objectivity and independence.

(iv) Board Decision Making

Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are entitled to seek further information from the
management on the matters to be discussed at Board
meetings and, where necessary, independent advice from
external professional advisers at the Company's expense.

A Director (including independent non-executive Director)
who has a material interest in a contract, transaction or
arrangement shall not vote or be counted in the quorum
on any Board resolution approving the same.

(v) Board Evaluation

The quality and efficiency of discussions at Board meetings
are assessed by the chairman of the Board.
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A4,
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Currently, Mr. LI Xiangli (“Mr. Li") takes up the roles of both
chairman of the Board and CEO, which is deviated from code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code that requires the roles of
chairman and chief executive of the Company should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The Board
considers that Mr. Li possesses the essential leadership skills to
manage the Board and extensive knowledge in the business of
the Group. In the opinion of the Directors, through supervision by
the Board and the independent non-executive Directors, together
with effective control of the Company’s internal check and
balance mechanism, the same individual performing the roles of
chairman and chief executive can achieve the goal of improving
the Company'’s efficiency in decision-making and execution
and effectively capturing business opportunities. The Board will
review the effectiveness of this arrangement from time to time.
The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of
the Company with an aim of maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance.

Nomination, Appointment, Election/Re-election of
Directors

The Board will consider the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee when deciding the appointment, election or re-
election of Director. The Nomination Committee is delegated
with the duties to solicit and identify potential candidates for
directorship in accordance with the nomination criteria (as
disclosed in section B2 below) set out in the Nomination Policy.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election. The Company at the general meeting at which a
Director retires may fill the vacated office.

The Directors to retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary
to obtain the number required) any Director who wishes to retire
and not to offer himself for re-election. Any Director who has
not been subject to retirement by rotation in the three years
preceding the annual general meeting shall retire by rotation at
such annual general meeting. Any further Directors so to retire
shall be those who have been longest in the office since their
last re-election or appointment, but as between persons who
become or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.
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A5.

In addition, any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office only
until the first annual general meeting of the Company after
his/her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Any Director so appointed shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Training and Continuing Development for
Directors

Newly appointed Directors will receive formal induction on the
first occasion of their appointment, so as to ensure that they have
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and that they are fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. Such induction shall be supplemented by visiting
to the Company’s key plant sites and meetings with senior
management of the Company.

Furthermore, the Company shall ensure that each of its proposed
appointed Directors, if any, has obtained the legal advice from a
firm of solicitors qualified to advise on Hong Kong law as regards
the requirements under the Listing Rules that are applicable
to him/her as a Director before his/her appointment becomes
effective. The Company shall disclose in the next published
annual report following the directors’ appointment (i) the date
on which each of its proposed Directors obtained such legal
advice and; (i) that each proposed Director has confirmed he/she
understood his/her obligations as a Director.

The existing Directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market changes
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Trainings and
professional development for Directors are arranged whenever
necessary. In addition, reading materials on new or changes to
salient laws and regulations applicable to the Company are provided
to Directors from time to time for their studying and reference.
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The Directors are required to submit to the Company details
of the training they received in each financial year for the
Company’s maintenance of proper training records of the
Directors. According to the training records currently maintained
by the Company, during the year, the Directors had complied
with the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on participation in
continuous professional training as follows:

Name of Director BEERE
Mr. LI Xiangli FRFEE
Ms. ZHANG Aiying RERLZ A
Mr. LIU Yi 25 55 A4
Mr. YANG Rongbing B IEE
Mr. HAOQ Yilei e L E
Mr. WANG Zichen FRELEE
Mr. ZHAO Hong FEUT A
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung BRHEEAE
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AG6.

A7.

Directors’ Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out below:

Board

Meeting
Name of Director EEnE ExXegs
Executive Directors: BTES:
Mr. LI Xiangli FRMEE 17
Ms. ZHANG Alying REEZ LT 17
Mr. LIU Yi R r A 17
Mr. YANG Rongbing PELy 717
Non-executive Director: FBTES:
Mr. HAO Yilei WREEE 17
Independent non- BYFHITES:

executive Directors:

Mr. WANG Zichen TREXE 717
Mr. ZHAO Hong fiEip S 717
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung BRI EE 17

N/A:  not applicable

During the year, the chairman of the Board met once with
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding dealings in the securities of the Company
by the Directors and the Company’s employees who, because
of such offices or employments, are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities.

Having made specific enquiry by the Company with all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code regarding directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2024.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code.

Role and Function of the Board and the
Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which are reserved to the Board and delegated
to management or Board committees. The Board delegates
day-to-day operations of the Group to management while
reserving certain key matters, mainly relating to the approval and
monitoring of the Group's overall strategies, policies and business
plans, and overseeing and evaluating the performance of the
Group. It is also responsible for promoting the success of the
Group and its businesses by directing and supervising the Group's
affairs. Board committees for specific functions are also set up to
ensure efficient Board operations. The composition and functions
of each Board committee and their major roles and functions
are described below. The final decision still rests with the Board
unless otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of the
relevant Board committees.

Relationship between Directors

Set out below are the relationship between Directors as required
to be disclosed under paragraph B(h) of the CG Code, Part 1 —
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements:

1. Mr. LI Xiangli is the spouse of Ms. ZHANG Alying.

2. Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi entered
into an acting-in-concert deed on 31 January 2016
whereby Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi shall support
Mr. LI Xiangli's decisions on material matters in relation to
the operation and management of our Group by exercising
their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and
boards of the members of our Group in accordance with
the decisions of Mr. LI Xiangli.
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three Board committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees have been established with defined written
terms of reference which are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the Company’s website
(www.hk1586.com). All the Board committees should report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

B1. Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee comprises a total of three members, being two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. ZHAO Hong
(chairman of the committee) and Mr. WANG Zichen, and one
executive Director, namely Ms. ZHANG Aiying. Throughout the
year, the Company had met the Listing Rules requirements of
having the majority of the Remuneration Committee members
being independent non-executive Directors as well as having the
committee chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

The primary function of the Remuneration Committee is to
develop remuneration policies of our Directors, evaluate the
performance, make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of our Directors and senior management
and evaluate and make recommendations to the Board on
employee benefit arrangements.

Summary of the Work During the Year

During the year, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held (i) to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration policy and structure of Directors,
senior management and employees; (ii) to review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to individual performance, the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and (iii) to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of individual Directors and senior
management of the Company.

The record of each committee member in the Remuneration

Committee meeting held during the year is set out in section A6
above.
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Directors and Employees Remuneration Policy

The Director and Employee Remuneration Policy sets out the
general principles which guide the Group to deal with the
remuneration matters. As a general principle, a fair market
level of remuneration will be provided to retain and motivate
high quality directors, senior management and employees,
and attract experienced people of high calibre to oversee the
business and development of the Group. Directors’ remuneration
was determined by the Board with reference to the prevailing
market conditions, and the qualifications, experience, duties and
their responsibilities of with the Company. Executive Directors’
remuneration packages link to individual and the Group’s
performance. As for independent non-executive Directors, only
fixed remuneration/fee shall be paid and be set at an appropriate
level by reference to the relevant time commitment and the size
and complexity of the Group and benchmarked against a peer
group. Mr. Hao Yilei, the non-executive director of the Company,
does not receive any remuneration.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

Nil to 1,000,000

1,000,001 - 2,000,000
2,000,001 - 3,000,000
4,000,001 - 5,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year are set
out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements contained
in this annual report.

FEEE (BT

Z % 1,000,000

1,000,001 % 2,000,000
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B2.

Nomination Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination
Committee comprises a total of three members, being one
executive Director, namely Mr. LI Xiangli (chairman of the
committee), and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong. Throughout the
year, the Company had met the Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules
requirement of having a majority of the committee members
being independent non-executive Directors and having the
committee chaired by the chairman of the Board.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
identifying individual suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and succession planning of Directors; and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors, as
well as reviewing the board diversity policy and the Nomination
Policy.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the nomination committee to select and recommend candidates
for directorship. In accordance with the Nomination Policy, in
evaluation and selecting a candidate for acting as a Director, the
criteria to be considered include:

—  character and integrity of the individual;

— qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
board diversity policy (summarised below) of the Company
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy,

— any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board;

—  requirement for the Board to have independent Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;
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— any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

— willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company; and

— such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the nomination process and
procedures, including but not limited to:

1. evaluate the candidate based on the abovementioned
criteria upon receipt of the proposal of appointment of
new Director;

2. if there are more than one desirable candidate, rank the
candidates with reference to the needs of the Company
and the reference check of each candidate; and

3. recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate as the new Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and regards the increasing diversity at the Board as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

Summary of Policy

The Nomination Committee reviews annually the structure, size
and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy.

In reviewing and assessing the Board composition and the
nomination of directors (as applicable), Board diversity has to be
considered from a number of aspects, including gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience.
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Measurable Objectives and Progress

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant to the
Company’s business growth. The Nomination Committee will
discuss and where necessary, agree on the measurable objectives
for achieving diversity on the Board and make recommendation
to the Board. For the purpose of implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy, the following measurable objectives were fulfilled
during the year:

1. at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

2. at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise; and

3. at least one of the members of the Board is female.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of its
board diversity on an annual basis.

The Board was of the view that, during the year, the Company
has fulfilled all necessary requirements of the Listing Rules and
the CG Code in respect of the composition requirement of the
Board.

The Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of
directors who have direct experience in the Group’s businesses,
with different cultural and education background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge, and reflecting the Group’s
strategy.

Concerning the gender diversity of the Board, in 2024, as among
the eight Directors, one Board member (approximately 12.5% of
the Board members) is female Director. The Board is of the view
that gender diversity has been achieved for the time being.

Appropriate emphasis on maintaining gender diversity has been
placed in the reviews of board composition, board diversity and
succession planning to ensure a pipeline of potential successors
in achieving and maintaining gender diversity.

Biographical details of the board members are set out in this
Annual Report.
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Diversity across Workforce

The gender ratio in the Company’s workforce (including senior
management) for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set
out in the section entitled “3.1 Employee Composition” of
the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report of this
Annual Report.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed 3,374 staff
(including senior management), out of which, 77.53% were
male and 22.47% were female. The Group has relatively large
male workforce as compared to female as the Group is in the
inspection and testing industry. Nevertheless, the Group pursues
equal job opportunities for male and female in recruitment and
staff development. The Company will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Group, including but
not limited to the Board and the senior management levels.

Summary of the Work During the Year

During the year, one meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board, to review and make recommendations to the Board on
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy, to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on the proposal for election/re-
election of Directors at the forthcoming AGM at that time.

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors
has been assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing
Rules. The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive Directors, and the
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing the independence set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained. The Nomination
Committee also considered that the Directors are rich in
knowledge, experience and background and their outstanding
skills in their respective expertise can meet the development
needs of the Company.

The attendance record of each committee member in the
Nomination Committee meeting is set out in section A6 above.
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B3.

Audit Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee
comprises a total of three members, all being independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (chairman of
the committee), Mr. WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong. The
Company has met the Listing Rules requirements regarding the
composition of the Audit Committee throughout the year.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring
the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, annual report
and interim report, and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgements contained therein; reviewing the Company’s financial
controls, and overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems; making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor,
and approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor, as well as reviewing arrangements which can
be used by the employees of the Company, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions as set out in the code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code. Its main duties include developing and
reviewing the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations to the Board;
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management of the Group;
and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG code and
the Model Code and the disclosure in the corporate governance
report to be contained in the Company’s annual reports.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024

B3.

BEREES

HE024F12A3MHILFEE  BEZZ
B4 HEBE=AKE  YABIIEY
TEE NEMAREE(ZETER) -
THELAERBEIILE - RAFER
RAR—EFE(ETRANDEBEEZE
BeEKHEk -

ERZBENTIERBEERERAR
TS ER K i&iﬁ%&qﬂ%ﬁi&%é’\]m
Bt ERRERMBEMEEAM S
FREVE A A BB R R TR -
EERBEE RN RS BN
BRHBMNEE BEFEZERERRNES
SRR - HESN AR RED & B e
BRGEZ  UAEEHNAEBSARFRER
ARG ERR - AR R A=

AREBEANTEETARREBINS
BEe

BEREEENBERBIT(EEESRTAD
FA2NMETRGXEMHEEES
BE-HETERELENERENAE®
MEEERRERER THEESR
PEE: BERERAEETEETERE
REERTHFEMNBREER  FEHL
ERAEFAEERSRETIEABNEI
MEFEEERR  REMAEERET(D
EERTAD RUZESFRD MBI K
EARRBIFEREFAAMN(EEESR
WME)FHEE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Summary of the Work During the Year

During the year, two meetings of the Audit Committee were
held to review the annual and interim financial results and
reports in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023
and in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2024. The
Audit Committee also reviewed financial reporting, internal
control and risk management systems, the effectiveness of the
Company's internal audit functions, the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and procedures and
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit, financial reporting function and those
relating to the Company’s ESG’s performance and reporting,
made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the AGM as well as reviewed the scope of
work of external auditor. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

The attendance records of each committee member in the Audit
Committee meetings are set out in section A6 above.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements.

Deesagpa

FRAIERE
FRN BREEGRITMAGH  UFE
MEBZE2023F12A31BIEFENRER
2024F 6 A30 B I NA AR FE KA E
WBxERRE BEREZESNENY
BmE  AHESREBEERS A
NEINEBE LB R - RREE &
%%ﬂ%%&kﬁ%ﬁﬂ NIz =i
NEIEE  NEEZ - BB REBE A
RARNTIRE e RkERENERRE
HENERTEM BT ERNES
FlFrEI RTEE - IR EBAFAE L
iﬁ;&%%@%%ﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬁgﬁ~
WARFTINEAZ B AN TIEEE - BixZE
EgNBFHARAINCEERBRLE
Mo EBEENERERENEIIREESR
¥ER ARABTEEREERTEN
BREREH  IZETRIMETIBER - B
MAR T<¢%ﬁé#%»&v%£&$
EERMEPREE -

BRLREgREHFEERZEEEHNT
BRE TIPS ESXA6—ER o

EEHABMBRRNVMBRE
HEFE

EXNTEHAEREAEEANANFENE B
H*K -

EEZRRENERFERTHBREAR(LED

MADREMEAEBRRRENEMTFRES
TBEH & B R AT IR AR T

2024FEHRE FEIIBRBIZEBRERAD

43



44

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
L2 M\Aiﬁd:

D. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Company and review
their effectiveness.

The risk management and internal control systems and the relevant
policies and procedures are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

D1. Control Structure

The Company implemented various policies and procedures
to ensure effective risk management at each aspect of its
operation, including the provision of on-site inspection, surveying
and sampling services, performance of analytical tests in our
laboratories, administration of daily operation, financial reporting
and recording, fund management, as well as material risk relating
to ESG including compliance with applicable laws and regulations
on environmental protection and workplace safety.

The internal audit department monitors compliance with policies
and procedures and the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control structures across the Group and its principal
divisions. The internal audit department reports directly to the
Audit Committee and ensure the internal controls are in place
and functioning properly as intended.

D2. Control Approach

The risk management process includes risk identification,
risk evaluation, risk management measures, reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems
and resolving material internal control defects. The management
conducted interviews with relevant staff members, reviewing
relevant documentation of the internal control system, identifying
and evaluating findings of any deficiencies in the design of the
Company'’s internal control system, providing recommendations
for improvement and following up on the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the risk management
and internal control are reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee during the year.
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Procedure manuals and operational guidelines are in place to
safeguard the assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting records in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use and/or
external publication.

The Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee, annually
assessed and reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and procedures and considered
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit, financial reporting function as well as those
relating to the Company’s ESG's performance and reporting.

Annual Review

For the year 2024, the Board through the Audit Committee had
conducted an annual review on the systems of internal control
and risk management of the Company. The review covered
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group. Areas of
improvement have been identified and appropriate measures
have been put in place to manage the risks (including ESG
risks). The enhancement of the systems of risk management and
internal control is an ongoing process and the Board maintains
a continuing commitment to strengthen the Company’s control
environment and processes. The Board considers that the internal
control and risk management systems are effective and adequate.

Inside Information

The Company formulated the inside information policy. The
Company regularly reminds the Directors and employees of the
Group about the due compliance with all policies regarding the
inside information (as defined under the SFO). Heads of business
units shall report to the Directors any potential inside information
event as soon as practicable before or when it materialises for
determining the nature of developments, and if required, making
disclosure. Access to inside information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis. Directors, officers
and all relevant employees of the Group who have possessed
inside information are required to preserve confidentiality until
such inside information is publicly disclosed.
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D5. Whistleblowing policy and anti-fraud and
anti-bribery policy

The Company has put in place a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) to raise concerns,
in confidence and anonymity, with the audit committee about
possible improprieties in any matter related to the Company.

The Company has also put in place an anti-fraud and anti-bribery
policy and system that promote and support anti-corruption laws
and regulations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Oi Fat (“Mr. Chan”) is the company secretary of the
Company (“Company Secretary”). The primary contact person at the
Company with Mr. Chan is Mr. ZHANG Yu, the chief financial officer of
the Group.

During the year, Mr. Chan was responsible for providing advice to the
Board on corporate governance matters. Mr. Chan confirmed that he
took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR'S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young,
about their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to the external auditor in respect of audit services
and non-audit services (if any) for the year are analyzed below:
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
(both individual and institutional, and in appropriate circumstances,
the investment community at large) is essential for enhancing investor
relations and ensuring ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company (including financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments and
governance) by investors.

A summary of the Company’s shareholders’ communication policy is as
follows:

The Company ensures effective and timely dissemination of information
to Shareholders and stakeholders (including investors). As a channel
to further promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at www.hk1586.com as a communication platform with
Shareholders and stakeholders (including investors), where Company’s
announcements and press releases, business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance report and
other information are posted.

General meeting is one of the channels for Shareholders to
communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other general
meetings. Shareholders may make enquiries to the Company directly
by raising questions at general meetings. Board members, in particular,
the chairmen of Board committees or their delegates, appropriate
management executives and external auditor will use all reasonable
efforts to attend AGMs and to answer shareholders’ questions.

In order for the Company to solicit and understand the views of
shareholders and stakeholders, Shareholders and stakeholders may
make enquiries to the Company through the Company’s Investor
Relations on telephone number (852) 2821 9703 or by email at
ir@leontest.com.

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy conducted during the year and
considered that the policy is effective since the policy was able to
facilitate an open and on-going communication with the Shareholders
on fair disclosure basis.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, Shareholders are given
sufficient notice of Shareholders meetings, detailed procedures for
conducting a poll was stated in circular to Shareholders accompanying
the notice of the annual general meeting, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
(www.hk1586.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) after
each general meeting. The Articles allow a Shareholder entitled to
attend and vote at a general meeting to appoint a proxy, who need not
be a Shareholder, to attend the meeting and vote thereat on his/her/its
behalf.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
or resolution specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures set
out in the preceding paragraph.

With respect to the Shareholders’ right in proposing persons for election
as Directors, please refer to the procedures set out in Article 113 of the
Company'’s Articles, which is available on the website of the Company:

According to Article 113 of the Company’s Articles, no person, other
than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that person
of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Principal
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Place of Business of the Company in Hong Kong or at the Hong Kong
Branch Registrar and Transfer Office of the Company. The period for
lodgement of the notices required under that Article will commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of
the period during which such notices to the Company may be given will
be at least seven days.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to the
Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further details of the rights of
Shareholders.

In case of shareholding enquiries, Shareholders should direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, via its online
holding enquiry at www.computershare.com, dial its hotline at (852)
2862 8555 or go in person at its public counter at 17M Floor/17 Floor,
Shops 1712-16, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the principles
of and guidelines on recommending or declaring dividend to the
Shareholders. The Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves for
meeting its working capital requirements and future growth as well
as its Shareholder value. The Board has the discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the Shareholders subject to the Articles and
relevant laws and regulations. The Board shall take into account the
factors of the Group when considering the declaration and payment
of dividends, including but not limited to, the Group's financial
results, cash flow situation, business conditions and strategies, capital
requirements and expenditure plans and interests of the Shareholders.
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The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ Report of the year 2024
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 July 2015 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment holding company.

An analysis of the Company’s revenue and operating profit for the year by
principal activities is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report and Notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
further discussion and analysis as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance can be found in the relevant sections of this Directors’
Report, “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”
and “ESG Report” of this Annual Report, which includes a fair review of the
Company’s business, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the financial year, an indication of likely
future development in the Company’s business, an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators, a discussion on the
Company’s environmental policies and performance; and the Company’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company, as well as an account of Company’s key relationships
with its employees, customers and suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 297 of
this annual report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 156 and 157 of this annual report.

Dividend

No interim dividend was paid by the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2024 (2023: HK$0.0269 per Share).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$0.0174 per Share).

2025 AGM AND CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the 2025 AGM, which is to be held on 30 June 2025, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 25 June 2025 to
Monday, 30 June 2025, both days inclusive and during which period no share
transfer will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2025
AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 24 June 2025.
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2024 BONUS ISSUE AND ADJUSTMENTS MADE AS
A RESULT IN JULY 2024

During the year, as disclosed in the circular and the announcement of the
Company dated 23 May 2024 and 18 June 2024 respectively, the 2024 Bonus
Issue was made on the basis of one (1) bonus share for every ten (10) existing
Shares in issue held on the record date, i.e. 2 July 2024, by the qualifying
Shareholders.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 2 July 2024, as at 2 July
2024, there were in total 541,987,301 Shares in issue. The number of bonus
shares issued under the 2024 Bonus Issue was 54,198,730 Shares.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price of the
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme and the number of
Shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of the subscription rights
attaching to the 47,499,364 outstanding share options were adjusted to
52,249,300 share options as a result of the 2024 Bonus Issue in the manner
as announced by the Company on 2 July 2024.

Further details of the number of bonus shares issued and adjustments to
share options are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2
July 2024.

ISSUE, ADJUSTMENTS, AMENDMENT OF TERMS,
CONVERSIONS AND FULL REDEMPTION OF 2021
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 12 May 2021 and 11
June 2021, the completion of the subscription for the 5-year 2% coupon
unlisted convertible bonds (the “2021 Convertible Bonds”) (the “2021 CB
Subscription”) has taken place on 11 June 2021 and the 2021 Convertible
Bonds in the principal amount of HK$50,000,000 have been issued to the
subscriber in accordance with the terms and conditions of the conditional
agreement dated 12 May 2021 entered into between the Company and the
subscriber (the “2021 CB Subscription Agreement”).

As announced by the Company, as a result of the Bonus Issues in 2021, 2022
and 2023, the Conversion Price per Conversion Share and the number of
conversion Shares to be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the 2021
Convertible Bonds were adjusted.

Furthermore, as announced by the Company on 26 June 2023, the terms of
the 2021 Convertible Bonds would be amended and the amendments were
approved on 28 June 2023.

The Company has allotted Shares twice in 2023 due to conversions of 2021

Convertible Bonds. As a result of the conversions, the number of Conversion
Shares to be allotted and issued upon full conversion decreased.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 11 June 2024, on
11 June 2024, the Company has fully redeemed the principal under the

outstanding 2021 Convertible Bonds in cash pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the 2021 Convertible Bonds.

Details of issue, adjustments, amendment of terms, conversions and
redemption of the 2021 Convertible Bonds are as follows:

Principal Terms of the 2021 Convertible Bonds

Issuer:

Subscriber:

Status:

The Company

Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master
Fund Limited, an open-end investment company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and the subscriber to the 2021 CB Subscription
Agreement.

The 2021 Convertible Bonds constitute general
and unsecured obligations of the Company and
rank equally among themselves and pari passu
with all other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Company.

The Original Terms on Issue on 11 June 2021

Principal Amount:

Issue Price:

Coupon:

Maturity Date:

HK$50,000,000

100% of the principal amount of HK$50,000,000 in
cash

2% per annum payable in arrears annually

The fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the 2021
Convertible Bonds
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Conversion Price

The initial conversion price of the 2021 Convertible Bonds (the “Conversion
Price”) of HK$1.63 per Conversion Share represents:

(i) a premium of approximately 5.16% over the closing price of HK$1.550
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 12 May 2021, being the
date of the 2021 CB Subscription Agreement; and

(i) a premium of approximately 7.66% over the average of the closing
prices of HK$1.514 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the
last five (5) consecutive trading days immediately preceding 12 May
2021, being the date of the 2021 CB Subscription Agreement.

The net Conversion Price, after deduction of relevant expenses, was
approximately HK$1.62 per Conversion Share.

The Conversion Price was arrived at after arm'’s length negotiations between
the Company and the Subscriber, taking into account of, among others, the
then trading performance of the Shares. The Directors considered that the
Conversion Price and the terms and conditions of the 2021 CB Subscription
Agreement and the 2021 Convertible Bonds were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Adjustments and Terms Amendment made to the 2021 Convertible
Bonds

(1) 2021 Bonus Issue

As announced by the Company on 15 July 2021, pursuant to the terms
of the 2021 Convertible Bonds, as a result of the 2021 Bonus Issue, the
Conversion Price per Conversion Share was adjusted from HK$1.63 to
HK$1.48 and the number of conversion Shares to be allotted and issued
upon full conversion of the 2021 Convertible Bonds was adjusted from
30,674,846 Shares to 33,783,783 Shares.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024

BiRE

2021 FAR R ES Y L EIRE ([ERE]) BlRER
AN B HE1.63 TLEL ¢

() MR 2021FE5H128 (B12021 Fr] 2% (&
(RE WA BB RO KRTEER
B 1,550 R E495.16% ¢ &

iy PR EE20219F5F128 (12021 4 7] #
BEHFRERZOB ASETGEBEER
5 B AR P ESREE 1.514
TR EH7.66% °

FERE (KR AEASR) AT RERRRG S
HE1.627T ©

EBIRE TR GHERE AL R (ERaE) kK
EHR RS RBEBEATHEEMER - EFRA -
ERE R0 F ] R EFRE RS R2021F
RBEEFOBEARGGEBRATEE  AFEEAR
AR R R B F o5 o

221 FEARREHC/EHZABRRKIIER

(1) 2021 FATHE

BANA R B FAR2021F7 B15H BT A - 1B
2021 FRI MR EFH 2 1R - H 2021 FARR %
7 BRERRMHD  ERECHEE1.63T
AR A48 - MBS 2021 F A4k
REHFESTFTEERETZERRHHBER
130,674,846 i % % 33,783,783 /& °



)

3)

2022 Bonus Issue

As announced by the Company on 5 July 2022, pursuant to the terms
of the 2021 Convertible Bonds, as a result of the 2022 Bonus Issue, the
Conversion Price per Conversion Share was adjusted from HK$1.48 to
HK$1.35 and the number of conversion Shares to be allotted and issued
upon full conversion of the 2021 Convertible Bonds was adjusted from
33,783,783 Shares to 37,037,037 Shares.

The Amended Terms in 2023

Reasons for and benefits of the amendment

As announced by the Company on 26 June 2023, the Group has
entered in the deed poll (the “Amendment Deed”) on 26 June 2023 to
amend the terms of the 2021 Convertible Bonds (the “Amendments”)
given that (i) the Group has a considerable amount of revenue and
cashflow in US$ deriving from its overseas operations; (ii) the exchange
rate between RMB, being another main currency in which the Group
receives its revenue and cashflow, and HK$ has been volatile in recent
years, and the future trend remains uncertain; and (iii) in order to
protect the Group from the foreign exchange risk in the exchange of
RMB and HK$, the Company intended to settle the payment obligations
under the 2021 Convertible Bonds with US$, to which HK$ is pegged
and bears a lesser foreign exchange risk to the Group.

In view of the aforementioned, the Directors considered that the terms
and conditions of the Amendment Deed, which had been arrived
at after arm’s length negotiation between the Company and the
Subscriber, were fair and reasonable and that the Amendments were in
the interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

The Amendment Deed

On 26 June 2023 (after trading hours), the Company entered into the
Amendment Deed to effect the Amendments, which became effective
on 28 June 2023, as follows:

(@  changing the currency of denomination of the 2021 Convertible
Bonds from HK$ to US$, such that the principal amount of the
2021 Convertible Bonds was changed from HK$50,000,000
to US$6,410,256.41 (based on an exchange rate of HK$7.8 to
US$1.0 and rounded off to two decimal places), such that the
principal amount remained unchanged save for the conversion to
a rounded off US$ equivalent;

@)

3)
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(b) changing the currency of payment for all future payment
obligations (including payment of any interest and principal) of
the Company under the 2021 Convertible Bonds from HK$ to
US$ (for the avoidance of doubt there shall be no retrospective
effect to any payment under the 2021 Convertible Bonds which
has been made prior to the effective date of the Amendments);

() changing the Conversion Price to US$0.1730 and adding an
agreed exchange rate of HK$7.8 to US$1.0 (rounded down to
four decimal places) (the “Conversion Exchange Rate”), such that
the Conversion Price was the rounded down US$ equivalent to
HK$1.35 (being the Conversion Price after the 2021 Convertible
Bonds Adjustment). For the avoidance of doubt, the number of
Conversion Shares to be allotted and issued upon full conversion
of the 2021 Convertible Bonds remained largely the same as that
after the 2021 Convertible Bonds Adjustment save for a slight
increase in number due to rounding of the Conversion Price, i.e.,
from 37,037,037 Shares to 37,053,505 Shares;

(d)  other consequential changes as a result of the amendments
above, including changing the denomination of the outstanding
principal amount when the Bondholder requests for early
redemption or transfer from HK$1,000,000 to US$200,000 or
any integral multiples thereof; and

(e)  other housekeeping change including updating the principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company.

Save for the Amendments, all other principal terms of the 2021
Convertible Bonds remain unchanged.

Amended Conversion Price
The amended Conversion Price of US$0.1730 per Conversion Share
represented (based on the Conversion Exchange Rate):

(@)  adiscount of approximately 0.7% to the closing price of HK$1.36
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 26 June 2023,
being the date of the Amendment Deed; and

(b)  adiscount of approximately 14.7% to the average of the closing
prices of HK$1.55 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for
the last five (5) consecutive trading days immediately preceding
26 June 2023, being the date of the Amendment Deed.
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Mandate to issue the Conversion Shares

Upon the aforesaid amendments, based on the Conversion Price of
US$0.1730 per Conversion Share and the Conversion Exchange Rate,
37,053,505 Conversion Shares would be allotted and issued upon full
exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the 2021 Convertible
Bonds.

The Conversion Shares would be allotted and issued pursuant to the
issue mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 16 June 2023 (the “Issue Mandate”). As at 26
June 2023, the Issue Mandate has not been utilized.

(4) 2023 Bonus Issue

As announced by the Company on 7 July 2023, pursuant to the terms
of the 2021 Convertible Bonds, as a result of the 2023 Bonus Issue, the
Conversion Price per Conversion Share was adjusted from US$0.1730
to US$0.1573 and the number of conversion Shares to be allotted and
issued upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds was adjusted from
37,037,037 Shares to 40,751,789 Shares.

Subscriber to the 2021 Convertible Bonds

The Subscriber is an open-end investment company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. It is managed by RAYS Capital Partners
Limited, an Independent Third Party, licensed to carry out Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made
all reasonable enquiries, the Subscriber and its ultimate beneficial owner(s) are
Independent Third Parties.
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Reasons for the Issue of 2021 Convertible Bonds

As an international independent inspection and testing company, the
Company provides customers with professional testing, inspection,
certification, consultation and related technical services round the clock
globally. Building on the Company’s two key business areas, namely energy
and commodity, and by fully leveraging its leading advantages in different
segments and economies of scale, the Company has expanded the service
scope to power generation. We launched new inspection services in clean
energy field, especially focusing on the solar and wind power projects.
The Company also provides environmental monitoring and testing services
including ecological monitoring, soil testing, environmental technology
consultation and assessment and carbon neutrality.

The Subscriber’s interest in making an investment into the Group reflects
its confidence in the Group’s business and growth potential. The Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) were of the view that the
raising of funds by the issue of the 2021 Convertible Bonds would enhance
the Group’s capital structure and liquidity, strengthen the Group’s financial
position, broaden the capital base of the Group and to finance the Group’s
future development and expansion.

The Directors considered that the issue of the 2021 Convertible Bonds was
an effective means of raising additional capital since (i) it would not have an
immediate dilution effect on the shareholding of the existing Shareholders;
and (ii) in the event that the 2021 Convertible Bonds were converted into
Shares, the Company could broaden its capital base, benefiting the long-term
development of the Company.

The Directors considered that the terms of the 2021 CB Subscription
Agreement were arrived at arm’s length negotiations between the Company
and the Subscriber, and the transactions contemplated thereunder (including
the Conversion Price) were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Use of Proceeds from the Issue of the 2021 Convertible
Bonds

The gross proceeds of the 2021 CB Subscription was approximately
HK$50,000,000. The net proceeds from the issue of the 2021 Convertible
Bonds was approximately HK$49.6 million.

The Company intended to use the net proceeds to accelerate the
implementation of the Group’s 2+X sustainable growth strategy as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 12 May 2021 by way of (a)
business expansions; (b) investments to increase market share in key markets,
and (c) general working capital purposes.

As disclosed in the Company’s 2022 Annual Report, as at 31 December 2022,
all the net proceeds of the issue of 2021 Convertible Bonds had been utilised.

Conversion and Full Redemption of the 2021 Convertible
Bonds

The Company has allotted 1,271,456 Shares on 18 August 2023 and
1,271,456 Shares on 15 September 2023 respectively due to conversions of
2021 Convertible Bonds. As a result, the number of Conversion Shares to
be allotted and issued upon full conversion decreased from 40,751,789 to
38,208,877 Shares.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 2021 Convertible Bonds, on
11 June 2024, the Company has fully redeemed the principal under the
outstanding 2021 Convertible Bonds in cash (i.e. USD 6,010,256.41) , which
was satisfied by internal resources of the Group.

The Directors considered that the aforesaid redemption would reduce the
Company'’s total liabilities and its finance cost. The Board was therefore of the
view that the aforesaid redemption was in the interest of the Company and
Shareholders as a whole.

ISSUE OF 2024 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 26 September 2024
and 8 October 2024, the completion of the subscription for the 5-year 5%
coupon unlisted convertible bonds (the “2024 Convertible Bonds”) (the
“2024 CB Subscription”) has taken place on 8 October 2024 and the 2024
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of US$3,846,153.85 (equivalent to
HK$30,000,000 based on an exchange rate of HK$7.8 to US$1 and rounded
off to two decimal places) have been issued to the Subscriber in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the conditional agreement dated 26
September 2024 and entered into between the Company and the Subscriber
(the "2024 CB Subscription Agreement”). Details as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

BRIT2021 FARKRESFNAERERE

2021 FR R ESFRESHEAMERIBRABELNAE
# 50,000,000 7T ° 8172021 F A R EH A FTE K
TR AEBI06HETT -

BINA AT HEA2021F5 A 12 B R ETHE -
RARERBBAEFIEFEE  BB@QIEBEBAER (b
BEUEMREBTHEOMSNE ROQ—BREE
B AE  MRHEITREE 24X A5 E 3R B

w2022 FFHATHE - EHE2022F 128318 &
12021 FRAIRBRESFMERBEFEEHEFHA -

BRaRE2HED2021 FRRES

RATEMN2023F8F18H KM 2023F9F15H
EeER2021 F Al IR E S M H 5B 1,271,456
f& 51,271,456 % f& 1 o bt - FE T 2 8 1% Al i
TR EITHH R () B2 40,751,789 i > &
38,208,877 /% °

RIE 2021 F A R E F 2 BRI - 720245
6118 AARBENREBHEL M ARITE2021
FrMREFBE T 2 A% (B16,010,256.41%7T) -
REFBRAEBASEREN -

FERA CRBEETRESR T2 B EEERHY
WA Bt EEERA CREEDHAAAAR
B SR BB 35 o

BIT2024F A AR ESH

AN E HE A2024%9 A26H %2024 10 A
SHMAESMHEE  SHFHS% ZEIE LT AR E
FH ([2024F AT E ) RE 218 ([2024 F AT 42
REAREBEE]) EHN2024F10 A8 A » A
%84 3,846,153.85 % 7T (B & 7 1 30,000,000 7T
(RERBEEISITHE1ETE  WNBEAAZE)N
HBEMNAL)) 2024 F R R EHF D IRIBEA A A&
I AR 2024F 9 A 26 HEJ LW A &1+ 1% (2024
FAIMBRESFREGZ D OERRIETRTTRE
A HBHOT

2024 EHHE TEOBSBBIERBERAR

59



60

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Principal Terms of the 2024 Convertible Bonds

Issuer: The Company

Subscriber: Giga Industries Limited, an investment holding
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and the subscriber to the 2024 CB
Subscription Agreement

Status: The 2024 Convertible Bonds constitute direct,
unconditional, unsubordinated, unguaranteed and
unsecured obligations of the Company and shall at
all times rank pari passu with all other present and
future unsecured, unguaranteed and unsubordinated
obligations of the Company.

Principal Amounts: US$3,846,153.85 (equivalent to HK$30,000,000 based
on an exchange rate of HK$7.8 to US$1 and rounded
off to two decimal places)

Subscription Price:  100% of the principal amount of US$3,846,153.85
(equivalent to HK$30,000,000 based on an exchange
rate of HK$7.8 to US$1 and rounded off to two
decimal places) in cash

Coupon: 5% per annum payable in every six calendar months

Maturity Date: The fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the 2024
Convertible Bonds or any such other date as mutually
agreed to in writing between, and shortened or
extended by, the Company and the Bondholder (the
“Maturity Date”).

Conversion Price

The initial Conversion Price of US$0.1923 (equivalent to HK$1.50 based on
the exchange rate of HK$7.8 to US$1 and rounded down to four decimal
places) per Conversion Share represented:

(i) no premium/discount over the closing price of HK$1.50 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 26 September 2024, being the date
of the 2024 CB Subscription Agreement; and

(i) no premium/discount over the average of the closing prices of HK$1.50
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five (5)
consecutive trading days immediately preceding 26 September 2024,
being the date of the 2024 CB Subscription Agreement.
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The net Conversion Price, after deduction of relevant expenses, is
approximately US$0.1917 (equivalent to approximately HK$1.495 based on
the exchange rate of HK$7.8 to US$1 and rounded down to four decimal
places) per Conversion Share. The Conversion Price was arrived at after arm’s
length negotiations between the Company and the Subscriber, taking into
account of, among others, the recent trading performance of the Shares. The
Directors considered that the Conversion Price and the terms and conditions
of the 2024 CB Subscription Agreement and the 2024 Convertible Bonds
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Subscriber of 2024 Convertible Bonds

The Subscriber is an investment holding company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, which is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Greater Bay Area Homeland Investments Limited (“GBAHIL").
GBAHIL is established as an investment platform with a focus on investing in
technological innovation, industrial upgrading, quality of life, smart city and
all other related industries.

GBAHIL is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability that
does not have single largest shareholders but is jointly owned by a number
of international large-scale industrial institutions, state-owned enterprises,
financial institutions and new economic enterprises. As at 8 October 2024,
the issue date of the 2024 Convertible Bonds, GBAHIL was held by ten
corporate shareholders, with seven corporate shareholders each holding
approximately 12.35% of the issued share capital of GBAHIL and three
corporate shareholders holding approximately 7.41%, 4.94% and 1.20%,
respectively, of the issued share capital of GBA Investments.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made
all reasonable enquiries, the Subscriber and its ultimate beneficial owner(s) are
Independent Third Parties.
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Reasons for and Benefits from the Issue of 2024 Convertible
Bonds

The Company provides global industry leaders with a wide range of services
in testing, and inspection, as well as technical and consulting services around
the clock, focusing on four key areas, namely commodity services, clean
energy, environmental protection and climate change. Relying on its global
networks, the Company meets the one-stop service needs of global customers
in a timely and high-quality manner, empowering global industry leaders to
achieve eco-friendly and low-carbon transformation.

The Subscriber’s interest in making an investment into the Group reflects
its confidence in the Group’s business and growth potential. The Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) were of the view that the
raising of funds by the issue of the 2024 Convertible Bonds would enhance
the Group’s capital structure and liquidity, strengthen the Group’s financial
position, broaden the capital base of the Group and to finance the Group’s
future development and expansion.

The Directors considered that the issue of the 2024 Convertible Bonds was
an effective means of raising additional capital since (i) it would not have an
immediate dilution effect on the shareholding of the existing Shareholders;
and (ii) in the event that the 2024 Convertible Bonds were converted into
Shares, the Company could broaden its capital base, benefiting the long-term
development of the Company.

Use of Proceeds from the Issue of the 2024 Convertible
Bonds

The gross proceeds of the 2024 CB Subscription were approximately
US$3,846,153.85 (equivalent to HK$30,000,000). The net proceeds
from the issue of the 2024 Convertible Bonds would be approximately
US$3,833,333.33 (equivalent to HK$29,900,000) (the “Net Proceeds”). The
Net Proceeds would enhance the Group’s financial strength for deployment
in environmental, social and governance (“ESG") business expansion and
overseas expansion of the Group with details set forth below:

(1) ESG business expansion:

Embracing the business philosophy of long-term vision, the Company
firmly implemented the “ESG development strategy”, and continued
to enhance the professional service capability in ESG-related fields
and focuses on potential investment opportunities. The Company
intended to use the net proceeds to speed up the investment plans
in line with the Group’s ESG strategy, focusing on potential mergers
and acquisitions targets and investment opportunities with green,
low-carbon and sustainable growth potential and further aligned the
new businesses with key energy development strategies, such as the
construction of new power systems, clean development mechanisms,
the achievement of carbon neutrality, and other major energy
development strategies.
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Overseas expansion: (2) BEIRREER:
The Company’s international expansion had achieved remarkable RAREBR A ERKREZE - BINTISFA
results, with outstanding performance in overseas market development EELER 2024 F LFFHINIABESIE -
and continuous increase in overseas revenue in the first half year of ERGIMERAMKINE R - A REFERE
2024. Based on the successful experience in overseas expansion, the BEREE NS E— P RERESER
Company continued to focus on potential high-quality targets to M ERETEE - FMe2REHRERE Tl
further expanded service offerings and network coverage, deepening XBHERE - AAREEAMERIBFEE—
the globalized layout and diversified business expansion. The Company FEREGINERNTISHE RIEZHHE
intended to use the net proceeds to further explore the vast overseas MiZERMABROENES SEBEBR(R
market opportunities, seized the tremendous opportunities brought BREES E—SRABMEEETPOMR
by the blossoming development of the global emerging markets, TEe T o R AR ERE X2 BN - B &
strengthen the advantages of the global presences, and enhance its REMIGHERS  EFEIAN]ED
ability to serve international leading customers. The Company would ERRME  REBARREMRIBED D -
actively seek mergers and acquisitions opportunities in the global
testing, inspection and certification market, leverage our advantage
of unique mergers and acquisitions approach, and enhance synergies,
providing sustainable momentum for business expansion.
It is expected that the business plans set forth above would empower TEH P BB R ARE A FEER
the Group's sustainable and green development, create more profit GEZERITHIBE  AlEFZFHERE
drivers, and lay a solid cornerstone for the Group's future growth, RAEBERENERE N  FRMARRS
thereby creating better returns for Shareholders. The Directors RELFHIEIR - EZRB2024F A RREFH
considered that the terms of the 2024 CB Subscription Agreement were REBENER AR RAFTHARBALAT
arrived at arm’s length negotiations between the Company and the EERES  HETHETRS (BFEERE)
Subscriber, and the transactions contemplated thereunder (including BAFEE - AFEARF KRR = -
the Conversion Price) are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 8 October 2024, HINA AT BHEIA2024F10 A8 B Z AEFT
set forth below the breakdown and the expected timeline of the use of WE - TXEHINEBREFRBFERAS ZH
the Net Proceeds in this regard: 41 R TE R R
Approximate
Allocation percentage Expected timeline
Intended use of of the to the total of utilising
the Net Proceeds Net Proceeds Net Proceeds the Net Proceeds
RS RIE HEFRBENRE AHBRAMENRE
FBREREZRERE FHEZOE FEZHEAESL FEIRBEX
(HK$ million)
(B EET)
(i) Capital expenditure 15.0 50.2% 30 September 2025
EENGET 202549 A30H
(ii) Business expansion 10.0 33.4% 30 September 2025
¥k 202549 A30H
(iii) General working capital 4.9 16.4% 30 September 2025
—REEES 202549 A30H
Total 29.9 100.0%
et
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The table below sets out details of the use of the proceeds of the 2024

CB Subscription as at 31 December 2024:

TR EHR2024F12 A31 B 2024 0] # % &
SFRBEHEAEREARFE

Actual utilised

Planned amount during Unutilised
Intended use of use of the year ended balance as at
the Net Proceeds proceeds 31 December 2024 31 December 2024
BZE20245F R2024 5
FRERRIE 12A31BLEE 12A31H
FEREREZRERR STERAR EREHRAERE RE) AR
(HK$ million)
(B EHET)
(i) Capital expenditure 15.0 15.0 -
BRI X
(i) Business expansion 10.0 6.2 3.8
¥BHE
(iii) General working capital 4.9 4.2 0.7
—REEES
Total 29.9 25.4 4.5
Bt

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year, other than the Convertible Bonds, the Share Option Scheme
and the Share Award Scheme as set out in the sections headed “Convertible
Bonds”, “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” Notes 26, 29
and 30 to the consolidated financial statements respectively, the Company
did not enter into any equity-linked agreement or subsisted at the end of the
year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environmental protection
and has not noted any material non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. During the production process,
the Group has implemented environmental protection measures, including
procedures related to energy use control, waste water and waste air discharge
management. Details are discussed in the ESG Report of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

We uphold high standards and meet relevant requirements under applicable
laws or ordinances when conducting our business.
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For the year, the Company was in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on the Company in all material
respects.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company repurchased a
total of 6,504,000 of its Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$12,982,560 (exclude expenses). All these
repurchased Shares were cancelled subsequently after the year end date.
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FrigE A ££6,504,000 81 - BRELH BB
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Details of the repurchase are summarised as follows: BOEFESANT
Aggregate
Number of Price per Share consideration
Shares BRE® paid (exclude
Month Af repurchased Highest Lowest expenses)
2fRBaRE
BOROEHE BS 5313 (REHX)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BB BT
December 2024 2024 12 A 6,504,000 2.15 1.89 12,982,560

The repurchase of the Shares was effected by the Board pursuant to the
mandate granted by the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting held on 18 June 2024.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2024.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 160 to 161 of this annual report and Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company'’s distributable reserves were HK$35.6
million.

DONATIONS

During the year, the total charitable donation of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$872,000.
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BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, directors of the
Company were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli

Ms. ZHANG Aiying
Mr. LIU Yi

Mr. YANG Rongbing

Non-Executive Director

Mr. HAOQ Yilei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 7 to 13 in the section
headed “Profile of Directors” in this annual report. Senior management refers
to our Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election or election at the forthcoming
AGM had any service contract with our Company or any of our subsidiaries,
other than contracts expiring or determinable by the employer, which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-
executive Directors for the year 2024 and the Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

We offer our executive Directors and senior management members, who
are also employees of our Company, emolument in the form of salaries,
allowances, remuneration, pension, discretionary bonus and other welfares.
Our non-executive Director does not receive any emolument from our Group.
Our independent non-executive Directors receive emolument in the form
of director’s fee based on their responsibilities (including being members
or chairman of Board committees). Each of the independent non-executive
Directors received a director’s fee of HK$100,000 per annum. We adopt a
market and incentive-based employee emolument structure and implement
a multi-layered evaluation system which focuses on performance and
management goals.

The remuneration (including fees, salaries and allowances, benefits,
performance related bonus, equity-settled shares-based payment expense,
pension scheme contributions and other welfares) paid to the Directors in
aggregate for the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately HK$9.4
million.

The remuneration (including salaries and allowances, benefits, performance
related bonus, equity-settled shares-based payment expense, pension
scheme contributions and other welfares) paid to our Group’s five highest
paid individuals in aggregate for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately HK$23.3 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, no emoluments were paid by our
Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the Directors had waived any emoluments for the year ended
31 December 2024.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme to motivate
Directors and employees. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this directors’ report and Note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Furthermore, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 27 October
2020 to motivate the Company’s middle and senior management, core
technological personnel and operations team. Details of the Share Award
Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Award Scheme” of this
directors’ report and Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments had been made or were
payable for the year ended 31 December 2024 by our Group to or on behalf
of any of the Directors.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles, every Director and other officers of
the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company from
liabilities which they may incur by reason of execution of their duties.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transactions” and
“Related Party Transactions” of this directors’ report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director was materially interested, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

Except otherwise disclosed in this annual report, during the year, none of the
Directors were considered to be interested in businesses which competed or
were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with our core businesses.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Reference is made to the non-competition undertakings given by the
Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company disclosed in the
Prospectus. The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed to the Company
that they have complied with the non-competition undertakings during the
year. The independent non-executive Directors have conducted such review
for the year, and also reviewed the relevant undertakings and are satisfied
that such undertakings have been complied with.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024

It 4N - FA20204F 10 B 27 B » AR 2 B B 49 B 17 22 B
SEUHMBARRZPESREERRE - ZOEMTAE
REBEH® BUERNDBETINFEHINLES
GWRE B EETE] — D REEMBHREM T
30 ¢

B EXATIREESN  EE2024F 12 A3 BILEE -
MEAAEEIRERTMEE M EMAEREA

R

AR RERX

RESRANE1NG ARFAEREETRAMS
BABBABERARTRABMAIEEENBBERR
RABETESRAE -

ARFCAAREEERERAEREEENES
RERABEERR -

EERNXRG  RERGENER

BRAEEERE WEXS | MBB IS &M
WEES  RERIFANEMREFIR - TEFEHAK
N HERARSENME QR % E RHE R FR
VHAKEXGEECAE S HESTERENE
BREPERIHEZREEEAEDNRS » THX

&R -

e

BAFERESEREEN  FRHEEFRR
BB ET EE R F R 8
0 T A M

THERE

BMERERARE  ERREAEADAZHEA
AT —HTHEES - RRBREEASARRR -
HERFA-EETRTBFRE - BUFRTE
FEEMAFE LT HREROERA BN
A UHRSEAROUTERRTHE -



PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Company are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the share option scheme
conditionally approved and adopted by written resolutions of our then
Shareholders on 5 May 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain and
motivate employees, Directors and such other participants and to
further perfect corporate governance structure, propel the Company
to build up and complete motivating mechanism, fully motivate
employees, and effectively help to align the interests of Shareholders,
Company and its employees by the grant of options.

Participants

The directors, officers and employees of any member of the Group as
determined by the Board from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue

The Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted under this Share Option Scheme (the
“Share Option(s)”) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of the
Shares in issue on the date where the refreshment of 10% limit (being
44,350,080 Shares) under the Share Option Scheme was approved
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 29 September 2021
and relevant listing approval was granted by the Stock Exchange on 4
October 2021.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares available
for issue/future grant under the Share Option Scheme is 44,350,080
shares, representing approximately 7.47% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The limit on the number of securities which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of the
relevant class of securities of the listed issuer in issue from time to time.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the Share Options granted to each participant under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Where any further grant
of options to an Eligible Employee would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to such Eligible
Employee (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue, such further grant must be separately approved by the
Shareholders at the general meeting with such Eligible Employee and
his/her close associates abstaining from voting.

Period within which the option may be exercised by
the grantee under the Scheme

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified
by the Board at the time of grant, such period shall not be longer than
10 years from the date upon which any particular option is granted in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

The vesting period of options granted under the
Scheme

Options may be vested over such period(s) as determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion subject to compliance with the requirements
under any applicable laws, regulations or rules to which the Share
Option Scheme may be subject, including the Listing Rules or
regulations of any stock exchange on which the Shares may be listed
and quoted. Furthermore, the Shares to be issued and allotted to a
Grantee pursuant to the exercise of any Option under the Share Option
Scheme may or may not, at the discretion of the Board, be subject to
any retention period.

Under the Listing Rules, except special circumstances, the vesting period
for the options shall be not less than 12 months.
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(vii) Amount payable on acceptance of the option and

period within which payments or calls must or may be
made or loans for such purposes must be repaid

RMB1.00 within 15 days from the date of grant.

(viii) Basis of determining the exercise price

(ix)

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion and notified to the Participant in the offer at the
time of the offer, and shall be no less than the highest of:

(@  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the
relevant Share Option, which must be a business day;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant Share Option; and

(¢)  the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the relevant
Share Option.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 5 May 2017, the date on which the Share Option
Scheme is conditionally adopted by resolution of our Shareholders, up
to 4 May 2027.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

(vii) REMBRERENHRERL AR

FREA RS E A AUBE A A R S
AR EENER

BRE AR 15 BANANARE1.007T

(viii) R T EE

(ix)

REBEERFHEFELRNBEELNELE
HBBEMELON2EE MAFERATS
BZ RS

@ EOERLHEBBEREASR(WERZ
ER)RBRAEMNERARERDAH
ST (E

(b) B ESZEEHEBEERER N AE
EERARBRAEMNEGHARERTA
S FHRTE - &

@ BROPEEBEERHEHANEEREE -

BRESENNGES

AR EET 2 8 2017F5 A58 (B2
ERFEAZREGHRMANBE) BEHREE
W BER10F  EE2027F5 848

2024 FEwE TEIBEBIERERAF

71



72

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

(x) Present status of the Share Option Scheme (x) HBRRRESHEIFAR
Movements in the share options during the year were as follows: REFTHEREZSIT

No. of Share Options*

BREHE*

Exercised Lapsed Exercise
As at during the during the As at price per

Date of grant Participant 1/1/2024 year year 31/12/2024 Share*  Exercise period

R2024 % rEE AEE R2024 %
REBH 28E 1818 2T BAX 128318 SBRITEE* TE8

(HK$)
(B¥T)

Other Employees

HittlE g

4172017 Employees (aggregate) 723,676 (723,676) - - 0.875  4/7/2019-3/7/2024
(Notes 1 &2) & (a5 2,670,554 (1,245,554) = 1,425,000 0.875  4/7/2020-3/7/2025
(M1 &2)

15/7/2021 Employees (aggregate) 8,704,740 (372,149) - 8,332,591 1.607  15/7/2022-14/7/12027
(Notes 4 &5) EE (&) 8,704,740 - - 8,704,740 1.607  15/7/2023-14/7/2028
(M4 R5) 11,606,320 - - 11,606,320 1.607  15/7/2024-14/7/2029

Subtotal

N 32,410,030 (2,341,379) - 30,068,651

Directors

=

15/7/2021 Mr. LI Xiangli, 1,597,200 - - 1,597,200 1.607  15/7/2022-14/7/2027
(Notes 4 & 5) executive Director 1,597,200 - - 1,597,200 1.607  15/7/2023-14/7/2028
GETY &) FRFILE  RITESF 2,129,600 - - 2,129,600 1607 15/7/2024-14/7/2029

15/7/2021 Ms. ZHANG Alying, 998,250 - - 998,250 1607 15/7/2022-14/7/2027
(Notes 4 &5) executive Director 998,250 - - 998,250 1607 15/7/2023-14/7/2028
GETYE) RERRL HOES 1,331,000 - - 1,331,000 1607 15/7/2024-14/7/2029

15/7/2021 Mr. LIUYi, 1,197,900 - - 1,197,900 1.607  15/7/2022-14/7/12027
(Notes 4 & 5) executive Director 1,197,900 - - 1,197,900 1607 15/7/2023-14/7/2028
GETYE)) MR E  RITES 1,597,200 - - 1,597,200 1607 15/7/2024-14/7/2029

23/7/12018 Mr. YANG Rongbing, 1,464,100 (1,464,100) - - 0.965  23/7/2019-22/7/2024
(Notes 1 & 3) executive Director 1,464,100 - - 1,464,100 0.965  23/7/2020-22/7/2025
GEINE) BRERE HOES

15/7/2021 Mr. YANG Rongbing, 1,397,550 - - 1,397,550 1.607  15/7/2022-14/7/2027
(Notes 4 & 5) executive Director 1,397,550 - - 1,397,550 1607 15/7/2023-14/7/2028
GETYE) BRESE BG5S 1,863,400 - - 1,863,400 1607  15/7/2024-14/7/2029

Subtotal

N 20,231,200 (1,464,100) - 18,767,100

Gross Total

Foh 52,641,230 (3,805,479) - 48,835,751

* as announced by the Company on 2 July 2024, the exercise price of the share * FAMARBN2024F7 B2 B A6 - BEHE
options granted and the number of Shares to be allotted and issued upon full FCHE B 77 165 {8 1o AR BT 0 8 By i R AT R BB A A
exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the then outstanding share PR R RS TREREITORMNEE
options were adjusted as a result of the 2024 Bonus Issue. 2024 FAT R FEITMEH T E ©
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Notes:

1. The above share options are either vested on the date of grant to two years or
vested in one to three years from the date of grant and are exercisable for a
period of five years commencing from the relevant vesting date and expiring at
the close of business on the last day of the five-year period.

2. The closing price of the Shares on 3 July 2017, being the business day

immediately before the date on which the options were granted, as quoted
on the Stock Exchange was HK$1.31 (before adjustments made as a result of
bonus issues over the years).

3. The closing price of the Shares on 20 July 2018, being the business day
immediately before the date on which the options were granted, as quoted
on the Stock Exchange was HK$1.40 (before adjustments made as a result of
bonus issues over the years).

4. Vesting condition of the share options are: (i) Not more than 30% of the
Share Options would be vested on 15 July 2022; not more than 30% of the
Share Options would be vested on 15 July 2023; and not more than 40% of
the Share Options would be vested on 15 July 2024. The Share Options are
exercisable for a period of five years commencing from the vesting date and
expiring at the close of business on the last day of the five year period.

5. The closing price of the Shares on 14 July 2021, being the business day
immediately before the date on which the options were granted, as quoted
on the Stock Exchange was HK$2.08 (before adjustments made as a result of
bonus issues over the years).

6. No options were granted, lapsed or cancelled during the year.

7. The number of options available for future grant under the scheme mandate of
the Share Option Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the year ended 31
December 2024 were both 44,350,080.

8. The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of the options granted and
vested under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2024 is 48,835,751 Shares, which when divided by 579,029,022 Shares
(i.e. the weighted average number of Shares of the Company in issue for the
year ended 31 December 2024) is 0.084341.

Other details of the share options under the Share Option Scheme,
including the fair value and the accounting standard and policy
adopted of the options granted, are set out in Notes 2 and 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
on 27 October 2020 (the “Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share
Award Scheme are to further improve the corporate governance structure and
long-term incentive programme, maintain mutually sustainable growth of the
Company and individuals, attract and retain excellent talents.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten (10) years
commencing on the Adoption Date up to 26 October 2030.

The eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme include the following
classes: (a) any employee and/or directors of any member of the Group or any
entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds any equity interest;
(b) any advisor (professional or otherwise), consultant to or expert in any area
of business or business development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (c) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of the Group.

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion, determine the
criteria for any eligible participants to participate in the Share Award Scheme
as award holders in accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme.
An award holder may be granted an award of Shares (the “Award Shares”).
The Award Shares to be granted under the Share Award Scheme are ordinary
shares (“Ordinary Shares”) in the capital of the Company. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 27 October 2020 for further details of
the Share Award Scheme.

The total number of Award Shares that could be granted by the Board under
the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the Adoption Date. Since certain Award Shares were
granted, as at the date of this annual report, 28,836,367 Shares remains
available for grant by the Board under the Share Award Scheme (representing
approximately 4.86% of the issued shares of the Company as at the date
of this annual report). The aforesaid limit may be refreshed or amended by
approval of the Shareholders in general meeting. The Company will not grant
any Award Shares under the Share Award Scheme which would result in the
total number of the Award Shares together with shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted but yet to be exercised
under the share option scheme or any other incentive or option schemes of
the Company representing in aggregate over 10% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of such grant.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024

% 10 2 B ot &
ARARH20204510 A27 B ([HR49 B 51 ) A AL 1D
$EET Sl ([AX 2@ ErE1]) - IRH REIETEIZ B/
BE—PEERNREEENRICHEIEST - 52
AAEIHEAEBFEERENIES R FREE
FAT o

BS (7 2E Bt 2 By B AR AE S - B AER 1 (10)
FEHEI30F10A26H  EEEEARTFIEME
lt °

Bt R BN A ER2EEREATEN @A
KEEAKBRAKE R B TMRENTIEE (1%
CEERDNWEMRER XEE () AEEER
BB AR IR E BRI EE R EH R A
MEMZAA (BREIEM)  BRLER: kOB
BRABLE FHEBMBEIHMEB LR AEE
BB R MR R B RS AT BE(E L BRI E (T B A
AR ERINSEE -

EFENITH2ERNBECANEGER2EERE
& 7 22 Eh =t B & 38 RIVE & 22BN B A2 B R 1) R
FTEIMAER o SR B AR ER R D (ELER) ([ 52
f&n 1) o IRIBAR (0 BN ET &S TR LA EENR K &
AR BRA A E @A ([EBAR]) - BRI 52
FFEIME —THE B2HA QT HEA2020F
10 B27 BHRIRE »

EZSREBRMEBTE TR ENERRGD B
TBBARNRAGNEMBE B EITRANI0% -
HRETRERMERE RAFEREHH -
28,836,367 RN AT EE S RBAR M ZERE &
EEE (ERAFEREBHARREEITRDL
486%) c FlIRREAAAREABRERNE LHESE
FRIER - AR RETSIRIE D BN 8% LT
o] SR ED AR 1 T 38 SR SR AR (0 i R AR IR BB AR A AT 81 3k
AR RETE A B sk B AR AT EIE R BB MR 1T
FRTA RITEEREEITERATEBRITHNRO A
FHEEAR L BB BTG A10% -



During the year ended 31 December 2024, aggregate of 13,986,800 shares
of the Company were purchased under the Scheme from the market at a total
consideration of approximately HK$22,167,000 (including directly attributable
incremental costs). A total number of 27,828,780 is held and available for
grant under the Scheme, representing approximately 4.6% of the total
number of issued shares as the date of this annual report.

The maximum number of Shares awarded by the Board to an eligible
participant under the Share Award Scheme in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of the award being granted shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue. The aforesaid limit may be
amended by approval of the Shareholders in general meeting.

The Award Shares shall vest in the eligible participant in accordance with the
timetable and conditions as imposed by the Board at its absolute discretion,
provided that all the vesting conditions are met and the eligible person
remains at all times after approval by the Board of the share award and on
the relevant vesting date(s) an eligible person.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of the share awards
granted under the share award scheme during year ended 31 December 2024
divided by the weighted average number of shares of the relevant class in
issue (excluding shares held for cancellation) for the year ended 31 December
2024 is 4.8%.
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BE2024F12A31BEFE - REBZFTEIABR
B475% 22,167,000 7T (B IEHE EIG S A A) 1
MiHEE 4 13,986,800 R A A E J& 0 - HH B
27,828,780k W A] AR L AT EIR T (G AR FH A A
EBITIRMNBEHL46% -

EXeREROBERFENEM2EAREEER
HEBRR(BEZA) MAERSEER TR
BB ETSEBARRADHITHRA1% - iR
BRI R A L HEE -

REEOREESFS2ERDBRENFRR RGNS
RENGERSEE MRIAEMARBHRTA
BEBALTGEESTSHAERN BBRENIEHRE
PR SAERAL

HZE2024F 12 A31 B IEFERNRER G EE S
BB BB AT AL ITRAR (D B B R LA B = 2024
F12A3MAIEFRBEITHEBERRG (TEESF
BEEHEBRG) WINEFHEA48% -
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Movements of the Award Shares under the Share Award Scheme for the year

HZE2024F12A3MHIEFE - RO EEGTEIET

ended 31 December 2024 are as follows: K EERAR (D BB AT -
Vested 58
(Note 4)
Number of Grant % (M=) Number of
Award Shares After After  Award Shares
Outstanding During  Adjustment During  Adjustment  Outstanding as
Participants Categories Participants Grant Date Vesting Date asat 1/1/2024 the Year  on 2/7/2024* the Year on2/7/2024*  at31/12/2024
R2021%E R2024E
1518 R202E R2024E 128318
GESHLL 7R2A 1R2R HATEN
SHEEER s8% RiBH FEBH RERHHE REE ElS EE B RBRGOEA
Directors
£
Mr. Li Xiangli 81412024 8/4/2024 (Note 3) - 300,000 330,000 (300,000) (330,000) -
FAMEE (Hzt3)
Mr. L Yi 8/412024 8/4/2024 (Note 3) - 250,000 275,000 (250,000) (275,000) -
A5 s (Mzt3)
Mr. Yang Rongbing 8/412024 8/4/2024 (Note 3) - 250,000 275,000 (250,000) (275,000) -
FRERE (Mr3E3)
Employees
&8
In aggregate 19172024 19/1/2024 (Note 3) - 448,000 492,800 (448,000) (492,800) -
GE (Hzt3)
In aggregate 8/412024 8/412024 (Note 3) - 650,000 715,000 (650,000) (715,000) -
aif (Mzt3)
Total
@it - 1,898,000 2,087,800 (1,898,000 (2,087,800) -
The five highest paid individuals
BEREHFHAL
Directors In aggregate 8/412024 8/412024 (Note 3) - 300,000 330,000 (300,000) (330,000) -
£ ait (KzE3)
* Adjusted number of Share Award as a result of the 2024 Bonus Issue. * FER 2024 AR BT A MNP EENELE -
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Notes:

1. The Award Shares were and will be transferred to the relevant participants at no
consideration upon satisfaction of the vesting conditions (if any).

2. The closing price of the Shares on 5 April 2024, being the business day immediately
before the date on which the awards were granted, as quoted on the Stock Exchange
was HK$1.44.

3. The Award Shares granted on 19 January 2024 and 8 April 2024 were vested on the
same day.

4. No awards were cancelled or lapsed during the Year.

Other details of the share awards under the Share Award Scheme, including
the fair value and the accounting standard and policy adopted of awards
granted, are set out in Notes 2 and 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or
subsisted during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the “Share Option Scheme” section and “Share
Award Scheme” section in this directors’ report and in Notes 29 and 30
to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the financial
year or at the end of the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
its holding company or the subsidiaries of its holding company a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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1. BEEONBBGRE (NE) ENREERE S EMEE
ETHERSEE -

2. R 20244 A5 H (BIEHERH R B HATEEH)
B FTETRIR T B RS 5 1.44 7T

3. M20245F 1 A19H %2024 4 A8 B #% &) SR A% 1H
REABERE -

4. F NSRBI A S B AR o

SR EETROEHNEMFE (BEQS
BELRRIDEMMIRBOSENRKE) SR
AIEHRERME2 %30

TP

EEAME

FAARBEARRARER I RTAEANRLD X
BOERRITR IR L RIFEEAAR -

EERERNIEEINLH

BAEES WG [BEERS ] RIMEEE =
AR ARG MR MRM T 29R30MBEIN - AR
A EAEMBERAR  HERARSKEZERARZ
B B 7 BB B B4R A ) B P B R R AR B A A 2 B
RIMAEMZH B EFHFULB AR QR HEAEM
H i #ehs 2 i) skt &5 o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

To the knowledge of the Board, as at 31 December 2024, the interests
and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (a)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (b) which were required, under Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to in that section, or (c) which were
required under the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Number of

Shares

(including

Award Shares)

Name of Directors Nature of interests (Note 1)

BRoOHA

(BRERBRSG)

EEHSE ERME (PfF7E1)

Mr. LI Xiangli Interests held jointly with 349,366,861 (L)

(Notes 2, 3 & 4) another person

ESEEY Pt HEMATHEFEOER

(352 ~ 3%4) Interests of a controlled
corporation

AR R

Interests of spouse

Ao B

Beneficial owner

BEmBAA

Ms. ZHANG Alying
(Notes 2, 4 & 5)

REEZT
(HisE2 - 4 %5)
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Interests held jointly with
another person

HEMATHEFEOER

Interests of a controlled
corporation

R EE RS

Interests of spouse

fic B e =

Beneficial owner

BB A

349,366,861 (L)

EERBSTBRAERROKEE
RO PERHER

MEESHMA P2024F12A318 EFEHAR
AIEEITHABRARQR IR ERE LR (TE
RAESREEIEOYEXVED) BRD - HERG &
BERFTRHEE @ BRE(EFRBEEI)EBEXVHBET
MESHMBANG AN B ZATHERIAR (B
ERE(EH RS GO BB E 1B G Al
BRESHAE)  ROBBE(EHFRAE KOS
352 (G BB R ZIEFTIE B e e suA B « 5(0)
RIE IR 2P RI) 78 A& 2N B R Bt 32 BT 0 48 2 800
BT :

Approximate
percentage

Number of to the issued
underlying share capital
shares/ the Company

share options Total (Note 9)
EARLT

ERITRAN

HERG, BREI L
BREHE a5t (3£ 9)
12,644,500 362,011,361 60.38%
12,644,500 362,011,361 60.38%



Number of
Shares
(including
Award Shares)
Name of Directors Nature of interests (Note 1)
R4 EE
(BREEBRS)
Esns EEME (BtzE1)
Mr. LIU Yi Interests held jointly with 349,366,861 (L)
(Notes 2 & 6) another person
2 5k 4 HEAM A T HEFEOER
(MF3E2 %2 6) Interests of a controlled

Mr. YANG Rongbing

corporation
XA E
Beneficial owner

BmBAA

Beneficial owner 8,622,983 (L)

HE g BEmEAA (Note 7)
(MHzE7)
Notes:

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares and underlying shares.
The breakdown is as follows:

There was a duplication of interests of 343,998,091 Shares among the respective
controlled corporation of each of Mr. LI Xiangli (217,757,533 Shares), Ms. ZHANG
Aiying (72,434,883 Shares) and Mr. LIU Yi (53,805,675 Shares).

There was a duplication of interests of 5,368,770 Award Shares among Mr. LI Xiangli
(3,171,080 Award Shares), Ms. ZHANG Aiying (585,640 Award Shares) and Mr. LIU Yi
(1,612,050 Award Shares).

There was a duplication of interests of 12,644,500 Share Options among Mr. LI Xiangli
(5,324,000 Share Options), Ms. ZHANG Aiying (3,327,500 Share Options) and Mr. LIU
Yi (3,993,000 Share Options).

On 31 January 2016, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Alying and Mr. LIU Yi entered into an
acting-in-concert deed to acknowledge and confirmed that they are parties acting in
concert in respect of each of the members of the Group during and since the three
years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 and continue after the date of the
deed. Pursuant to the deed, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi shall support Mr. LI
Xiangli's decisions on material matters in relation to the operation and management
of the Group by exercising their voting rights at the meetings of the Shareholders
and boards of the members of the Group in accordance with the decisions of Mr. LI
Xiangli. For details, please refer to the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Our Controlling Shareholders Acting in Concert” in the Prospectus. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi are deemed to be
interested in the Shares which are interested by each other.
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Approximate
percentage
Number of to the issued
underlying share capital
shares/ the Company
share options Total (Note 9)
LR NG|
2RITRAN
HERG, BRBETH
BREHE Bt (H$5E9)
12,644,500 362,011,361 60.38%
6,122,600 14,745,583 2.46%
(Note 8)
(FF5E8)
M5 -

(N

HXFEILUEZALTRERO RBBRNTOTRE -
AT

FmFIE (217,757,533 %) ~ R E H 4+ (72,434,883
&) K 2150 % 4 (53,805,6750%) & B HEX I EZEE
16 75 343,998,091 AR AZ 19 #E 25 ©

FmFEE (3,171,080 EZEN AR D) ~ SR B B4+
(585,640 % 52 E) A% 1) K& 2138 % 4 (1,612,050 % 22 ) ik
13) B A 5,368,770 X BRI AR (D HE2S -

2= F %6 4 (5,324,0000 B A #E) - REHEL £
(3,327,500 17 fif A ) Ko 2153 55 A (3,993,000 17 i i g )
EEHEE 12,644,500 BE R HE MR 25 o

M2016F1A31A  TEMEE RERLZ T REH
EEBT—BITHRY  RAVHRRALEEEKER
AIEEMmM S ENE E20134F 20144 K 2015F12 A
BAL=EAFEHHAEEZ=EAFENARERZER
WBRTRHBEEATEH AL - RERZY  RE
Hu+ B2 A ERKIET R G EERERAEE
KERRREREFEGH CTFERRELFZTAF
SEERMAEELEHEERNERETEMERSE - #/B
FLMHBREREHEERRENEER — — BB ER
MR —&0 - BIBCGEH RS - FTRFLE - K
FRAZTREMEEHEBARESABAEZNRMD P
HAEER
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Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding Limited (“Leon Investment”) is beneficially and
wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Leon Investment.

Ms. ZHANG Aiying is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli
and Ms. ZHANG Aiying are deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested
by each other.

Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited (“Swan Stone”) is beneficially and wholly-
owned by Ms. ZHANG Aiying. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. ZHANG Aiying is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Swan Stone.

Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited (“Hawk Flying”) is beneficially and wholly-
owned by Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LIU Yi is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Hawk Flying.

Included in total number of such Shares were 6,345,433 Shares beneficially owned by
Mr. YANG Rongbing and 2,277,550 Award Shares granted to Mr. YANG Rongbing
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

Such Share Options consists of (a) 1,464,100 Share Options, each entitles its holder
to subscribe for one Share, granted to Mr. YANG Rongbing on 23 July 2018; and (b)
4,658,500 Share Options, each entitles its holder to subscribe for one Share, granted
to him on 15 July 2021.

The percentage interests were calculated based on the issued share capital of the
Company of 599,599,579 on 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31
December 2024, there were no interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required,
under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to in
that section, or were required under the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024

(3)  Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding Limited (fLeon
Investment)) BFE MRS A B R 2 EHS  RIFGE
REE G - RS A AR B 5 Leon Investment T
AR P ER R -

@)  RERLZIA/FAMEENES REGEFRIEK
By FRAMEERNRERLZTIRAANEERARS
BV P A RS o

(5) Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited ([ Swan Stone )
HREELTERR2ERA - REBEC(GEFRBPEK
By + RE WL T 418 B Swan Stone AT A 1 iR 15
B -

(6)  Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited ([ Hawk Flying |)
HRAMEEERREZEER - BIB(EHFRBEEO) -
2P 5T A AR A H Hawk Flying FT5 A FORK (D PG S -

(7) ZEBRNBHEREHGE A ET & HEA /6,345,433
AR - U RBEBERODEEBAEABE THEELEN
2,277,550 & 2R A1) ©

(8) ZESEBEEIEQMNR2018F7ABARTIHBLLLEE
#) 1,464,100 D A HE (S B T HIZ A ARE —RERG
ZHEF) K (b)FA 202147 A 15 HAER T 1 4,658,500
MHERE(SEETEREARB—RRGOZEF) -

(9) DR TIREAR TR 202412 A31 BEETHK
$599,599,579H;<H%’m+ﬁ o

B EXHBEBREEIINRRESRM - 712024512
A31H BMEEERARAESTRAERERT
S EAT AR AR (FE RC(GEFHRBRE KRN EXV
)G - REROREREEPERREGE %%&
HIEEHI) EXVELE TR ES D EBAME KA

BRreEm AR (BREREGE %&Hﬂi‘fﬂmﬁw
B B 1% Y%ﬁ“ﬁ?&%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁ% SEOXE) AR
BCE H LA E G0 B 352 R AE RN Z G PTiEE
%EHHE’]TZE** KRB HRBE(FRETRDAME AR

R X PR R SRR e



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN THE
SHARES

So far as the Directors are aware, as of 31 December 2024, the following
corporations/persons (other than Directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests of 5% or more in the issued Shares or underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO (the “Register”):

Name of Shareholders Nature of interests
BRHR BB EEME

Ms. WEI Yajuan (Note 2) Interests of spouse
AR LT (FFE2) B S =

Leon Investment (Note 3) Beneficial owner
Leon Investment (Ffi5E 3) EmEA A

Swan Stone (Note 4) Beneficial owner
Swan Stone (Fi3F4) EmEAa A

Hawk Flying (Note 5) Beneficial owner
Hawk Flying (F#E5) EmEEA
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FERRRROFPETNES

MEEAH - BE2024F 128318 FF2QFA
T (BEERARAESITERAERIN REEITRMD
SR P A R IE(GESH R E KRG B XVEL
F2REIDHOEBERAARNRRI MBI R
KARNTRB(GELRAEKRI)FI6CIKETEE
R E A ([ &M ) ATAC 8 A 5% sl A 4 -

Approximate

percentage

to the issued

Number of share capital
Shares of the Company

R YN

EEITRAN

ROEE BREDL

(Note 1) (Note 8)

(FEE1) (3£ 8)
362,011,361 (L)* 60.38%
217,757,533 (L)* 36.32%
72,434,883 (L)* 12.08%
53,805,675 (L)* 8.97%
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Name of Shareholders Nature of interests

BREREEEB ERME

China Certification & Inspection Group Interests of a controlled corporation
Co., Ltd. (“CCIC") (Notes 6 & 7)
iR RE (RE) BRAA

(ThElmEREEE]) (HE6 & 7)

XA E S

China Inspection Company Limited (“CIC") Interests of a controlled corporation
(Notes 6 & 7)
hERBRARAR ([FRAR) (HEek7) SR iE#ER

China Dragon Inspection & Certification (H.K.) Beneficial owner

Approximate
percentage
to the issued

Number of share capital
Shares of the Company

R N

ERFRAN

KROEAE BHES L

(Note 1) (Note 8)
(BFEET) (3£ 8)
66,366,322 (L)** 11.07%
66,366,322 (L)** 11.07%
66,366,322 (L)** 11.07%

Limited (“China Dragon”) (Notes 6 & 7)

ERBRRAE(FR)ERAB(FED BEmEAA
(PHEE6 % 7)
Notes: YPEE -
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. 1) BXFRLIEZATRBEORHETA -
(2) Ms. WEI Yajuan is the spouse of Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. WEI Yajuan is () BEELT 2 PEENEE BIE(BZARBEE

deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Mr. LIU Yi.

The breakdown is as follows:

There was a duplication of interests of 343,998,091 Shares among Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms.
ZHANG Alying, Mr. LIU Yi, Ms. WEI Yajuan, Leon Investment, Swan Stone and Hawk
Flying. Of these Shares, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi and Ms. WEI
Yajuan were deemed interested in the 217,757,533 Shares (held by Leon Investment),
72,434,883 Shares (held by Swan Stone) and 53,805,675 Shares (held by Hawk Flying),
respectively.

There was a duplication of interests of 5,368,770 Award Shares among Mr. LI Xiangli,
Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi and Ms. WEI Yajuan. Of these Award Shares, Mr. LI
Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi and Ms. WEI Yajuan were deemed interested in
the 3,171,080 Award Shares (held by Mr. LI Xiangli), 585,640 Award Shares (held by
Ms. ZHANG Aiying) and 1,612,050 Award Shares (held by LIU Yi) respectively.

There was a duplication of interests of 12,644,500 Shares Options among Mr. LI
Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU YI and Ms. WEI Yajuan. Of these Shares Options,
Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi and Ms. WEI Yajuan were deemed
interested in the 5,324,000 Shares Options (held by Mr. LI Xiangli), 3,327,500 Shares
Options (held by Ms. ZHANG Aiying) and 3,993,000 Shares Options (held by Mr. LIU Yi)
respectively.
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1Y+ B 98 20+ R 28 0 B RSk A A M OB
A -

B4 T

FafaE RERLZL - BPiE BEHEHLL -
Leon Investment * Swan Stone }& Hawk FlyingE & # &
343,998,091 R DMz - RZZERMH F - TRFI%
£ REBEL L - RIS R IR Z 348 B Leon
Investment * Swan Stone } Hawk Flying % 3l FT 4% & 1
217,757,533 B {5 -~ 72,434,883 1% % 1 % 53,805,675
A& A&7 AR A s o

FHFASLE  RERLZLT 2IMEERBREELTES
45 5,368,770 IR SBENAZ (5 M) 25 o MRS IREIRMD R -
FEFALE  RERL LT - 2L ERBEEL WS
B RIR3,171,080 REE R D (BERFEERFF) -
585,640 % B2 AR 19 (SR B R 2 T #54F) K& 1,612,050
AREZEAR (D (FRBINEEHA) PHEA R -

FEALE  REHELT 2IMEERBREELTEE
BB 12,644,500 EREMNEZ - RZSHEREH -
FRFLEE RERLZLT ZIPEERBREBL LW
R AD RIR5,324,0001 AR #E (RFRFIEERFE) -
3,327,500 17 f B i (FRSR B A& +454) & 3,993,000 1)
BERRIE (RBIMEERFE) PR -



(3) Leon Investment is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Leon Investment.

(4) Swan Stone is beneficially and wholly-owned by Ms. ZHANG Aiying. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. ZHANG Aiying is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Swan Stone.

(5) Hawk Flying is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
LIU Yi is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Hawk Flying.

(6) China Dragon is a 100% owned subsidiary of CIC, which is a 100% owned subsidiary
of CCIC. By virtue of the SFO, CIC and CCIC are deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by China Dragon.

(7) There was a duplication of interests of 66,366,322 Shares among China Dragon, CIC
and CCIC.

(8) The percentage interests were calculated based on the issued share capital of the
Company of 599,599,579 on 31 December 2024.

* The Shares interests are pursuant to the notification forms received by the Company
and recorded in the Register.

xx The number of shares of the Company held by China Dragon as at 31 December 2024
has been agreed with China Dragon and the record received by the Company.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at
31 December 2024, no other persons (other than the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company) owned interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO or interests or short positions
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and as far as
the Directors are aware, as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
this annual report, at least 25% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company is held by the public pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws
of the Cayman Islands (being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated), which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the Shareholders by
reason of their holding of the Shares.
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(3) Leon Investment A XML EERSE L EEHE o RIF(GE
F RAFE GG + Z M F %k £ 315 AR Leon Investment
s Am RO RS -

(4) Swan Stone ARE R LT ERZ L E2EHE - RIE(GES
LEEEG) - RER L WK AR Swan Stone fTiFH
RIRID P HER RS ©

(5)  Hawk Fiying B EAERREZEHE - REB(GEFR
HERG) - B9 55 £ BAR B Hawk Flying BT #5 B B A%
DA -

(6 FEATRAF (ATERBIBELEAE 100% 5
BB AR A 100% HEHHTE AR - RIE(GEFX
HEGHD  FRARRTEBRBRBEEERESNT
EARANBRD T RAES

N PE PRARNRTERBRABZEEELAA
66,366,322 IR AR (5 ##E &5 o

(8 BALERDNBEARFRN2024F12A31AEETR
78599,599,579 IR IR A 5t & ©

* [t 22 THAR R AR X B P UL B B AR AR W B RC M i

o M2024F 12 A3 BHERBOHERFRMHEE 24 F
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The customer base of the Company mainly consists of global giants and
industry leaders, covering a wider range of industries which include energy
and cleaning energy, commodity, environmental protection and carbon
neutrality services etc. Our suppliers mainly include equipment suppliers and
landlords.

In the year under review, the Group's five largest customers combined
accounted for less than 31% respectively of the Group’s total revenue.

In the year under review, the Group's five largest suppliers combined
accounted for less than 15% respectively of the Group’s total cost of sales.

None of the Directors, their close associates or Shareholders (which to the
knowledge of directors own more than 5% of the total number of issued
Shares) had any interest in the five largest customers or five largest suppliers
of the Group during the year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Other than the financial risk management objectives and policies as disclosed
in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, some significant risks and
uncertainties affecting the Group are outlined below. They are not exhaustive
and there may be other additional risks and uncertainties which are now
unknown or immaterial to the Group but could become material in future.

Our business and operations involve certain risks and uncertainties, many of
which are beyond our control. Management oversees the risks and mitigate
them by implementing robust business processes. These risks can be broadly
categorized as (1) business and industry risk; (2) economic and political risk; (3)
financial risk; (4) people risk; and (5) operational risk, as follows:

Business and Industry Risk

The Group depends on a limited number of customers for a substantial
portion of our revenue and may not be able to successfully maintain our
business relationship with these customers. Our expansion plans or future
acquisitions may entail certain risks and challenges.
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Economic and Political Risk

The economic, political and social conditions of regions we operate in
could affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Any
slowdown in the global economy may affect the demand for energy and
commodities and result in a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to discontinued or reduced preferential tax treatments,
interest rate, foreign currency in the normal course of business.

Operational Risk

The Group’s operations may be interrupted by the occurrence of unexpected
events like natural disasters, strikes, epidemics and occupational hazards that
may or may not be under the Group’s control.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Our business relationship with our customers has proven to be lasting. We
believe that impartial and high-quality testing and inspection are critically
important for our customers. To better serve the business needs from our
customers, we are dedicated to delivering reliable testing and inspection
services supported by quality control and operational measures consistent
with statutory and industrial standards, which are strictly followed by our
employees. In the meantime, we have an experienced sales and marketing
team in each of our service centers to better understand and serve the needs
of our customers.

We generally maintain a list of approved suppliers. We review this list on an
annual basis and consider whether any supplier should be removed or added.
In selecting a new supplier, we generally consider whether the supplier
candidate has passed the relevant quality authentication, obtained the
relevant production permit, and/or received favorable recommendations. We
typically maintain at least two suppliers for each type of our major equipment,
instruments or required services to minimize potential disruption of our
operation, maintain sourcing stability and secure competitive prices from
suppliers.
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EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had 3,374 (2023: 3,016) employees in
total. The Group’s employee compensation includes base salary, bonuses and
cash subsidies. Other agreed employee benefits includes pension scheme,
medical insurance, on-job training, education subsidy and other social
security and paid leaves stipulated under the relevant jurisdiction of places of
operation. The Company maintained good relationship with its employees.
Furthermore, the Company has adopted the share option scheme as well as
the share award scheme as the incentives to Directors and eligible employees.

As regards to the emolument policy of the employees of the Group,
in general, the Group determines employee compensation based on
each employee’s performance, qualifications, position and seniority.
The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and decided by the
remuneration committee and the Board respectively, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Details of the Group’s remuneration policy are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 37.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which were exempted from disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules. Details are disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Group was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2024 are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, of which certain of transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules but were exempted from disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules. Details are disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company repurchased a
total of 6,504,000 of its Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$12,982,560 (exclude expenses)
(HK$13,030,026 (include expenses)). All these repurchased Shares were
cancelled subsequently after the year end date.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company further
repurchased 4,180,000 of its Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$9,699,040 (exclude expenses). Out of
those repurchased Shares, 2,404,000 Shares of approximately HK$5,457,040
(exclude expenses) were cancelled up to the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other significant events after the
reporting period up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
of the Board in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee now comprises three members, namely Mr. LIU Hoi Keung
(chairman of the committee), Mr. WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong, all
being the independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has discussed with the management of the Group
and reviewed this annual report and the financial results of the Group for
the year. It also discussed with the management of the Group and reviewed
the financial controls, risk management and internal control system of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group which are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards for the year have

been audited by Ernst & Young (“EY"), the auditor of the Company.
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AUDITOR

The Board announced on 30 August 2022 that Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from 30 August
2022, and at the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has
resolved to appoint EY as the new auditor of the Company to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and EY was
re-appointed at the 2023 AGM.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
have been audited by EY, who will retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the 2025 AGM. Save as disclosed above, there have
been no other changes of independent auditor for the preceding three years.

THE PUBLICATION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on
the Company’s website at www.hk1586.com and the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Li Xiangli
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)
released by China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (“China Leon”, "“our
Group”, “the Group” and “we"), which aims to present the Group's policies,
management, practices and performance in the areas of environmental
protection, social responsibility and governance, including environmental
management, employee care and development, product and service quality,
sustainable supply chain, and community contribution. For more information
on corporate governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report

included in the 2024 Annual Report.

Reporting Scope

The reporting period is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 (the
“Reporting Period”). This Report covers the Group’s principal businesses,
including those in Greater China and overseas, and is consistent with the
scope of the 2024 Annual Report. All information disclosed in the Report is
derived from the Group’s official documents, internal data, statistical reports,
and stakeholder surveys. All amounts in the Report are expressed in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$) unless otherwise stated.

Reporting Guide

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Main Board
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“"HKEX"), as
well as the principles of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance, and Consistency
therein. The Group has considered the applicable reporting principles and the
results of the materiality assessment to determine the scope of disclosure in
the report. Details of the applicable reporting principles and the materiality
assessment are set out below under “Reporting Principles” and “1.3
Materiality Assessment” respectively. In addition, we consistently adhere
to the “comply or explain” principle to ensure full transparency of our ESG
practices.
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Reporting Principles

Materiality

EEM

Quantitative

Balance

i@

Consistency

—5iE

HEREA

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted a materiality assessment to identify and
prioritise significant environmental, social, and governance issues relating to the Group's
businesses and disclosed them accordingly in this report. Please refer to section 1.3 “Materiality
Assessment” for details.

EMERAN - REBETTE2MEEN G AUSSITEEEESEEBMSIEENRER -
HehEnsdd URARENETHREE - FBE2RF 1360 EEENME] -

We adhere to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide issued by HKEX and its
relevant preparation principles. We use quantitative methods to measure and disclose applicable
key performance indicators, and describe the scope of reporting. Please refer to the relevant
sections of the Report for the calculation methods and reference standards of quantitative data.
BB MBS R L RERREES UAREBGENER R8T EE
ENMFEERNERERIER UNBEHRELETTHA FHSCERAEFTERSIA
BAEFRARREHEEEE

This Report provides unbiased disclosure of sustainability performance, avoiding making
selections, omissions, or using presentation formats that may inappropriately bias the decisions or
judgments of Report readers.

RREHAFHEMRTET T RAENRE  Be 7T Al mEEERE R HEEET#E
ERENERE BRI -

The 2024 ESG Report was prepared using the same methodology as in previous years, which
allows for meaningful comparisons of ESG data.

2024 ESGHRERMEEFHEROIDERS  ERETRE L REAIERATETEES
YL #R o
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Access to the Report and Feedback

The Report is available online unless specific requests are received for a printed
version. Please access the Group's official website (http://Awww.leontest.com)
or the website of HKEX (http://www.hkexnews.hk) for an electronic copy.
The Report is available in both Chinese and English versions. The English
version shall prevail in case of any discrepancy between the two versions.
We highly value stakeholders’ opinions on this Report to further improve our
ESG performance. We welcome your views and suggestions via our website
(http://www.leontest.com).

BOARD STATEMENT

Reflecting on 2024, we have steadfastly advanced in a complex and volatile
market environment with our resilience and innovation, achieving significant
accomplishments in emerging market development and sustainable
development. The Group performed remarkably in international expansion,
and its performance has steadily improved. These notable achievements are
the result of the hard work of every employee and the trust and support of
our stakeholders.

The 29th United Nations Climate Change Conference (COP29) recently
concluded successfully in Baku, the capital of Azerbaijan. The Conference
provided an important opportunity for countries around the world to build
consensus, enhance climate ambition, and accelerate climate action. Notably,
during the Conference, the International Organization for Standardization
(ISO) published the world’s first international standard on ESG, ISO ESG IWA
48, Framework for Implementing Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) Principles. This landmark initiative reflects heightened global recognition
of ESG factor’ critical role in economic development, corporate operations,
and societal progress. It also enables ESG principles to be integrated more
systematically and consistently into global decision-making and actions.
This is highly consistent with our longstanding commitment to prioritizing
sustainable development and environmental protection in our operations and
strategic planning.
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RIS - ERERHRE

In 2024, we have introduced advanced technologies and intelligent platforms,
significantly improving the automation rate and processing efficiency of key
processes, and reducing energy and resource consumption. We have actively
participated in the formulation and revision of industry standards, promotion
of the standardization and growth of the testing and inspection industry,
and engagement in social welfare activities to demonstrate corporate
social responsibility. We continued to strengthen our global presence and
diversify our business operations, continuously enhance our “federal”
corporate governance model and talent-driven innovation, and aim to
establish an industry model with leading credibility and the highest degree of
internationalization among Testing, Inspection, and Certification (TIC) brands.

In the coming years, we will implement the concept of sustainable
development and embed it into our corporate strategy and daily operations.
We will proactively monitor market trends and capitalize on our strengths
in technology research and development, market expansion, and talent
management. We will plan strategically, innovate, and drive growth,
building a diversified and sustainable business model that creates value for
all stakeholders through high-quality and sustainable development. We
are committed to moving forward with confidence and determination,
collaborating with all employees and stakeholders to build a world-class TIC
enterprise.
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SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

A transparent and sound management system is the cornerstone of
a company’s sustainable development. Our Board of Directors (“the
Board”) has continuously prioritized ESG initiatives and led the Group
in fulfilling our social responsibilities, integrating sustainability practices
into corporate strategy and operations. The Board is fully responsible
for the strategy and planning of ESG-related matters through the
establishing a comprehensive sustainability management system. The
Board regularly reviews the progress of ESG issues and rigorously
evaluates progress toward the Group’s sustainable development
objectives to ensure that the Group’s business activities are closely
aligned with these objectives. This demonstrates our firm commitment
to fulfilling our social responsibilities and promoting environmental and
social sustainability.

1.1 Sustainability Management Structure

In order to promote the orderly development of sustainable
development in a comprehensive manner and ensure the efficient
implementation of relevant measures, the Group has established
a sound sustainable development management structure
centered on the Board of Directors and a three-tier management
mechanism with clearly defined functions and responsibilities at
the decision-making, management, and implementation levels.
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1.2

HERERERSE

To enhance ESG coordination, the Board of Directors has
established a dedicated ESG working group, which has
significantly facilitated information sharing, cooperation, and
collaboration between the Board and all relevant business units
and subsidiaries. This systematic management framework ensures
that the Group’s ESG-related matters are effectively managed and
that the Group steadily advances along its ESG path, balancing
economic, social, and environmental benefits.

Based on the management structure, the Board of Directors
is responsible for overseeing ESG-related matters, being full
responsible for ESG reporting. The Board closely monitors the
ESG team'’s sustainability efforts to accurately identify risks and
opportunities in the environmental, social, and governance areas
critical to the Group's strategic development, and formulate
sustainability strategies, targets and action plans aligned with the
Group's actual development.

The ESG working group comprises members from various
functional departments, subsidiaries, and business units, including
finance, human resources, and quality assurance. The primary
responsibilities of the ESG working group include reporting
significant issues to the Board, reviewing sustainability policies
and initiatives, and evaluating associated risks. These evaluations
enable the Board to develop relevant strategies, ensuring
effective communication between the Board, and subsidiaries,
and business units across regions.

Sustainability Management System

At the Group level, we have implemented a robust ESG
management framework and developed a range of ESG policies
to support the Group’s sustainable development, including
policies on corporate social responsibility, environmental
protection, employee rights, health and safety, information
security, anti-fraud and anti-bribery, and media engagement,
public participation, and charitable contributions. At the same
time, we encourage the Group’s subsidiaries and business units
to refine and formulate implementation procedures and work
plans tailored to their specific business contexts, geographical
characteristics, and market environments. This ensures that
policies are effectively implemented and contribute to the
Group’s ongoing progress toward sustainable development.
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We have established a robust risk management and internal
control system to address risks and opportunities in the Group'’s
operations. At the same time, we have implemented an internal
monitoring system to effectively manage ESG-related issues,
strategy effectiveness, goal achievement, and compliance. This
system ensures that our ESG commitments are integrated into
the Group’s governance framework and supports ESG integration
across all levels of the Group.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group attaches great importance to stakeholder relationship
management. To effectively strengthen close ties with our
stakeholders, we have actively established and expanded a variety
of communication channels and are committed to building a
diversified, stable, and efficient communication and feedback
system to ensure that we are able to promptly and accurately
understand the demands of various stakeholders and respond
promptly and positively. This approach helps us to improve our
sustainable development strategy, enhance our environmental,
social, and governance performance, and effectively mitigate the
risks associated with our operations.

Recognizing that the views and expectations of our stakeholders
have a significant impact on our operations and development,
we have strengthened effective communication with various
stakeholders, expanded daily and specialized communication
channels to fully understand stakeholder expectations and needs,
accepted stakeholder oversight, and invited them to participate
in materiality assessment. By fully considering key factors such
as relevance, degree of influence, and degree of dependence,
six groups of key stakeholders closely aligned with the Group’s
operations have been identified, namely: investors (shareholders),
employees, suppliers, customers, government agencies, and the
public. Detailed below are the stakeholders we have engaged
with, along with the respective channels of communication
employed to foster this two-way dialogue.
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Major stakeholders

FTEFRERAE

Investor (Shareholder)

KREE

Customers

Supplier

HrEm

Areas of concern

BEER

o Return on investment

o Business plans, growth and
development

3 Disclosure and transparency of

corporate information
. Sustainable development strategies

o  KREM®

o XEE - BRRER
o RAEMBERERE
o AIHBERERERER

o Provision of fair and high-quality
professional services

o Data security and customer privacy

. Customer feedback and
communication

e RHEQT EBE EENRYK

s HEBRLZEREFPILE

s EPRFBHER

o Economic growth

o Fair and transparent procurement
process

e REREK

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024

Communication means

BEAR

Annual general meeting

Interim, annual, and ESG reports
Results announcements

Official company website
Communication via investor mailbox
Corporate communication (e.g., letters or
circulars to investors)

BERFERE

REARFEwRE  ESGIRE

EENE

NSIN=WF s

REEHHAED
REBA(MBUREE BRI - BER)

Customer service centre

Daily operations, meetings, and
interactions

Customer visits

Service hotline and email feedback
BRI L

HEZE 2xKkEH
kS SE il

P 75 Z0 AR Ko BB A I £

Email & phone contact

Supplier access and evaluation

Daily operations, meetings, interactions,
and site visits

T 46 8 3 RN S REHE 4

GYEN-PNE =R

HEZE 2RkEHEMER
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Major stakeholders

FTEFNRERE

Employees

Public and Media

Government bodies

BT #E

Areas of concern

BEEE

Remuneration package and staff
welfare

Occupational health and work-safety
Career development

Corporate culture
S B RE IR
BERREREZE

BEER

PEXL

Support for development of
communities where we operate
Social and environmental protection
responsibilities
THEL ML EEE
HEeRRBRESE

Compliance with Listing Rules, and
other relevant laws and regulations
Corporate governance and risk
management

Corporate development and
economic benefits

Sustainable development strategies
By ER A RAERDER AR
PEERRRARER

IR RSB &

B 45 B R R

Communication means

BEAR

Performance evaluation
Regular training and activities
Internal system and email

Communication meetings in a democratic

way
1B R
RS I EE )
NEB R it N B4R
REABER

Corporate news release
Response to media enquiries
Press conferences and interviews
Community engagements
TR E M

Ol fE LB & 3

HE Mg HERGD

e

Compliance supervision and reports
Onsite inspection

Regular reports

Written replies to enquiries

BRERNEE
RGRE
EHHmE
EHMESH

2024 EHHE TEOBSBBIERBERAR
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1.4 Materiality Assessment

We have established a materiality assessment process that
aims to identify, assess and prioritize ESG issues by considering
both external factors, including stakeholder survey results, peer
disclosures, and the latest industry practices, and internal factors,
including the relevance and impact of issues on the Group’s
business via internal assessments. The Board of Directors reviews
and evaluates these identified issues to ensure that they are
appropriately considered in the Group's strategic and operational
decisions.

Materiality Assessment Process:

Identification ' Assgssment
& Bl a1

Identification

Identify 23 sustainable development issues of the Group based
on national macro-policies, current industry trends, business
development strategies and planning archives, combined with the
nature of the Group’s business, strategic planning and others,
and benchmarking with domestic and foreign peers.

Assessment

Identify the focus of internal stakeholders (employees) and
external stakeholders (investors, suppliers, customers) on various
sustainable development issues through questionnaire surveys,
assess the importance and conduct relevant analysis. A total of
120 valid questionnaires were collected.

Ranking

Based on the processing and review of the questionnaire results,
23 ESG issues were ranked according to their materiality to
external stakeholders and their materiality to the Group’s internal
business to create China Leon’s ESG material issues matrix in
2024, which was approved by the Board of Directors.
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Through the materiality assessment process described above, il EmE EMI BT - MK
we have successfully developed an ESG materiality matrix, VY TESGEZHHEERE - BEE—R
and the issues in the first quadrant of the matrix are of critical BHRHEESEEZEEE Bt ®
importance to the Group and are therefore given the highest EHMAIRE 2R EEME R
priority in the process of improving our ESG management and HBRPAHERNKELNMNE - #ARE
performance. While the issues in quadrants 2, 3 and 4 are now Z o B=RE KRR AR R IR R R
considered to be of medium or low priority, we have considered REFEFRESELIEFOEE  BR
these issues fully and are planning ahead so that, if they become MERELHELBZERERN AW
more material, the Group will be able to respond quickly and M2 BT ELMBgsamEER -
flexibly to adjust our management strategies to maintain our EEEMNREFHERE  #ABEK
competitiveness and resilience in sustainability. P EERE  RERMEAFEEE

REMHEFNMEREEN -

Medium materiality High materiality

hE2MH SE2E

® ®®

© o ® 00
° 23]

e balic

®
6
(<)
®

©

Impact on the evaluation and decision of stakeholders
HANEHEENEEN

Low materiality Medium materiality
REZE hEZM
Impact on the evaluation and decision of the Group
HEBEBNEEN
@ Environmental @ Social topics @ Governance topics
RIBERRE HEERE EREE
Materiality Matrix
EEMERE

2024 FEwE TEIBEBIERERAF
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RIS - ERERHRE

High Materiality Issues
SEEMEHE

6 Talent attraction and retention

AT RS E R A

8 Training and development
Aol BB R

9 Occupational health and safety
BREREZ S

11 Service quality and safety
fRsE S %2

12 Professional qualification and ethics

BXREEEBFRERT

13 Customer services and satisfaction

BEFREEREE

14 Customer privacy and data security
FEFRLEEEL S
20 Board governance

21 Compliance operation

BRgE

22 Anti-corruption
k&5

23 Business ethics and morality
BEICEEESEL

(@) The scores of Issue 4 and Issue 18 are equal

Medium Materiality Issues

Low Materiality Issues

PEEMHRE BREEMHRE

1 Waste management 3 Efficient use of raw materials/energy
REEYER R R BE IR = AUE R

2 Atmospheric emission 5 Green operation
KRR HEES

4 Climate change and carbon neutrality 16 Activities for public good

SR 41 ER B A e AR
Equal opportunities and rights
protection

FEHE EERRE

17 Intellectual property protection

FERE IR

Technological R&D and innovation
Rl 2% B AET

Employee benefits and welfare
BT HMERER

Risk management
[\ B B TR

Responsible procurement and
partnership
BEERBEBHSE

(a) FHBAFZEE 18T HER

(b)  The scores of Issue 6 and Issue 21 are equal (b) FEREGMZEE217HER
() The scores of Issue 14 and Issue 23 are equal (0 FEBE1ANMZE-E23FTHHER
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PRACTICE GREEN DEVELOPMENT

The Group always adheres to sustainable development, strictly complies
with relevant laws and regulations on environmental protection, and
implements the concept of green development in every detail of its
operations. In order to realize our development goal of creating an
environmentally friendly mode of operation, we have been actively
encouraging our subsidiaries to strengthen their environmental risk
management and strive to reduce the environmental footprint of their
operations. At the same time, the Group has established a “Green
Office Management System” to raise the environmental awareness
of our staff. The system focuses on the economical use of energy,
water, and other resources, from the energy-saving settings of office
equipment to the rational planning of daily water consumption, all of
which are regulated in detail. By creating a working environment that
is both comfortable and pleasant and meets environmental protection
requirements, the system promotes the harmonious symbiosis between
the Company and the environment, to realize the long-term vision of
sustainable development.

We strictly comply with relevant laws, regulations, standards, and
requirements. The necessary environmental monitoring equipment is
installed in all testing and identification laboratories to maintain high
environmental protection standards and achieve effective control of
the environmental impact of the experimental process. This initiative
is part of our commitment to environmental responsibility, which aims
to protect the environment, maintain ecological balance, and ensure
that our business operations do not have a negative impact on the
surrounding environment.

RIR - HERERBRE

BITRERRE

SERKBRFUHEER BREETRRER
EWHEBZERER  $REERETEED
EEEZNE —AAH - SERITERRE
EEANBERAEE RMEEZEBRTFAA
MSRRIREREIE  BHRDELBETH
RERT AR SEEZYTIHRERAE
EEHE]  REEINREREZ - % EA
B KEERNENER KR IRE
WETRER ERIA B AKNEEARE - HAF
AMOBRE BRLERTEEAXNTARRA
EROTERE  RECKERIFOHME K
£ BRAFEERORERS -

HPIBREETHRBDER ER  BEMES -
FrERAMETEREHNLRK T VENERE
ERRE URFERSNHRAEZE T
HERBEERENTE - E—8HEERM
BITRREEARN—& D §ERERE
MELRTE BREAMANEHEETEYH
AERBEKBEEE - 20245F B G
FHKR  KEXNER EHAFESGI004 &
BRFERETER -
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IRIE -

2.1

HERERERSE

The Group strictly complies with applicable environmental
laws and regulations promulgated by the governments of the
countries or regions in which the Group operates and which
have a significant impact on the Group’s operations. These laws
and regulations include the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Environmental Impact Assessment
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Energy Conservation
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law on the Prevention
and Control of Air Pollution of the People’s Republic of China,
the Law on the Promotion of Clean Production of the People’s
Republic of China, and the Environmental Protection and
Management Act on Energy Conservation and the Prevention
and Control of Air Pollution of the National Environmental
Agency (NEA) of Singapore, as well as all other applicable laws
and regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not have any non-compliance issues or complaints related to
environmental protection.

Climate Change Management

In the context of global efforts to combat climate change, the
management of climate change by companies as key players
in economic activity is of particular importance. The Group is
committed to fully integrating climate change mitigation and
adaptation into its strategic development planning, corporate
governance framework, comprehensive risk management system,
and day-to-day operational management. This aims to protect
the environment, reduce the adverse impacts of climate change,
enhance business sustainability, promote a positive corporate
image, and lay a more sustainable foundation for future
economic growth and social development.

The Group refers to the recommendations of the IFRS
Sustainability Disclosure Standard issued by the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD") and the
International Sustainability Standards Board (“ISSB”), and provides
disclosures at various levels, including governance, strategy, risk
management, and progress against targets and objectives.
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2.1.1 Governance

The Group has established a climate governance framework
based on a sustainable development management system
and initiated top-down climate change governance to
address the concerns of relevant parties on climate-
related issues. The Corporate Sustainability Management
Committee is responsible for reviewing the climate risk
management policy, the annual budget for climate matters,
and climate-related targets, supporting the implementation
of the above matters, tracking and monitoring the specific
progress of work in response to climate change, and
reporting to the Board of Directors on the risk response
strategy. The relevant departments of the Company
have integrated climate change risk management into
their daily work to further implement carbon reduction
plans and targets. In addition, we have adopted energy
efficiency, carbon emission intensity, and other relevant
performance indicators as key evaluation points of its
climate management work and incorporated them into
the compensation and incentive policies of the relevant
departments.

2.1.2 Strategy

Effectively identifying, evaluating, and managing climate-
related issues is critical to the continuity and sustainability
of our business. Based on the current development of the
Group's business, we have integrated climate change into
our strategic planning and future development, taking into
account the associated risks, actual and potential impacts,
and future opportunities. We have integrated short-term
climate risks and opportunities into the Group’s operational
and financial planning to ensure the Group’s resilience
and adaptability to climate change. For medium and long-
term climate risks and opportunities, we are analyzing
long-term trends and impact factors to integrate climate
considerations into our long-term strategic planning. This
demonstrates our strong commitment to sustainability and
our determination to proactively address climate change
risks and opportunities at every point in our business
strategy.

i

2.1.1
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RIE -HEREAR

Risk
Bk

Physical Risks
ERRE

Acute Risks: Extreme Weather

and Natural Disasters

SRR

Chronic Risks: Drought and
Rising Sea Levels

REER

wE

Bmm AR B AL

RS REE LA

Analysis
M

In the short term, extreme weather and
natural disasters such as heavy rainfall,
persistent heat, floods, and typhoons can
affect the Group's physical offices in several
locations around the world, especially the
areas near the coast where heavy rainfall is
frequent. It will affect the normal operation of
the Company and harm the health and safety
of employees.

REA - R BERR  KERES

BHARNERLEB B EEE R

ERNZERTHERRAYN LERER

BERERRBAENME - fﬂ%% %E
BEY FARBEEIMNERS

In the long term, chronic risks such as
drought and rising sea levels triggered by
climate change will also affect the regions
where the Group operates, and may affect
the sustainable development of its business
and damage the regional financial stability.

A RIRELEAERNER ﬁﬁ@
rHAERBiRERRBEYEHEEE

9 P 2 SR ﬁﬁTﬁﬁ?&ﬁE‘Jiﬁﬁ’Hﬂgﬁé
REBIZERSRBEL -
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Countermeasures

HE

Create a series of preventive and
protective measures, such as
“Mechanism for Identification and
Management of Environmental
Factors”, “Mechanism for Management
of Risks and Opportunities”,
and "Emergency Management
Mechanism”;

Provide heat protection subsidies;
Flexibly arrange to work from home.
HIE — RIITER RREEE - MR
RAZBZRNEERHE] [ K& #E
BT [ E IR

B 2R R
BATHEERMA -

Formulate the capital management
strategy with the primary goal of
safeguarding sustainable operations,
and adjust the capital structure by
considering changes in economic
conditions and related risks of the
underlying assets;

Make good use of innovative financial
instruments.

HRARESECLAEEZARNE

LEERE  EERLEMREEH LA
MEERRERABBEREE

EMEFERIA-
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Risk
Bk

Transition Risks

BHmE

Policies and Regulations on
“Carbon Peaking and
Carbon Neutrality”

[SE5R | HEBAOER

Technical Transformation

e R

Market Preference

MGl

Rl HBREA

Analysis
o

In order to participate in the global mitigation
against climate change, China has announced
an ambitious “carbon peaking and carbon
neutrality” goal, which will gradually promote
the transition of China’s energy structure and
require companies to conduct “low carbon”
operations. Companies that fail to follow
national and local laws and regulations or
formulate appropriate sustainability measures
may face significant operational pressures and
costs.

RBEZ2FEHREZLRY  TELMH

Tﬂﬁﬁﬂ%tﬁ/u (€ BiR BB E
HHEETEERERELER YERD

%Eﬁlﬁﬂ&ﬁﬂ@% bRIMAREERENE
SRR B AR 0 DA e K B8 ) E AR R 9
ARERRER ABARERNELE
FIBRRA -

If the Group, as a TIC service provider, fails to
shift to green technologies and low-carbon
products and services, it will consume more
energy and resources and lose part of the
market.

EB—RTNCITERB AR - IREBE K8
B 17 B NK BE R 4% & R T R IR E &
MIREEL  AlgENESERERARE
BB ERBHITE -

As more and more people embrace the
concept of environmental protection, the
market has a growing demand for low-
carbon and eco-friendly offerings, prefers
green technologies and green products, and
tends to pay high premiums for products
of companies with outstanding ESG
performance.
BERRELSREZAZBMES - mi5T
ﬁﬁﬁi}%ﬁ%%ijiﬁmﬁiﬁ CHBERIMER
REERMAGEER TRRRE H&
LRERKRBRENAAERS T ESEHE -

wE

Countermeasures

HE

J Take "ESG development strategy”
as the core development direction
of "3+X", development strategy,
increase investment in clean energy,
environmental protection, and climate
change business segments to cultivate
new profit growth points.

. K TESGEEH B E A [3+X ] BiEE X
/D%’*)Eﬁﬁ BINBRER  RER
ERRERECEBRREA - HEH
E’J*'J/Fzﬁi'a‘ﬁ%ﬁ

. Bolster technical innovation capability
and expand the talent pool related to
new business;

. Timely adjustment of business plans
and appropriate increase in financial
commitment.

o EMMEBBEALREE  RSRMm
BlxrEe )

. R HBEEBHE BEMEEER
Ao

. Strengthen sustainable development

governance and cultivate new profit
growth points;

. Maintain close communication with
customers to understand their needs in
a timely manner.

. MBETRERREA REFONE
R

. HEFRHBIEE REBRAM
MBS -
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RIS - ERERHRE

Risk
Bk

Corporate Reputation

Opportunity
BB

Products and services

opportunities: Shift in
consumer preferences

EGNRGRE  BHANE
ERIFHHE

Market opportunities: Access to
new markets

MGHE - ERm5

Analysis
2

The community is increasingly concerned
about issues related to climate change, and
negative information on climate change-
related matters about companies and
their suppliers could affect their corporate
reputation.

HERREREE(CEBHENBIEA
B AR RERERHERKE(CHER
BINBAERESTEHELERE -

Analysis
a2

o The development of energy transition,
renewable energy, and low-carbon
technologies, as well as the market
and customer demand for green
consumption, awareness, and behavior
changes;

o Domestic and international policies and
regulations pose higher demands on
enterprises for green and low-carbon
transformation;

o The growth in carbon asset
management and demand for low-
carbon products and services continues
to expand the business scale.

. BEREER - A A A AR AR IR B i Y
BER -UERTSNEFZEHES
k- BT AES

. B 7 1 A8 R R B K R R A0 4%
EERBEUEE TSN ER

. MEEER  KiIRERLRRBHRY
EREEBREFERKX

o Utilizing cutting-edge technology
to enhance business capabilities, as
well as environmental, social, and
governance brand performance;

o Collaborating with responsible
partners, initiating innovative initiatives
to expand our market share, seizing
the opportunity to enter new markets,
and attracting potential consumers.

. FRSRAENRMTELBES M
RE HeREARERE:

. HEBRENAERHEE  BERAN
B BEREMNTSMHE - MEHR
BEATS  REBEEES
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Countermeasures

HE

. Establish a sound environmental
management system;

o Communicate the Company's
environmental philosophy to
stakeholders;

J Monitor negative publicity on climate
change issues from companies and their
suppliers.

. BURPREERERER:

. RAEEEEES R ANRRES

. ERARRAHERERRE(CHE
HEERE -

Respond
HE

J Expanding into new business ventures
and exploring diversified development
directions;

. Keeping abreast of cutting-edge
technology and attracting outstanding
talents;

. Continuously optimizing services,
collaborating with customers and
business partners to address climate
change, and enhancing capabilities
related to carbon neutrality.

o MERWER HEZTLCERITM:

o ERFUARM - WAEFAT

o  HEBLRE BEPRBEBHHL
R FE S AR AL - 2T IR R AR BE O

ARG8T o

. Continually integrating these efforts
into our corporate development
strategy;

J Actively seek collaborations with
responsible partners;

. Consistently drive innovation to expand

our market presence, thereby ensuring
that our business maintains a leading
position in competitive markets.

. FERELENBARMOCEER
B

. EREREAEENAIERHENEGIE:

. BEEDAE  BAEMETS LM
B RMBEREMNEBERFH
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2.1.3 Risk Management

Climate-related risk management is integrated into the
Group’s comprehensive and scientific risk management
processes and is a core component of our ESG framework,
under the strict oversight of the Board of Directors. We
continuously identify and assess dynamic climate-related
risks and opportunities to ensure that our strategy is aligned
with the evolving needs of our stakeholders, including
investors, customers, and governments. The Group has
established a dedicated risk assessment team responsible
for identifying risks and opportunities in all business and
management activities, while ensuring compliance with our
Code of Business Conduct, policies, and legal standards.
Once potential risks are identified, we assess their potential
impact, analyze the specific factors influencing the risks,
and develop appropriate countermeasures. These measures
are then implemented, and their effectiveness is monitored
to ensure timely adjustments.

Risk Identification

[l 4l

Analysis of
} Risk Assessment POteg??alilrgpad
BB ET axiip-zca

FENER

Risk Assessment Process

R EERIE

Development of
Countermeasures Monitoring

T R E A
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CEZTENHRBREET  BHRE
HENRREEEMAEEL2ME -
BMEgrkEERiE TKAR
PIESGIRIBAE R MAZ LR EB 9 ©
e AP9 1 B 54k 51 A0 5T 44 B (R AR R
) Eh RE B AN B - AR F M
MEEEARESE BB
EFZHEERFTEHEENT R
SEKY T EPINRBRTEER
BEHSRE EBMEREEF
RIS FSERETHR
TIECFEEIT BER])  BUR ME
EEE. —BHFNLEBERRE -
B eFIEEBEZE DN
YERBRMNAEBRE UHTE
EMEYER ABREEELE
MEIESRIEL IR - AR RS2 o

Risk Response

ERRRREMR

2024 FEHE PE BB BIZEER A A

107



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIS - ERERHRE

2.1.4 Metrics and Targets

To fulfill our environmental responsibilities and achieve

sustainable development, the Group has developed a

series of targets and measures. In 2024, we have made the

following progress:

Items

EH BE

Environmental o
Management

BREE .

Emissions o

BER .

Climate Change o

TIRBC .

Targets

To improve environmental management,
continuously monitor the Group's
performance in carbon emissions, and
assess climate change risks in a timely
manner.

To continuously provide services and
products for sustainability.

To enhance employees’ green development
awareness and capabilities.

RARFERKE  SESNEEER
BRI EORE  REFERKERE(LDN
[ o
FERHEUBSERRESRERER -
BRBTHASERRIENEMMED

To improve vehicle purchase standards
and use efficiency, reduce the number of
vehicles, ensure that 100% of air pollutants
meet the standards, and constantly reduce
the emission intensity.
RABHRBEEREHURE R E
WEB - REANRIGTEMI00%HF AR
% TETRRIEHERERE -

To reduce the intensity of greenhouse
gas emissions (Scope 1 and 2) by 30% by
2030. (compared with 2020)

F2030F REREE (FHE 1 2) FEpea
EFR1K30% © (LA 2020 F A AL EE)
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214 EERBE
BBRITRREM BRAFES
& SREGIET R BEMNE
ME 0 20244 - B AIEUE T LA T #E
=

Progress in 2024
EE

In progress

o Monitored the Group's performance on
carbon emissions and evaluated the risks of
climate change;

o Implemented the “ESG development
strategy”, conducted the consulting services
on voluntary carbon emission reduction
project, and solar energy utilization
inspection and testing;

o Participate in the preparation of standards
and research projects related to GHG
emission reduction;

o Provided training on carbon emission
reduction.

TR
EEAEEERSER S ENRER - LFHE
RAlEEEHRER

o EITIESGRERR] - MR B EREIER
EESENCEE= SRt e v

o SHERE TR AR IRER I RR
BT

o FRBORERSE -

In progress

o 100% of air pollutants met the standards,
and the emission intensity declined by
17.78% compared with 2020.

o REBRMI0%NHAEE  FRAFER

2020 HEFT[F17.78% °

In progress

o Reduced the emission intensity of
greenhouse gases (Scope 1 and 2) by
15.70%. (compared with 2020)

. BERE(BE1 2)ERBRERE
15.70% © (LA 2020 4F A E )
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Items
HA

Energy

Water

KE R

Waste

BEY)

Targets

BE

To reduce energy intensity by 30% by 2030
and increase the proportion of renewable
electricity. (compared with 2020)

$12030%F - B FESR R R 30% - 2T
BESHEALLA - (PA2020 F AE%EF)

To reduce water use intensity by 30% by
2030 (compared with 2020)

220304 + A 7K38 E BE{E30% (542020
FREERF)

To properly dispose of 100% hazardous
waste, and continuously reduce the
intensity of hazardous waste discharged,;
to reduce the intensity of non-hazardous
waste discharged by 30% by 2030, and
ensure that the waste is properly recycled
and disposed of (compared with 2020).

100% ESEEMEERE  TEHRER
EREEYHNEE - 5120305 - EERE
BB R E BRIE30% - BERERZ W1
BB o (LA2020 F REESF)
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Progress in 2024

EE

In progress

. Reduced the energy intensity by 16.98%.
(compared with 2020)

1T
BEFESRE R 1£16.98% o (JA20205F A&
HEF)

In progress

J Reduced the water use intensity by 4.58%.
(compared with 2020)

HITH
FB7K 58 JZ & 1£.4.58% © (LA 2020 F /s £ %
F)

In progress

. Properly disposed of 100% of hazardous
wastes, and reduced the intensity of
hazardous wastes discharged by 13.90%
compared with 2020;

. Reduced the intensity of non-hazardous
wastes discharged by 11.81%, and achieved
the proper recycling and disposal (compared
with 2020)

HITH

o 100%EEMEEVEABRIE FEREER

W HE R OR 8 2020 F 1K 13.90%

s EZEERVIMBREREN8% EC
WA IREIER IR o (L2020 F REEF)
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2.2 Pollutant and Waste Management

The Group has always considered the management of pollutants
and waste as a core part of its sustainability strategy. We
recognize that effective pollution control and waste management
not only help protect the environment but are also essential
requirements for fulfilling our social responsibilities and
maintaining public safety. Through the implementation of a series
of innovative and efficient management measures, we strive
to minimize the impact of our operations on the environment
while ensuring compliance with stringent national environmental
protection requirements.

The bottom line of our environmental management is to handle
pollutants in a compliant manner and to meet emission standards.
We strictly comply with the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Solid Waste Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Pollution by Miscellaneous
Environmental Information, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, and
other relevant laws, regulations, and policies in our operations.

To strengthen emission management, we have developed
internal systems such as Standard Operating Procedures for
Waste Gas Treatment, Standard Operating Procedures for Waste
Water Treatment, Standard Operating Procedures for Hazardous
Waste Disposal, and Standard Operating Procedures for Waste
Disposal to specify the standard process for the disposal of
emissions and wastes in the course of operations. We formulated
the "Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection
Management Regulations” to clarify measures and requirements
for penetrating management at the enterprise and project
levels, strengthening evaluation, reward, and punishment, and
continuous improvement. We conducted process management
and supervision, took effective measures to control pollution and
waste generated during the inspection process, protected and
used resources efficiently, regularly inspected the implementation
and effectiveness of measures, and promptly corrected deviations.
At the same time, we set relevant waste reduction targets to
promote the continuous reduction of waste emissions.

In addition, as a TIC service provider, our operations do not cause
noise pollution. At the same time, our wastewater discharge
is limited to domestic sewage and is therefore not a focus for
disclosure in this report.
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2.2.1 KEISRYBERK

2.2.1 Air Pollutants Emissions

The Group's air emissions are mainly due to emissions
from vehicles during the transportation of samples, which
include nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides, and particulate
matter. The testing and identification services provided
to customers involve sample preparation and laboratory
testing, which may generate emissions and pollutants.
These emissions represent a small portion of the Group'’s
total pollutant emissions and are not a material disclosure
component in accordance with the materiality reporting
principles.

As part of our routine operations, we systematically collect
and efficiently filter the exhaust gases generated during
our testing services. This process ensures that the emission
of pollutants into the external environment is minimized,
thereby mitigating potential air quality impacts. We have
invested in environmental compliance and awareness,
environmental technology development, and the
construction and operation of environmental facilities. In
addition, we include environmental performance as a key
consideration when purchasing vehicles and equipment,
prioritizing those that are energy efficient and low in
emissions to reduce the environmental impact of our
operations at the source.

Performance Indicators of Exhaust Pollutant Emissions

%lmﬁﬁ}ikﬁﬁiﬁmﬁiﬁﬁ

BRERBETHER BFEA
%“ﬁ% m%ﬂ:%ﬂ%ﬁm% b=
FERENRONMETE RSB S K
BamEENMERERA - ATe
BB AT Y o 5 LR
MESBSREMFHAED TG
LHIAR - RiEHREEZERA
BRSO B TMERERMEAR

EERELETHP - FKAME A
HEW%@?’F%E?JFEE’UF“%L«TT%

A E R S BURIREE - 5 —
//\L%ﬂiﬁ§1%Tﬁﬁﬁﬁtﬁyﬁﬂ\aﬂiiﬁ
A i‘<<¢7<$ifimﬁ/ T3
FHeE RMEETHZER®
’EE’J‘ TEHM A EE(E

LIRE - ARREFLEERE
IRIE BT A 8 IR IR AR 2R e R AR AN
BITEHEETIRE LI &
MEBEERAMRHER - HRR
MEetER—HAEZENZERREE -
ﬁf‘ﬁ%)’éﬁﬁﬁéwfﬁiﬁi&lﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ
B ﬁéﬁ B ERAVEBEEHIRE
EI]E/Z

BRSZNFRERER

Performance  Percentage of

Units in 2024 total emissions

Frib B &

Category BHl By 2024 FEXK Lt 5l

Nitrogen oxides RE kg 4,358.26 91.13%

Sulphur oxides ﬁfﬁ%fb% kg 12.31 0.26%

Suspended OF KL T kg 412.02 8.61%

Total ,%@E kg 4,782.59 -

Emissions intensity PERaR = kg/million revenue 3.79 -
kg B EA

2024F EHE TEIBRBERERA
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2.2.2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions 222 BEREHER

The Group’s main sources of GHG emissions include: (i)
direct emissions from fuel combustion in mobile sources
(from vehicles) under Scope 1; (ii) indirect energy emissions
from electricity consumption under Scope 2; and (iii) other
indirect emissions (mainly from business travel and landfill
waste).

Under the serious situation of global climate change, it
has become our duty to actively respond to the challenge.
We have developed a comprehensive greenhouse gas
management system, including detailed greenhouse gas
inventory and reporting procedures. We have conducted
thorough analyses of various emission sources and
implemented a targeted series of effective emission
reduction measures to minimize our carbon footprint and
improve our environmental performance. The effectiveness
of these measures is detailed in the following sections,
which outline our efforts and achievements in reducing
greenhouse gas emissions. During the Reporting Period,
the Group's greenhouse gas emissions were as follows:

Performance Indicators of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

AEBHLRNBEEREHRER
HOREIE - () EBE T AR B R
MR CREHEW) EXNEE
B () BEE 2 REISMNBE EER
BE IR P R 5 DA R (i) L e P
BEm (o - A AR~ BEYIEIE
FREERE) o

EE2RRERBICHRETLET
ERELSKEBCKAHMELS
BHEE - -HMEIET —E2E
VEERBEERG BREFA
MAZEREBEEMRSEN - K
P B EHBRET TRADN
THEHHMEMRERT —RIER
B BEHE B DA S KR Z R
BER REREER - TXH
AN BE LR RO - Bt
BAER DR EREEERITEA
ME B AMEFE KR - W58
N RBIELENRERBHME
R

BERBHERERER

Performance  Percentage of

Units in 2024 total emissions

Frib B

Category Hhl B 2024 F & tt 4l

Scope 1 FE— tCO,e 3,295.68 27.62%

Scope 2 #;E= tCOe 8,635.83 72.38%

Scope 3 #HE= tCO,e 379.56 3.18%

Total BE tCO,e 12,311.07 -

Emissions intensity e = tCO,e/million revenue 9.75 -
Co,e/ BHBEA
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2.2.3 Waste Management

We adhere to the principle of “Reduction, Harmlessness,
and Resource Utilization” for solid waste and continue
to research and improve scientific and environmentally
friendly waste disposal solutions to continuously reduce
the impact of waste on the environment. The Group's
operations generate major hazardous samples, such as
petroleum waste, solvents, and acid/base waste, and major
non-hazardous wastes, such as paper waste.

In order to effectively handle hazardous waste, improve
the waste management system, and enhance recycling to
minimize the impact on the environment and public safety,
the Group has formulated “Safe Operation Management
Procedures” and “Rules for the Management of Hazardous
Waste”, whereby hazardous waste is collected, stored,
and classified for treatment by third-party companies with
appropriate qualifications; or non-hazardous waste is
uniformly disposed of by the Group at designated waste
collection points and recycled by third-party companies
in a systematic and scientific manner. Through the
implementation of these practices, we aim to ensure that
waste is handled in an environmentally sound manner
while continuously improving the efficiency of waste
recycling and utilization, thereby promoting the realization
of a circular economy.

Performance Indicators of Wastes Emissions

Emissions intensity

Category 5Bl

Hazardous wastes BEBREY Total
wmE
EWEE

Non-hazardous wastes EZ=FEEZEY) Total
FE

Emissions intensity

BEEE

RIR - HERERBRE

223 BRYER
BHHBFEREDREL  BE
£ BRIINRA TERRM
TENMBRERNEMEES R
SEEEEMINRENTE -
AEBEEBETELNIEA
EREMREO ARG RE
BEmEY EENTEEETEER

REREEBREY  TEED
EEGIE BB RA - &X
REMKRDHREMDR L 2H
FE EEBET(L2ETER
REMCEREDERAA)  ©
BREMBABHEEENSE =]
REWE RE - DHEREE: JF
el EEY m R B AR E N EY K
SRR -RE YABIBER
AIEETE - M2 BYH A - B
BELEHOEME R - RS EE
RABERBNEERIZERY
[F) B AT B 12 1= B2 32 4 e 13 g A )
MK - e E BB B o

BERMFERERER

Performance
Units in 2024
B 2024 FEXK

t 6.85
158

t/million revenue 0.01
tBEBA

t 601.19
WA

t/million revenue 0.48
t/BHBRA

2024 EHHE TEOBSBBIERBERAR
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2.3 Effective Resources Utilization

Effective resource utilization is critical to our sustainability
strategy, operational efficiency, and climate change mitigation
efforts. Resource conservation helps reduce resource
consumption and environmental pollution, minimizes production
costs, and contributes to a positive corporate image, in line
with stakeholders’ expectations for the Group’s sustainable
development. The Group continues to pay attention to the use
of energy and resources in all aspects of its operations and is
committed to improving the efficiency of energy and resource
use and practicing resource conservation.

During the Reporting Period, the main resources consumed
by the Group were purchased electricity, gasoline, diesel, and
water. As the Group rarely uses finished packaging, this indicator
is not disclosed in this Report. To achieve efficient use and
sustainable management of resources, we have implemented
a comprehensive set of management programs and processes.
These cover key areas such as energy consumption and water
use. We reduce energy and water consumption through the
use of advanced technologies and innovative solutions, while
improving production efficiency and reducing waste.

2.3.1 Energy Management

Electricity is a key source of energy for the Group’s day-
to-day operations, including lighting, air conditioning, and
the operation of equipment in offices and laboratories. In
order to use energy resources efficiently, the Group has
implemented a number of energy-saving measures. These
include implementing an efficient energy management
system, actively updating energy-saving equipment,
eliminating old equipment with high energy consumption,
selecting energy-saving electrical equipment and laboratory
instruments, and optimizing the lighting system, reducing
energy consumption and improving efficiency. In addition,
we have adopted power monitoring and timed shutdown
strategies for non-essential equipment, and laboratories
shut down auxiliary equipment during off-hours to reduce
standby power consumption, demonstrating our ongoing
commitment to energy conservation in our daily operations.
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Gasoline and diesel are used in the Group’s day-to-day
operations to collect samples on site at ports or customers’
premises and to transport samples to laboratories. \We have
implemented a number of measures to continuously reduce
gasoline and diesel consumption. Taking into account
factors such as traffic and road conditions, sampling
points, and laboratory locations, we optimize transport
routes and reduce mileage and driving time to reduce fuel
consumption and tailpipe emissions. At the same time, we
are actively promoting low-carbon and environmentally
friendly models. We are gradually increasing the proportion
of electric and hybrid vehicles in our fleet for short-distance
sampling and transportation, and reducing the frequency
of conventional fuel vehicles. In addition, we regularly
conduct comprehensive inspections and maintenance of
vehicles to ensure that they are always in optimal operating
condition and to improve fuel efficiency. We promote the
sharing of transportation resources, rationalize the planning
of distribution tasks, consolidate transportation needs, and
reduce the total number of vehicle trips, thereby reducing
overall emissions.

Performance Indicators of Energy Consumption

Category Hhl
Electricity %

Energy consumption intensity BERERE
Diesel oil L

Energy consumption intensity BEFERE
Unleaded gasoline mE
Energy consumption intensity BERERE
Total energy consumption BEEREEE
Total energy consumption intensity MR FERE

RIR - HERERBRE

EERERNBEELT  TBRMK
HEAREEANEFEMERS
RERA  URBEANEXTE
BE o RIFMET — RIIHE R
TEOR A UMM S ERE - Z
JE B 32 38 M8 B AR - R AR B AN
EREMNEFAR  LMARE
WA OB ITR BT R R
i ARERFEME RN - [
B - PR HEEERRER -
EREREMEHBES - M
BEENEHENREHNER
BB L) R D BT
BE SRR o e oh o RAPTIE TE B
HERETE2ERESMGEE  ®
REWMIGRERREETMRE
REMBEE - HMREERE
BREZ aBRAREER &
REHTH O ROEWHITEE
KM IEERPERE -

BEFCHEARIER

Performance
Units in 2024
B 2024 F &R
1,000 KWH 16,825.11
1,000 KWH/million revenue 13.32
1,000 KWH "B &I A
1,000 KWH 4,708.40
1,000 KWH/million revenue 3.73
1,000 KWH, & & 1A
1,000 KWH 7,836.97
1,000 KWH/million revenue 6.20
1,000 KWH "B &I A
1,000 KWH 29,370.48
1,000 KWH/million revenue 23.25

1,000 KWH,/& & Uz A

2024 EHHE TEOBSBBIERBERAR
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2.3.2 Water Resource Management 232 KERERE

We strictly adhere to the Water Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other laws and regulations to
conduct water management, and continue to improve the
efficiency of water resource utilization, while promoting
energy conservation and emission reduction. All of the
Group’s water is sourced from the municipal pipeline
network, and we strictly follow relevant regulations and
guidelines to achieve legal compliance in the acquisition
of water sources. Our water resources are mainly used for
laboratory testing, office, and domestic purposes. In order
to improve the efficiency of water resource use, we have
specifically formulated a comprehensive water conservation
policy and encourage employees to voluntarily adopt water
conservation measures.

To optimize water management, we have developed and
implemented a series of management policies throughout
the Group, including the Water Use Management Rules and
the Management Rules for Sewage Treatment and Daily
Monitoring. Our water management strategy emphasizes
the regular recording, monitoring, and analysis of water
consumption and the timely handling of irregularities.
Water waste and leakage are minimized through regular
recording and monitoring of water consumption by all
departments, as well as regular inspection, maintenance,
and, where necessary, replacement of old water fixtures
and defective pipes. In addition to system construction, we
also actively conduct publicity and education by posting
water conservation slogans in prominent places in the
office area, organizing regular water conservation publicity
and education activities, and holding water conservation
knowledge contests to raise all employees’ awareness of
water conservation.

Performance Indicators of Water Consumption

Category EHl
Water consumption RKE
Water consumption intensity Rk
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2.4 Green Operation

As a leading international inspection and testing organization,
we have always taken green development as a far-reaching and
long-term mission. We will continue our efforts to promote green
business and fulfill our social responsibility, and we will implement
this responsibility in every employee of the Company and in every
detail of our work. We will uphold the concept of green and
sustainable development, and through standardized processes
and a transparent management system, we will demonstrate to
the community our efforts and effectiveness in environmental
protection, and further enhance our corporate green image.

To raise employees’ awareness of environmental protection on all
fronts, the Group has formulated a series of systematic policies
such as the Green Office Management System, which focuses on
core issues such as resource recycling, waste disposal, and energy
conservation, and aims to create an environmentally friendly
and green office space for the Group to achieve green and low-
carbon operations. At the same time, we have also developed a
sustainable office logo that can be used in a variety of scenarios
to encourage our employees to actively practice a sustainable and
low-carbon lifestyle. A series of green actions have been planned
and implemented to stimulate employees’ enthusiasm and
initiative to participate in environmental protection and to create
a favorable atmosphere for all employees to participate in green
environmental protection.

2.4.1 Green Office

In the process of promoting a green office, we start from
multiple dimensions to enhance environmental awareness
and reduce energy consumption in all aspects. We
encourage our employees to turn off lights and electronic
devices when leaving the office, and maintain the room
air conditioning temperature at 26 T .We regulate the
registration of office supplies, improve the recycling of
office supplies, promote the use of double-sided printing
and recycled paper to reduce paper consumption, and
further promote the reduction of the use of disposable
items such as paper cups. In addition, we have actively
implemented online office operations to reduce the use
of paper documents by sending and receiving messages,
circulars, and instructions electronically, and promoted
the use of video and audio conferencing systems to
reduce energy consumption and carbon emissions
from unnecessary travel, and to promote the efficient
conservation and use of resources.

I%
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2.4.2

In terms of facility operations, the Group always adheres
to the concept of green development and continues to
introduce advanced technologies and equipment, striving
to minimize our impact on the environment and further
reduce our environmental footprint. The fresh air systems
we have installed not only purify the air in the office space
to provide a fresh and healthy working environment for
our employees, but also reduce energy consumption by
recovering indoor temperature and humidity to improve
heating efficiency. We have introduced advanced lighting
equipment with the advantages of high luminous
efficiency, low energy consumption, and long service life.
At the same time, we encourage our employees to make
full use of natural light sources and reduce the use of
artificial lighting. These measures help the Group achieve
higher energy efficiency and sustainability in our daily
operations.

Green Travel

To promote green travel, we have adopted a number
of measures to reduce the environmental impact of
travel activities. We encourage our employees to reduce
unnecessary business travel, which reduces energy
consumption and carbon emissions at the source. In terms
of travel mode choice, we promote train travel as an
alternative to air travel, and we have strict cost standards
when formulating travel budgets and reimbursement
policies. At the same time, we have optimized our business
travel arrangements by prioritizing low-carbon modes
of transportation and encouraging employees to choose
green travel options.

To promote green commuting, we are committed to
providing a variety of environmentally friendly travel
options. We promote shared and electric transportation,
offer electric bus services for employees, and encourage
the use of shared bicycles, thereby reducing reliance on
traditional fuel vehicles and lowering carbon emissions.
In addition, we implement car-free day initiatives to
encourage employees to choose environmentally friendly
modes of transportation on designated days.
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2.4.3 Green Culture 243 #6831t

In order to cultivate and promote a green culture, the
Group places special emphasis on raising employees’
awareness and participation in environmental protection.
We make full use of the publicity position in our offices
to post energy and water conservation slogans in
prominent locations, thereby deepening our employees’
understanding of the importance of energy conservation
and emission reduction in an intuitive way. We regularly
organize various environmental education activities to
provide our employees with the latest environmental
knowledge, policy interpretation, and practical skills to
stimulate their enthusiasm for environmental protection
and create a strong green culture.

In order to further deepen our employees’ participation
in environmental protection and to effectively integrate
green concepts into their daily work and life, we organize
a variety of environmentally friendly activities, which
not only raise employees’ environmental awareness but
also promote communication and cooperation among
employees and strengthen team cohesion. In promoting
the waste separation and recycling program, we have
formulated a detailed and practical plan. A favorable
atmosphere has been created for all employees to
participate in waste reduction and resource recycling, and
to work together to build a green and sustainable working
and living environment.

BEEMERZE XL  EEE
FEIEREEINRESHNS
HE BMESFARIGE
NS MM ERE B i B RBLETRE -
BiKEZ NEBNETENRE
THEREREESHENRHE - R
FEHEBSBRELRE T
REIRESFTNRRNE K
K AEE ﬂaﬁxﬁi BB TH
RIRBE  EEREMNZEE
T

ﬁ%i& FR(LE THIRBRED
2E - PEHSZCESBARA
BLEMEES  BMAEZTE
EZRMNERREY MRS TE
ITHREREH#H XRETEIZ
MR M A 1E - 198 T B PO
B o 78 HE3E 5y 4R 9 28 B U 5T &
FE-ERMEETEHA DEA
THFR - EETEE2ENR
BMEMEREKNROFE - &
FETEGZE A EEENTE
MAETEIRIE ©

2024F EHE TEIBRBERERA

119



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIS - ERERHRE

3 INSIST ON PEOPLE ORIENTATION

3.1 Employee Composition

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 3,374
full-time employees. The workforce by gender, age group,

employment type, and geographical region,
turnover rate, is illustrated as follows:

3 BEIUAAXK
31 EIHEAK

R2024F12A318  AEBEBEB THH
B3374AN AR IEWR - Fik
AR EEENRMIBLEE D NIES
ABUANHEEREREAREFWMT -

and the respective

Employee Distribution

BESM
Gender Age Type of Employment Geographical Location
5 £ ERER EH D
The General Greater
Male Female <30 30-50 >50 Management Staff China Overseas
B Zit EEE EBEEE ATERE =3
2,616 758 1,192 1,904 278 179 3,195 2,299 1,075
77.53% 22.47% 35.33% 56.43% 8.24% 5.31% 94.69% 68.14% 31.86%
Employee Turnover Rate
EBERKE
Gender Age Geographical Location
EF] Fik B 5
Male Female <30 30-50 250  Greater China Overseas Total
S prg i3 RPEHE =2 gt
28.59% 20.84% 41.36% 18.91% 19.06% 30.19% 19.72% 26.85%
3.2 Labour Compliance 3.2 BEER

The Group strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations
promulgated by the governments of the countries or regions in
which the Group operates or which have a significant impact on
the Group’s business, including but not limited to the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China and the Labor Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Social Insurance Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Employment Act in Singapore,
the Central Provident Fund Act in Singapore, the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Minimum
Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the Laws of Hong Kong), and all other applicable laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, no incidents of child or
forced labor occurred.
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Occupational Health and Safety

The Group strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations
issued by the governments of the countries or regions in which
the Group operates and which have a significant impact on the
Group’s business, including but not limited to the Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, the Emergency Management Plan for Production Safety
Accidents, the Workplace Safety and Health Act in Singapore,
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and all other applicable laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have
any non-compliance issues or complaints related to occupational
health and safety.
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Key Performance in Occupational Health and Safety
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Fatality rate of work-related

Accidents
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injury X

2023 2022
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Equal Opportunities

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China and overseas locations, including the
Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, and adheres to
the principle of equal employment. We are committed to equal
employment opportunity and to creating a diverse and inclusive
work environment to meet the diverse cultural backgrounds and
needs of our employees. We expressly prohibit discrimination
on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry,
gender or gender identity, age, marital status, mental or physical
disability, sexual orientation, and any other characteristic
protected by law, as well as misconduct such as sexual
harassment in the workplace. During the Reporting Period, there
were no incidents of employee complaints such as discrimination
and sexual harassment.
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3.5

CHERERRE

The Group adheres to the principle of “open recruitment,
fair competition, and merit selection”, insists on regulating
employment in accordance with the law, and establishes a
standardized process for collecting and approving personnel
recruitment information. The recruitment process is conducted
in a fair and just manner, eliminating any form of recruitment
discrimination and backdoor operations, and providing a platform
for fair competition for talent. The Group adheres to the principle
of “equality, voluntariness, and consensus” in concluding
labor contracts with its employees to protect their rights to
remuneration, social security, rest and leave, and labor protection.
To ensure that labor contracts are strictly adhered to and the
rights and interests of employees are effectively protected, the
Group has formulated a series of employment management
systems and policies, such as the “Recruitment Management
System”, “Employee Handbook” and “Labor Rights and Interests
Protection Policy”. These initiatives have created a harmonious
and stable labor relationship and laid a solid foundation of
human resources for the Group's sustainable development.

Remuneration and Incentives

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations,
such as the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Social Security Law of the People’s Republic of China.
The Group consistently adheres to the principle of equal pay for
equal work, creating a fair and harmonious working atmosphere
in which each employee feels respected and recognized, and
which stimulates their enthusiasm and loyalty. In addition, we
offer a competitive and generous compensation package, as well
as a scientific and reasonable incentive promotion mechanism, to
attract excellent talents, based on the principle of “distribution
according to workload and performance”.

We continually improve our compensation and benefits
system. We provide our employees with market-competitive
compensation packages, including performance-based cash and
long-term equity incentives, and we continuously enrich the non-
salary benefits available to all employees, enhancing their sense
of belonging and happiness. By implementing stock ownership
plans, we fully mobilize the enthusiasm, sense of responsibility,
and mission of the Company’s senior management, key technical
personnel, and key business personnel, enabling employees to
fully realize their potential, improve individual and corporate
performance, and thereby promote the long-term stable
development of the Company.

122 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2024

3.5

SEBFIRAMAE 2AF®RE 28
BEMRA BEMEAERA 2
TRBHAB BB ERREMBELLIRIE -
FEBIEQATALE  HREMEANA
BERMBERRE RATRERFE
ENFE -KSEBRKIVFEER W
—BNRAEBEIESHAR R
ME TS B WMBNE HERERE K
ERBRENLERER - RERBBE
RGEIBREET  ETHFFINER
B REHET(HEERESE) (B
ITFM (BHEafrERR)FE X
IR T EREGIEMEE - ELBHEEE
THHBENSDHEE  REENAR
BERETETBRENANERER

N EL R R

SEBRBET(PEARKNELEHE
RUE) (P EARKMBE L & REIE)
SHEERER - SEBRBEERTRH
Bl e [RBY - EE PR TERE
EE B THERIDNEEMRAT -
MBI TEREMEHE  thsh
BMAZREDE HESE]INR
A RHABEBRFHNEEFHFMFEM
MEBAIEH MBS TS - TETRSHE
NI

BT ESCE BB GIE - TR
BETRHAEMSHRFNNFMAI R
BRRERGE RN IR © & B -
WHETEEE S TOIEFBRERN - 15
BMPINEBRMERE - HMBEBE
EREETE RO HABH AR EREEA
B MEEHNMEBEBRNEGE &
ERMERE HEIRXHEE B
RIEAMBREE R W EE R
RHIRE#HE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HERERRSE

3.6 Welfare and Care 3.6 BAEHEBE

The Group has established and continues to improve its employee
benefits system. In accordance with relevant national and
local policies and regulations, the Group makes full and timely
contributions to its employees’ social insurance and housing
provident funds for old age, medical care, occupational injury,
maternity, and unemployment, organizes and implements
company supplementary medical insurance, and provides room
and board, night shift allowance, annual health examination,
and various benefits for employees requiring them due to
their positions. In addition to national holidays, the Company
provides paid vacation, medical examination leave, maternity
leave, parental leave, and other holidays, and provides a variety
of subsidies such as transportation, meals, and communication
to employees, to take full care of employees’ daily lives, so that
employees can truly feel the care and warmth of the Group.
During special periods for special employees, we take into
account the actual situation and work content of employees, and
provide flexible working hours, home office, and other choices of
working time and place for employees.

In order to enhance the well-being of our employees, stimulate
team potential, and strengthen team cohesion, our Group
organizes a series of cultural and sports activities. For important
traditional festivals such as Chinese New Year, New Year's
Day, and Mid-Autumn Festival, the Group will carefully prepare
celebrations that fit the characteristics of the festivals and
traditional customs. At the same time, we provide our employees
with fitness facilities such as basketball and badminton courts,
and encourage them to form interest groups and organize
internal competitions. We provide benefits and gifts to our
employees during festivals, holidays, employee birthdays, and
Women's Day. In particular, we provide special benefits for
female employees, such as organizing seminars on women'’s
health. We identify and honor “Role Models” and “Woman
Pacesetter” throughout the Group, and recognize and appreciate
their contributions to the Group.
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We focus not only on the work and material life of our
employees, but also on their mental health and the special needs
of employees at different stages. The Group attaches great
importance to the mental health of our employees, inviting
senior counselors to provide counseling services to our employees
and organizing regular “Employee Mental Health Talks”. For
employees in distress, the Group actively extends a helping
hand by establishing a mutual aid society to organize charitable
donations to help employees in distress to relieve their financial
burdens and secure the basic needs of them and their families.
At the same time, the Group has not forgotten the retired
employees who have contributed to the development of the
Company for many years. We provide them with opportunities
to become consultants to the Company so that they can find
their own value after retirement and continue to shine for the
development of the Company and the industry.
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3.7 Training and Development

Talent development and reserves are the foundation for the
long-term and steady development of an enterprise. The Group
attaches great importance to employee training and education,
actively building a training system, making full use of internal
and external training resources, and adopting various forms and
channels to conduct hierarchical and classified business training in
all aspects. We have established a fair and transparent promotion
channel and a broad development platform for employees, which
strongly supports the high-quality development of the Company.

The Group has formulated and implemented the “Regulations on
Education and Training Management” to actively build a multi-
level, highly efficient, and targeted training system, including
cross-departmental examinations, key position rotation, and
mentorship programs. At the same time, we have formulated
training programs covering various aspects, such as functional
management, professional skills, industry knowledge, and
professionalism, to provide our employees with scientific and
comprehensive training contents in accordance with actual
business needs, so as to enhance the capabilities of our
employees in all aspects, improve the overall effectiveness of the
team, and realize the sustainable development of our talents.
In addition, we continue to improve our talent cultivation and
motivation mechanisms, promote the development of a reserve
talent team, and create growth opportunities for each employee,
which in turn stimulates employee vitality and supports business
development.

3.7

IR R

ATBENFEZBRBHEERE B2
BHROAR SESEERETIHAR
TR EREEEIRE TOoMNA
MINBEINER KMEZERA - 28
B 2T HARDEDREBEITE
RETIEZTATERNETRERE
FANERTA REXSmBEREMR
BHXHE -

SENELERTHERBIERR
E) EEBEEEAES - S8Eml-
MW ESEZER  SE - SR
MIEDIBE R o R - RIAIBIE TIRER
BEEIE  EEEE TTEAM BEXR
BEZEMNBIEGE  REBEERER
FE REIRMUME  ZEMFIN
CEHURITETIRN  REEKE
MEE - BRAT WA FEER © 1IN -
ITEEE AT B EMABES - 2
ERBATBOLER REBUETAE
RE#E EMUABETEN BHHE
BER -

P e o}

2024 EHHE TEOBSBBIERBERAR

125



The Group is committed to developing and retaining talented
people. During the Reporting Period, the Group provided a total
of approximately 18,895 hours of training to employees, covering
corporate governance, customer relationship management,
value management, financial reporting, corporate culture,
new employee orientation, production safety, early warning of
quality incidents, maintenance of laboratory sample preparation
equipment, laboratory accreditation, local laws and regulations,
and carbon peak and carbon neutrality. These rich and
comprehensive training activities cover all key areas of business
operations and greatly enhance the professionalism and overall
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capabilities of employees.

Key Performance in Training

B EREAR

Average

Training

Number of Training Hours for

Employees Percentage Hours of Employees

Trained of Employees Employees (Hours/

(Person)  Trained (%) (h) Person)

T

EFHET EIET EINBET BINEH

Category 3l HE(A) B2 (%) NEF (h) (NN
Male B 1,810 69.19% 12,585 7.0
Female g 475 62.66% 6,310 13.3
The Management EIREE 179 100% 1,343 7.5
General Staff ERER 2,106 65.92% 17,552 8.3
Total B 2,285 67.72% 18,895 8.3
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CREATING WIN-WIN BUSINESS

We always uphold the Group’s mission of “Honoring Integrity and
Justice, Practicing Fairness and Equity, and Achieving Quality for the
Future”. In terms of service quality, the Group sets extremely high
standards for itself. We always maintain a professional and enthusiastic
attitude, respond to customers’ needs in a timely manner, provide
customers with comprehensive and personalized service solutions,
and earn customers’ trust through the highest service standards. In
supply chain cooperation, we adhere to the principle of value fit and
give priority to suppliers with similar values. We focus on establishing
long-term and stable cooperative relationships with our suppliers to
achieve mutual benefits and jointly promote the healthy development
of the industry. In addition, we have always insisted on leveraging our
strengths and actively contributing to the community while developing
our own business. We have initiated social participation through
volunteer services and other means to create social value.

4.1 Adherence to Integrity and Compliance

4.1.1 Business Ethics and Morality

We adhere to the values of “Confidentiality, Integrity,
Independence, Fairness, Impartiality and Trust”, abide by
the code of business ethics, insist on acting with integrity,
comply with relevant laws and regulations, continuously
improve the standard of integrity and compliance
management, and further strengthen our business ethics
governance. We maintain a zero-tolerance attitude to
resolutely eliminate any violation of business ethics and
clearly define all violations, potential violations, and
their punishment mechanisms. Our commitment to fair
competition and ethical business practices is underscored
by the fact that we did not experience any incidents of
monopolistic behavior, price fixing, or market manipulation
during the Reporting Period.
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4.1.2

The Group attaches great importance to the establishment
of business ethics. In accordance with the Supervision
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic
of China, and other laws and regulations, a series of
systems and policies related to business ethics, such as
the “Code of Conduct for Company Employees” and the
“Prohibited Behaviors of Company Employees”, have been
established, which strictly prohibit the occurrence of acts
such as bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering.
At the same time, the Group requires its business
partners to strictly comply with the established code of
business conduct and ethical agreements. The Group’s
top management leads by example and is committed to
avoiding any form of conflict of interest in the Company’s
activities, always upholding the principle of integrity and
self-discipline. The Group promotes a corporate culture
of integrity and ethics, requiring all employees to be fair
and impartial in their daily work, and to remember the
foundation of the Company’s business, and the basis of its
foundation, so as to consolidate the relationship of trust
with customers, business partners, and other stakeholders.

Compliance and Anti-corruption

Compliance with laws and regulations and honesty in
business operation are the important foundation for long-
term development of an enterprise. The Group strictly
complies with the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Provisional Provisions on the Prohibition
of Commercial Bribery, the United Nations Convention
Against Corruption, the Prevention of Corruption Act of
Singapore, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter
201 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and the relevant laws and
regulations, domestic and international standards, and
compliance audits applicable to the locations where the
Group operates. In addition, the Group has formulated
and implemented internal systems, such as the Anti-Fraud
Management System, to establish a comprehensive anti-
corruption framework. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not have any concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices filed against the Group or its directors or
employees.
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We adopt a “zero tolerance” attitude toward all forms of
corruption, bribery and unfair competition, protect our
legitimate rights and interests in accordance with the law,
and continue to strengthen and improve our compliance
management requirements and systems. We accept
comprehensive oversight and strive to be an advocate and
practitioner of a culture of integrity. We have established
reporting channels and investigation procedures to
identify and assess the risk of fraud at the company-
wide, business responsibility, and key account levels, and
encourage employees to raise their awareness to identify
and report misconduct and potential misconduct. We
record all reported cases in accordance with the relevant
procedures, periodically summarize the issues raised and
addressed, propose targeted improvement plans, provide
feedback on the results and remedial actions, take practical
and effective measures to protect the legitimate rights
and interests of whistleblowers, and do not hold non-
malicious whistleblowers liable. We also recognize or
reward whistleblowers who provide important information,
depending on the circumstances.

To enhance our employees’ compliance and anti-corruption
awareness and behavior, we require all new employees to
sign an integrity agreement. We conduct regular integrity
awareness training for all employees, covering a wide
range of topics such as the interpretation of integrity, the
legal system, and methods of action. To further stimulate
the enthusiasm of employees to participate in integrity
construction, the Group has established a mechanism
for selecting the honor of “Advanced Collective for Anti-
Corruption and Anti-Trafficking Construction” and
“Advanced Individual for Anti-Corruption and Anti-
Trafficking Construction”. During the Reporting Period, the
Group provided a total of 2,735 hours of integrity, anti-
corruption, and conflict of interest training to directors and
employees.
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4.2 Devoted to Professional Quality 42 EREBEXERE
4.2.1 Quality Management 421 REEH

Quality management is not only important for enterprise
management, product and service quality, but also plays a
key role in the long-term development and sustainability of
enterprises. We take every sample and every test seriously
and are committed to leading the testing industry with
high quality service. We always adhere to the customer-
centered approach, through the establishment of a quality
control system, the development of standard processes,
the implementation of quality management, the collection
of customer feedback, continuous improvement, and staff
training, to ensure product and service quality, improve
customer satisfaction, reduce costs and risks, enhance
competitiveness, thus promoting sustainable enterprise
development and innovation.

The Group attaches great importance to quality control
and has established a project quality control responsibility
system covering all levels of subsidiaries at home and
abroad to ensure full implementation of quality control and
avoid management loopholes and shifting of responsibility.
We actively conduct management system certifications and
audits under ISO 9001 to ensure compliance with quality
management standards. Through our quality management
operating procedures, we rigorously monitor the
operations of all laboratories to ensure strict compliance
with laws, regulations, and guidelines set by accreditation
bodies. This ensures the authenticity and traceability of
the testing process at all stages, providing customers with
reliable testing services. (For more details, see Section 4.1.3
“Standard Operation”). In addition to the above measures,
we have also developed standardized process manuals,
quality manuals, management rules, and technical
documents to standardize our service processes and ensure
product quality. We regularly review and update these
documents to meet the needs of business development
and to ensure that they remain current and at the forefront
of the industry.
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4.2.2

The Group recognizes the importance of quality
professionals and has established strict requirements for
quality professionals in terms of qualifications, competence,
ethics, and integrity. Each quality professional must pass
the qualification check and professional competence
assessment to ensure that they have the necessary
technical knowledge and working ability. Their professional
ethics and integrity are directly related to the fairness and
credibility of the quality management work, and the Group
also attaches great importance to training in this regard.
Regular internal training activities are organized and
conducted, covering theoretical knowledge, operational
skills, and the code of ethics for quality control, with the
aim of continuously improving the overall quality and
working standard of quality control professionals and
providing solid and reliable talent support for the Group’s
quality management work.

Since the product recall procedures are not applicable to
the Group's business, no relevant disclosure is made.

Qualification Accreditation

The Group’s PRC operations have received quality
certifications from the China National Accreditation Service
for Conformity Assessment in China, including Laboratory
Accreditation Certificate, Testing Institute Accreditation
Certificate, Member Certificate of China Association
for Instrumental Analysis, and Member Certificate of
China Inspection and Testing Innovation Consortium.
In addition, the Group is recognized as a member of
Chinese Certification and Accreditation Association,
Quality and Credit Enterprise AAA, Member of Vice
Director of Professional Committee of Coal Industry of
China Association for Quality Inspection, Contract Abiding
and Trustworthy Enterprise, Full Member of TIC Council,
Member of China Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine
Association, etc. With professional ability and quality
service in the field of energy and bulk inspection, we have
become the appointed inspection organization for many
exchanges. During the Reporting Period, we were honored
as the designated inspection organization for ferroalloy
futures of Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange and alumina
futures of Shanghai Futures Exchange.
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4.2.3

The overseas subsidiaries of the Group have obtained
multiple international quality certifications. The laboratories
in Singapore have obtained the ISO 17025 Accreditation
for the laboratory and ISO 17020 Accreditation. The
laboratories in India, Indonesia, Pakistan, and Malaysia
have been accredited by the respective accreditation bodies
and awarded ISO 17025:2017. Our inspection and business
operations have been granted I1SO 9001:2015 certifications
by British Standards Institute (BSI) in India and Malaysia.
Furthermore, the Group has been awarded membership by
the Grain and Feed Trade Association (GAFTA), Federation
of Oils, Seeds & Fats Association (FOSFA) and International
Cotton Association (ICA), which are internationally
prominent in the agriculture industry. The Group has also
received national-level memberships of Fertiliser Association
of India (FAI), The Soybean Processors Association of India
(SOPA), and Solvent Extractors’ Association of India (SEA)
in India, as well as the Palm Qil Refiners Association of
Malaysia (PORAM) in Malaysia. During the Reporting Period,
the strength of the overseas subsidiaries was recognized
again. The laboratory in Vietnam has successfully obtained
ISO 17020 accreditation; the laboratory in Brazil has
successfully obtained ISO 17025 laboratory accreditation
and passed the GAFTA membership certification by GAFTA
of the United Kingdom; and the laboratory in Indonesia
has passed a number of accreditations by BSI, including ISO
9001, I1SO 14001, ISO 45001, and ISO 27001.

Standard Operation

In order to ensure the professionalism of the Group's
services and reduce risks in service processes, we have
actively developed information technology management
systems and extensively used automation equipment. In
addition, we have established a series of strict operating
procedures and standards to ensure the high quality and
consistency of our services. These measures not only
enhance the efficiency and accuracy of our services, but
also help to meet customers’ needs and strengthen their
trust, which has earned the Group a strong reputation
in the market. The specific procedures and standards are
detailed below:
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Video monitoring throughout
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Throughout the whole inspection process, the Group has provided video
monitoring devices, such as video monitoring system, body worn cameras, and
digital video cameras, to make sure inspections and tests are authentic and
traceable.

SERNEREAERERBEER BEACHENBBEEREGRSRIER
TR BRRERBLON TENEEEMATB P -

Independent of each laboratory, the quality control centre acquires field operation
pictures and information generated from work process by means of information
technology, for tracking and monitoring the inspection and testing activities at our
laboratories.
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We have developed the Leon LIMS Laboratory Information Management System
and Leon LIMS Test Information System, making information management possible
across the whole process of quality inspection. System functions cover sampling,
sample making, testing, and information confidentiality in sample transmission,
which helped effectively reduce the error rate of manual calculations and increase
the efficiency and accuracy of testing.
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The Group designed and developed the Robot LEON-SIASUN IPS-3600 Automatic
Sample Making System together with a professional institute. The system can
replace manual sample making, reduce man-made interference in inspection, and
effectively improve sample preparation efficiency and operation automation.

L E M E R E A AR R E T [LEON-SIASUN IPS-3600# 28 A B Eh 55 R
Bl o ZERABMKRALSE BEARERERBRIEFHOZE  BRREA
BB EBCRTER B &L KE -

Building on our practices and management experiences in the inspection and
testing services over the years and with reference to the national standards, we
have set 76 corporate standards to standardize the processes of inspection.
SERBZFERBRAIEFRPEEZNEBNERLR  ERKIEFEER -
HIE T 76 MR ERLE - PERASE BB TENRE(RKENMRIZRBIE -
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4.3 Provide Quality Service

The Group is committed to meeting and exceeding customer
expectations by establishing a comprehensive, accurate, and
efficient customer service management system that puts customer
needs first, insists on maintaining honesty and transparency in
our interactions with customers, focuses on resolving customer
issues through good communication, and strives to establish
long-term and stable relationships with our customers.

With respect to health and safety, advertising, and privacy issues
related to the services provided, we comply with the applicable
laws and regulations promulgated by the governments of the
countries or regions in which the Group operates that have a
significant impact on our operations, including but not limited
to the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Personal
Information Protection Law, the Singapore Code of Advertising
Practice, the Trademarks Act of Singapore, and all other
applicable laws and regulations.

The percentage of products sold or shipped that need to be
recalled for safety and health reasons is not applicable to our
Group's business. Therefore, no relevant disclosure is made.

4.3.1 Customer Complaints

We are committed to resolving customer complaints
quickly and safely through standardized processes and
standards, demonstrating our best service attitude and
level of excellence. Based on relevant international/national
standards, the Group has established a timely and effective
customer complaint management mechanism, including
documents such as “Customer Negative Feedback and
Complaint Handling”, “Complaint Handling Procedures”,
and “Customer Follow-up Standards” for after-sales service
management. These documents specify the response
methods and timeframes for each stage of the customer
complaint process, thereby establishing a standardized
customer complaint quality management system. In
addition, we assign dedicated personnel to handle
customer complaints and provide timely feedback to the
complainant on the investigation process and handling
of the complaint in order to minimize customer loss and
continuously optimize the quality of customer service.
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Issues raised in complaints are monitored and reviewed to
avoid recurrence. In addition, the Group assesses annually
whether its complaint handling and feedback mechanism
is effective in terms of response times and satisfaction with
return visits. The Group did not receive any significant
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4.3.2 Customer Satisfaction

“Customer First” is the Group’s core value. In terms
of customer satisfaction, the Group has formulated a
“Customer Satisfaction Management Program” to collect
feedback from customers at home and abroad through a
communication mechanism that integrates various channels
(such as the customer service hotline and mailboxes). Each
year, we select and invite a number of key customers (e.g.,
by sales) and those who have filed complaints to conduct
satisfaction surveys so that customer concerns can be fed
back to relevant departments for timely handling. We
conduct customer satisfaction surveys mainly in terms of
service attitude, inspection quality, and technical expertise,
and prepare customer satisfaction analysis reports on a
regular basis. We also confirm the implementation and
effectiveness of improvements through return visits to
further improve our service quality and increase customer
satisfaction.
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The Group has established a comprehensive customer
satisfaction management system to monitor and improve
the customer experience in all aspects. When issues are
identified through customer feedback, our complaint
handling system is activated to identify and analyze the
issues and then refer them to the relevant departments
for resolution. Based on this, we continuously drive an
improvement plan and are committed to optimizing
processes and services through systematic feedback and
adjustments. We believe this management system will
help us improve customer satisfaction and provide a
more exceptional and consistent service experience for
our customers, as well as retain and expand our existing
customer base.
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4.3.3 Data Security Protection 433 ERLZ2RE

The Group prioritizes customer privacy and data security,
complies with relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Product Quality Law of the PRC, the
Patent Law of the PRC, and the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance of Hong Kong, and establishes a comprehensive
information management mechanism. The Group conducts
an annual information security risk assessment to timely
identify new threats and risks related to information
security, continuously strengthen data protection, and
ensure that the Group can allocate adequate resources and
respond effectively with respect to its information security
management system. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not experience any incidents of customer data
breaches in domestic or overseas markets.

The Group continues to promote the construction
of information security and privacy protection. An
information security management team has been
established to formulate information protection and
privacy control procedures applicable to the Company,
its customers, suppliers, consumers, and employees, in
order to fully protect the privacy and security of customer
information. Employees in positions that have access to
critical corporate information (e.g., finance, sales, human
resources, purchasing, technology, quality, and network
management) are required to pledge confidentiality upon
joining the Company. All new employees are required to
sign a confidentiality agreement to ensure the security of
sensitive information.
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The Group has implemented the following measures to
ensure the privacy and protection of customer data:

Application of security
protection devices

ERRZERERE

Prevention and detection of
unauthorized authority

B RIEERERENER

Establishment of business
continuity and disaster
recovery plan

B R E N R AR IRTE

B

Training and ethical
requirement of employees

R EMEIIFERENR
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Firewall and anti-virus software are installed and updated in a timely manner to
prevent data leaks as a result of hacker attacks. Meanwhile, all sensitive personal
and confidential data of customers are encrypted according to defined procedures.
22 H A N B BB A S S e - I IE R AR BRI - [
B A GURE A R 5 E R IR R R EEITINE o

Access rights to systems (including the rights to create, revise, delete, and view) are
assigned in line with the roles, duties, and positions of employees. Besides, regular
checks on unauthorized access and log-in are conducted by our information
security management team to avoid data leaks.
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Our contingency plans are clearly defined for certain security breach incidents (such
as cyber-attacks), and relevant roles and responsibilities are specified. Moreover,
relevant data are backed up to independent auxiliary storage devices for the
recovery of data and applications to minimize the impact of unexpected incidents.
PRATHE TREEN(NEBRE) WEERESTE RATHBAERE
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Relevant personnel are trained and required to strictly abide by the Group’s data
security policy and to assure that they handle customer data with a high level of
ethics and integrity.
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4.3.4 Intellectual Property Rights Protection 434 BEEMERRE

The Group attaches great importance to and improves the
intellectual property protection system and strictly adheres
to a series of patent and copyright laws and regulations,
such as the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Management Regulations for National Standards Related
to Patents (Temporary), and the Promotion of Technology
Transfer Law of the People’s Republic of China. It shall
establish and implement targeted protection systems, such
as the Patent Management Measures and the Technology
Innovation Incentive Management Measures, and
continuously strengthen the management of intellectual
property rights, including patents. We rigorously review
the information provided to customers during service
promotions to prevent misinformation and control the
spread of false information. We meticulously verify the
content of publicity involving intellectual property rights to
ensure that the information on patents, trademarks, and
other intellectual property rights advertised is consistent
with the actual situation, and to avoid legal risks and
reputational damage caused by false publicity.

Intellectual property rights can help raise the level of
technological autonomy of enterprises and enhance their
core competitiveness. The Group is deeply aware of this
and has been actively laying out and practising in the field
of intellectual property rights. The Group has applied for
and obtained patents and trademarks for its inventions
and utility models in sampling, inspection, and information
management methods. Meanwhile, the Group closely
monitors news and updates on intellectual property
rights registered by competitors as a safeguard against
infringement. As of the end of 2024, the Group had a total
of 95 scientific researchers, 11 national invention patents
with 7 more pending approval, 37 utility patents with 2
more pending approval, and 43 software copyrights.
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The Group not only focuses on creating, protecting, and
utilizing its own intellectual property rights, but also always
adheres to the principle of respecting the intellectual
property rights of others. Before initiating any R&D project,
our team conducts thorough intellectual property searches
through patent databases and scientific journal databases
to ensure that no existing rights are infringed. We avoid
any infringement of intellectual property rights when
purchasing software or other products. Our practices
include refraining from unauthorized use or imitation of
patented technologies and respecting the exclusive rights
of registered trademarks.

4.4 Supply Chain Cooperation

Sustainable supply chain management helps companies establish
stable supplier relationships and reduce supply risks. The Group
adheres to the philosophy of “win-win cooperation and joint
development” with its supplier partners and incorporates the
concept of sustainability into its supply chain management
strategy. Through close cooperation with quality suppliers, we
promote the healthy development of the industry to achieve the
goal of shared development and a win-win situation, and join
hands with our supplier partners to build a responsible, efficient,
and stable industrial ecosystem.

The Group has formulated the Supplier Management Measures
and the Supplier Bad Behaviour Determination Criteria in
accordance with domestic and international regulations and
the internal standard value system. These standards specify the
requirements of suppliers in terms of human rights, environmental
protection, health and safety, and business ethics. In selecting
suppliers, the Group has set up an independent approval process
whereby the Group’s management strictly reviews and approves
the list of suppliers based on the results of evaluation and
inspection. Through this process, the Group screens suppliers that
are in line with its own values, empowers suppliers and partners,
and leads the upstream and downstream of the industry chain in
sustainable development.
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In managing suppliers, the Group uses information sources
such as supplier self-disclosures and information disclosed by
government agencies to further screen suppliers for irregularities
and to confirm whether they have been sanctioned by
government agencies. If such cases are discovered, the Group
will immediately cease working with the suppliers involved until
the suppliers have taken effective corrective and remedial action
to eliminate the effects of the violations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group rigorously implemented the above initiatives
and applied the relevant practices to all major suppliers to ensure
compliance and stability of the supply chain.

RIR - HERERBRE

EHHERETTEIZN - SERBHEE
BEREENBRARERENEEESRE
BRI E-—THEHEHITEFEE
RITR THREERTXIBAEED
B - IR FIFTN - KEEZAE
LHEPEHREENAE  EEHERR
AR EM IR BRERTE
B RBEHA - KEBREHT LR
BiE - WHMAA T EHERDEEARM
% AEREERENSRIEMBEML -

Number of Suppliers HEmHE
Number of
Suppliers
Category Ehl HEEHE
Greater China aGEE=37 ] 1,839
Overseas PN 882
Total e 2,721

We attach great importance to communication, interaction,
and experience sharing within the industry, actively build a
communication platform, and are committed to contributing to
the healthy development of the industry. During the period under
review, we organized the “Coal Quality Control Symposium in
Shanxi, Shaanxi, and Inner Mongolia Region”, through which we
shared our experience and ideas with our coal industry partners
and discussed new methods, technologies, and measures for
coal quality control, thus providing technical support for the
healthy development of the coal trade; and the “Imported
Coal Procurement and Quality Symposium”, to discuss the
procurement and quality control of imported coal and gather
the strength of all parties to promote the development of the
industry.

BAREERITEANRESRER
DECEBERZBBEYE BARRT
FNREMTERNE - MEHAN - F
I8 T [ B PR (2 B R R 4% ) #F
HEBERRTEAERHIZLER
FIED  BRE R R an ARSI HT 77 0% -
Bl - #iiEE - RRRE HHREE
RIEBEERZRMSE 897 DE O RRIK
BHREEMAE]  RPEODRRMK
BEAEES  RERZTNE  RETT
ERRE-
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RIS - ERERHRE

4.5 Engage in Social Welfare

The Group is committed to sharing the fruits of development
with society and fulfilling its corporate social responsibility. For
many years, the Group has carried out nationwide social welfare
projects and voluntary activities, and has launched a series of
social welfare activities in the areas of village revitalization, social
environment, and education improvement, so as to pay back to
society with practical actions, create long-term value for society,
and improve the health and well-being of the public. During the
Reporting Period, a total of 75 voluntary service activities were
conducted, with 916 participants and a cumulative volunteer time
of 561 hours. The total social investment of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$872,000.

With a grand vision, we are determined to become a pioneer in
leading social progress and advocating green development, and
we hope that through our unremitting efforts, we can promote
the concept of sustainable development to be widely disseminated
and deeply rooted in the hearts of people throughout society,
thus realizing the social value of the Company and demonstrating
our infinite commitment and dedication to a better future. In
the future, we will continue to expand the field of public welfare
undertakings, actively participate in a wider range of fields and
at a deeper level, continue to explore new modes and paths of
public welfare projects, contribute more to the construction of a
harmonious society and sustainable development, and join hands
with the whole of society to move toward a better tomorrow!
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RE - HERERMSE

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX BMIACRE 2@ RERMREES)

Aspect A1: Emissions

EEAT: B

General Disclosure

#Zal&

ESG Guidance
ESGig 3|

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Note: Air emissions include NO,, SO,, and other pollutants requlated under national laws

and regulations.
Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.
Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

Reference Section

=2z o

SEZEFH

Practice Green Development

—RIREE FHERMBEREBHN  MAKRELHEEES AERETEEYHN #ETREER
EEED
@@ BE: R
() HETHETABEATENHEBERNRIINER -
i BREReEASLRY mEtUREeXEIERRAGRENSRY -
BRERBEFE-SLK Tk SEDR  SERLEEY 2R
RSBACHR ©
BEEEMERRROIFRES
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Air Pollutant Emissions

RASR RIS IR AL

KPI'A1.2

RRERIEIRAL2

KPI'A1.3

RRERIERAL3

KPIA1.4

MRERIERALA

BEC IR AR AR R BRI

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BE(BE) kg REE (BE2)AEREBHRE (UBE) &k (WE
R)ZE (NMABESEN - FERMETHE)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FESASEEDEE VAETE) & (WER) BE (WABES B -
SERIHE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FEAESEENEE AEE) & (WER) ZE (WABE= 84 -
FIEEHRTE) o

RRBRMBEN

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Waste Management

BEEME R

Waste Management

BEEYER

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Pollutant and Waste
Management
R EIERALS HALPAET LBV BE R E B R R AE R E L B R PR SRR 2558 © AR B RE YY) E IR
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RE - HBRERRE

ESG Guidance Reference Section
ESG 15 5l BEZEH
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Waste Management
and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
BREBIERAL6 MMEBEAEERBEEEZNN AL RELIZOREERRGE BEDER

B35 L B RATHRERH) 28R -

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEHA2: EREHR

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and Effective Resources Utilization
other raw materials.
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings,
electronic equipment, etc.
— MR ER BRERAER(BIEER - KREMRMED BBUR - B ERF A
iH BRAUAREE  #fF E& - 2F TFREZ-

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas Energy Management
or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

R EBIEIRA2.1 REAESMERER SKEZER(WNE - [goh) BFE (ULTET ERERE
REEFE) REE (NMASESEN - §EREH) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production Water Resource Management
volume, per facility).

BREMIERA2.2 BREKERTE (WAGESEN - BERME) © KEREE

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to Energy Management
achieve them.

BREMIEIRA2.3 it T AT SZ B B IR A R e B AR I AR 21 iE Lk B AR P ERER B P 8% - BLIRE I

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for Water Resource Management
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

BARBEVIEZEA2.4 i SKEGE KR R B EAIEE - ARV HAKEmBRERS KERER
ERiE Lk B R P ERERE) 5K

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if Effective Resources Utilization
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

R EMIRIRA2.5 K mAABEMHNAE CAE) & (WER) BEEEMEE - ARERMA

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3 : RERRARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment  Practice Green Development
and natural resources.

—MRIRER HEBETAHBRRERRABRERNEATENBR ERITHREER

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and  Practice Green Development
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

RERIEIR A3 MM EBEDHRERAAERNEATZENERRERFHTLEN BRTHREER
178 °
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ESG Guidance Reference Section

ESG#& 5l 2EEH

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BHEAL: RIxEL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related Climate change management
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—MRIRER ol REHE KRR ARG HRITAELEZENSARGHEBEENER - RIEE(ERE

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted,  Climate change management
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.

BREREEIE AL BB AR AR SHBETAEEYENSEARIKIERNER - REHTH - KRIEELE

B. Social

B.iE

Aspect B1: Employment

BEB1 : EfE
General Disclosure Information on: Insist on People Orientation
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
—RARER ERFH LR BEREA  TERE - BRE TSHe 2k BHEUARE
[ AR A T EL At 5 38 I AR A Y
@@ BEX: R
(b) BFEHBTABERZENBBEERROIKER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part- Employee Composition
time), age group and geographical region.
R EMIEIR B IR - EEER (MEBERE) FRAERNMRESNESRH - BIEK
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Employee Composition
RE IR B1.2 RIER - FicE R MR E D EBIRKLLE - B THEK
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Reference Section
SEEM

ESG Guidance

ESG#5 5l

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: REHRZE

General Disclosure Information on: Insist on People Orientation
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

—RIE BRRHZETERERREESREBELEEN EREUARK
@ BE: K
(b) HETHETABEATENHEBERRRIINER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past Occupational Health and Safety

RS AR R B2.1

three years including the reporting year.

BE=F (BEERFE) BFATITHMABRILE -

BEREFEEZE

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Occupational Health and Safety
BB IR B2.2 RIGELXIIERS - BERREZE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and Occupational Health and Safety

how they are implemented and monitored.
R EMIEIRB2.3 R PTER AN B R (R B R 2 i - A RERA AT RER % -

Aspect B3: Development and Training
fEEB3 : &R REI

General Disclosure

BREFELE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Training and Development
duties at work. Description of training activities.
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses

paid by the employer.

— AR EE BRRTTE B BT TERE M AE R AL BUR - #atiE &S o Bl e
i EIEBEEI  ARESREENEHRIMNRE o
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category Training and Development

(e.g. senior management, middle management).

RS A IER B3 ZERIREBER (NERERE PRAEEE) 0NXIIEERLL - BIlRERE

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and Training and Development

employee category.
RERIREEERED  BEEETKI I TR

RS EIERB3.2 o B B R
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ESG Guidance

ESG#5 5|

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

BT B4 : &5 TXA

General Disclosure

—RIBE

KPI B4.1
AR B IR 1E B4

KPI B4.2
MR AERIE1RBA.2

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

B IEE Taloa 48 TH) :

@ BE: K

(b) BFHBETABERZENHEEZRAPINER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child

and forced labour.
AR BEEAMEEAREE T RAFST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

HAEERBREREHRBRBIERARRA TR -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[BEBS : HESEERE

General Disclosure
— B

KPI B5.1
S AR B 1R B5.1
KPI B5.2

RSt IR 1R B5.2

KPI'B5.3

RS M E1RB5.3

KPI B5.4

PR AENIEIRB5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
BB MIEFHRIE AL 2 RRBUR ©

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

iR EI DM HEHHE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

G AR ERIED - MERTEREARNMREREE - AR
HERITRERTE -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B AHSIHEES RS HRE R e RRAEH - L KXEEER
IRERTE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R FEBOE B R R 2 AR IR E tn RIS V1B B - DA RARRIAT
REERTE o

2024 EHE PEBRBIEKRERAF

Reference Section

2EEH

Insist on People Orientation

ERFUARK

Labour Compliance
LEAR

Labour Compliance

BEER

Creating Win-Win Business
BlEEEARS

Supply Chain Cooperation
R EES 1
Supply Chain Cooperation

R eSS 1F

Supply Chain Cooperation

R ERA {F

Supply Chain Cooperation

G A 1F
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ESG Guidance

ESG#5 5l

Reference Section
SEEM

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EMEE

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B6.1
RS AR R IE1R B6.1
KPI B6.2
MR AEWIE1RB6.2
KPI B6.3
B AEMIEIRB6.3

KPI B6.4
MR AR B6.4

KPI B6.5

PR E1RB6.5

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

EHRMRMERNRENRERERZS B EHERLBEEARE

ROTER

@@ BE: R

(b) EFEHBTABERZENHBEERAONER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.
EEUEEXEMBRTRALTEEEREMMARKNE D

Number of products and service-related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.
BN E m R RGN IF B AR EE 7% -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
T B A R R A E A BB -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
Hi it B 2 40 E AR M E e B E R -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

WM BEEERRERLBERE  UAREBRTREESE -
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ESG Guidance

ESG#5 5|

Aspect B7: Anti- corruption

BEB7: RES

General Disclosure

—RIBE

KPI B7.1

B IR R BT 1

KPIB7.2
MR AEWIE1R BT 2
KPIB7.3

R EIEREBT 3

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BN LR - BR - BEF MR ER

@ BE R

() HEFEHBETABERAZENEBEERAOIKER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERAAHETASEEEREVEEENE THRARGNEE R
FAER -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and
how they are implemented and monitored.
ety g tE e R B RIERX - URBBARITRERG X o

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

HAMESEKE TRENRESE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

BEBS: HERE

General Disclosure

— R R

KPI B8.1
SRR B 1R B8 1

KPI B8.2
RS M IE1R B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.

RNt ESERERESEMEHERTSENEREXEREHSE M
& M ER AR

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

EIRREE(WHE REFHE SIFX BE XXt BF) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EZIEBMBAER(NERHEM) o

2024 F FERE PEINBRER

HTERER

Reference Section
SEEM

Adherence to Integrity and
Compliance

Adherence to Integrity and
Compliance

Adherence to Integrity and
Compliance

BPREAR

Adherence to Integrity and
Compliance

EFHEAR

Engage in Social Welfare
gz gank /N

Engage in Social Welfare
REHE A

Engage in Social Welfare
Ratensm

wE

ZRAERRA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B REEN RS

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place,
979 King's Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY=x
To the shareholders of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Leon
Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 156 to 296, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS"”) Accounting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters

HREER

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

B 5 R K e R 1R 1Y 6 (8 A

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of HK$233,750,000 before a provision for impairment
of HK$12,355,000.

72024512 8318 - &% BURE % # % % 12,355,000 7T AT
28 5 WA K e W SRR B ¥ 233,750,000 7T ©

The impairment of trade and bills receivables was recognised
based on the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs). The
management of the Group determines the ECLs of trade and bills
receivables based on historical information of settlement of trade
and bills receivables, customers’ creditworthiness, and forward-
looking economic conditions, involving the use of significant
judgements and estimates.
BORKBFERBUEREREDENREREEBLBER
R BEEEEEEREBEEIRRFBEREUEBRBELES
B ZEPHEEUALAIELERERNEEE S EKFIEKE
WRIREHEEEK  F R E B TR &G -

The accounting policies and disclosures for the impairment of
trade and bills receivables are included in notes 2.4, 3, and 18 to
the financial statements.

Z 5 FEWGRIE & B MR BB E ) = 5 EUR KO B &R B IS R
KMFE24-3%18°

38 3 % B R

FEEETTEE @)

BPCBOTARRE (KRB Fit 5 e M EHRERA
EEMNEE] —HEANET BREZEEEM
MNET - R RANBF TEREATRE
IR A B IR EAE R BUL R TR
BT - BHMARTEFEFNER  BEEET
MEFAATHRERT - BEMNGEMBERRNET
SRIRHER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EANESFNNEERRENER

We tested the key controls of the Group relating to the credit
control, debt collection and estimation of ECLs. We checked the
ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables to obtain an
understanding of the movements in the ageing and the settlement
pattern of the customers.

HAS SEEEEMEEES  EBREREREERKR
ST E BIEHIR - RIS E FRKRIE R EREEN KRS
A RRR R EPEERAES -

For the collectively assessed ECLs, we assessed the reasonableness
of the Group’s ECL model, including inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECLs. We assessed the
reasonableness that historical experience was representative of
current circumstances and of the recent losses incurred in the
portfolios.

HRERITHEREEBRLNE - HANE EXEEHREER
AEANEENE  BF BESERHEBRMEERANMAD
BABBEREBR BMATEELEBRRAREAMBELARKER
SRBAEENBRNEIEE -

We also assessed the financial statements disclosures relating to
the Group's exposure to credit risk.

BATHERE SRENEERRAENMBERREE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B REEN RS

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

38 3 % B R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B REEN RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Tsang Pang Sum Joe.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEEEkEMEERSER

Year ended 31 December 2024 #H ZE2024F 12 A31HILFE

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=3 BT T BT
Revenue WA 5 1,263,129 1,118,514
Cost of sales SHE B AR 6 (747,980) (638,384)
Gross profit EF 515,149 480,130
Other income and losses, net H A& E BT 5 4,213 6,248
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HRAXZ (51,459) (40,325)
Administrative expenses TEFAX (256,649) (241,166)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net RV ERBEBEBTE (6,544) (3,753)
Fair value changes of financial assets and BARBEFABRNEREER
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss BEZANEBEE 73 (4,523)
Other expenses Hpth i 2 (34,032) (30,810)
Finance costs &R AR 7 (8,641) (8,589)
Profit before tax i A0 R H 6 162,110 157,212
Income tax expense FriSfif X 10 (36,070) (35,049)
Profit for the year FRFE 126,040 122,163
Attributable to: DT EEEMN
Owners of the Company KARER A 82,725 80,048
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR = 43,315 42,115

126,040 122,163

156 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEBEmkEMEERGSR

Year ended 31 December 2024 H ZE2024F 12 A31BILFE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
Note HK$000 HK$'000
s BET T BT
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hi2mE (BR) W#E
Other comprehensive loss that may be REEBEEET S EEERN
reclassified to profit or loss in Hih2mEEE

subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation MEFINEHE R 5
of foreign operations (12,566)
Other comprehensive income that will REERBBRE I IEEFH>ER
not be reclassified to profit or loss in Bz R E A 2 W
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation HENEEEREEED
from functional currency to EHZER
presentation currency 128
Other comprehensive loss FREMEZESR
for the year, net of tax MERBE (11,386) (12,438)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2HEUKIEHAEE 114,654 109,725
Attributable to: T & EE,
Owners of the Company KNRER A 74,155 73,705
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 40,499 36,020
114,654 109,725
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AAREBEESRAEARBLEERER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
Basic (HK$ cents) AR GBI 12 13.73
Diluted (HK$ cents) #58 GBI 12 13.68
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Deferred tax assets

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

FRBEE

ERN AN

REME

EREEE

k5

BVEE
BARBEFABENERMEE
EERAEEE
R - H AR &
HiEE

Total non-current assets IERBDEELTE
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE

Trade and bills receivables
Prepayments, other receivables and
other assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Pledged deposits

Time deposits with an initial term of over

three months

EE Y LY AES

TAR IR - A UGRIR )
H&EE

BARBEFABENERMEE

[REERUEERA

IR ERR A =1 A A L &9 B3 5K

Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY
Total current assets MBI A ELRTE
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade payables B 5N RIE
Contract liabilities AHEE

Other payables and accruals EoAth &< F0E K EET IR B
Interest-bearing bank loans FFEIRITER

Tax payable JE 4R B R

Lease liabilities HEaE

Convertible bonds AT (E 5

Total current liabilities MBI A ERE

Net current assets REBEEZRE

Total assets less current liabilities EERERARBAR
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2024

2024 F
HK$ 000
BT T

244,187
14,114
70,844
31,445

2,341
4,697
2,897

2,962

373,487

4,857
221,395

47,425

2,726

38,487
267,235

582,125

47,558

7,285
79,361
47,882
37,516
20,249

239,851

342,274

715,761

2023

20234
HK$'000
BT T

233,983
15,829
75,900
34,021

2,585
4,714
2,250

1,151

370,433

2,935
208,841

43,991
1,471
160

39,454
227,250

524,102

51,910

8,029
70,432
48,530
31,586
17,863
48,612

276,962

247,140

617,573



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a BRI R

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
[ihg=3 BET T PSR IT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 37,776 43,792
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 27 3,307 3,780
Other payables and accruals E e 58 R ERTIE B 24 631 723
Convertible bonds AR ES 26 19,945 -
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEAE 61,659 48,295
Net assets BEEFE 654,102 569,278
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z<2 TG A {5 =
Share capital [ 28 233 210
Reserves s 32 468,270 424,291
468,503 424,501
Non-controlling interests IR 185,599 144,777
Total equity ERBE 654,102 569,278
LI Xiangli YANG Rongbing
Z @ F BRE
Director Director
2 E-2

2024 FEwE TEIBEBIERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEZSBR

Year ended 31 December 2024 #H ZE2024F 12 A31HILFE

Attrbutable to owners of the Company

HRAREARE
Fair value
Shares held through Equity
Share-based for share other component Exchange Non-
Share Capital Statutory  compensation award  comprehensie o convertble fluctuation Retained controling Total
aapital Tesere* reseret eseret scheme* income* bonds* Tesene® profits* Total interests equity

RiH  RLAEE
WRH BER HEE ERES Ei
Rx AAEEr ARRE  DRERE: R+ 2EAE+ BESA RERE RENE A HERES EalE
Note (3} Note (b) Note (¢)
(B3t () (W3t o)) (Bist(o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT BT BT BT BT BT ¥ ¥ i aei i au BT BT

At3At1 January 2023 RUBE1A1A 189 263835 35,712 15404 (4413) (3403) = 381 61573 378,268 108757 487,025
Profit for the year ERFIE = = = = S > = - 80,048 80,048 215 122,163
Other comprehensive loss for the year EREHEAGR

xchange differences on trangltion REENEBNERZE

of foreign operations - - - - - - - (6383) - (6383) (6,095) (12438

Total comprehensive income ERRENGES

for the year - - - - - - - (6343) 80,048 73705 36,020 109,725
final 2022 dividend dedlared

and paid (note 11) - - - - - - - - (13,085) (13,085) - (13,085)
2023 interim dividend declared

and paid (note 11) bt - - - - - - - - (14,270) (14.270) - (14270)
Equitysettled share compensation IEREENRNBER

expense (notes 29) (H29) - - - 34 - - - - - 34 - 34
Shares purchesed fo ashare award BRAZDHIRE L RA

scheme (note 30) (Hz30) - - - - (14514) - - - - (14514) - (14514)
Bonus issue of shares BHIR 19 80,130 - - - - - - (80,149) - - -
Change of terms of convertbl bonds (notes 26) TRRERERED (Hike) - - - - - - 5633 - - 563 - 5633
Transter of convertble bonds TakEsEE 1 33% - - - - (33) - - 300 - 300
Iste of shares upon exercise of share optons FRREERIRR 1 3391 - (911) - - - - - 2481 - 2481
Transter from retained profts 2HEER - - 2164 - - - - - 2164 - - -
At31 December 2023 RABENANA 210 350,750 31876 17,734 (18,987) (3403) 5280 2912) 31,953 424501 1447117 569,278
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERERBER

Year ended 31 December 2024 H ZE2024F 12 A31BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
AOEREARR

Fair value

Shares held
Share-hased for share
Share Capital Statutory  compensation award
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* scheme*
LvEL
HREAER g
Bx  ERER+  REER DRREE i+
Note (&) Note (b) Note (¢)
(B (o) (GR{L) (K& ()
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8T BT BB BETR ABTR
At 1 January 2024 RNuE1518 350,750 31876 17,734 (18,987)
Proft for the year ERFlE = o - -
Other compreensive loss for the year: EREHEAGE
Exchange differences on translaton REBIEHNELZR
of foreign operations
Total comprehensive income ERRENRES

for the year

Final 2023 dividend declared
and paid (note 11)

Capita contribution from non-controling interest
of a subsidiary

Equity-settled share compensation HEREHORNBERR

expense (notes 29,30) (H2930) -
Shates purchesed fo ashare award BRAZHEBEZRR

scheme (note 30) (H3t30) = (2161
Award shares vsted (note 30) EEREBRA () (2119) m
Bonus ssue of shares BTk - =
Isue of convertible bonds note 26) BT RRES (R - S
Redemption of a convertible bond (note 26) EETRRES (Hi6) - -
Isse of shares upon exercise of AERREESARE

share options (1,241)
Shares purchased for cancelation BERHTE -
Transter from retained profts RanEER -
At 31 December 2024 RUENA3NA 8181 17,868 (38,375)
*

As at 31 December 2024, these reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other
reserves of HK$468,270,000 (2023: HK$424,291,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The amounts represent for (i) the share premium of the issued share capital of the
Company; (ii) the difference between the nominal values of the ordinary shares issued
by the Company and the share capital of subsidiaries acquired through an exchange of
shares pursuant to the reorganisation of the Company in prior years; (iii) the difference
between the fair value of the capital injections from non-controlling shareholders and
the carrying amount of the subsidiary attributable to the non-controlling interests; (iv)
the difference between the consideration paid to non-controlling shareholders and the
carrying amount of the subsidiary attributable to the non-controlling interests; and (v)
the deemed contribution from non-controlling interest determined by the difference
between the principal amount and the fair value of other borrowings at initial
recognition.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year, each of the Group's
subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation
to the statutory reserves. The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the
boards of directors of these PRC established subsidiaries and by the relevant authority,
to offset accumulated losses or increase capital. During the year ended 31 December
2024, HK$568,000 (2023: HK$2,164,000) was transferred from retained profits to the
statutory reserves.

The amount mainly represents the share option expenses and share award expenses as
disclosed in notes 29 and 30, respectively.

The amount mainly represents the share buy-back as disclosed in note 28, which will
be cancelled in 2025.

through
other

comprehensive

income*

BRARE

iARfE

By

HKS'000.
BRTR

(3.403)

(3.403)

(b)

(d)

component
of convertible

TERES
it

HKS'000.
BRI

Equity
Shares
held for
cancellation*

Exchange Non-
Retained
profits*

fluctuation
reserve*

controlling Total
bonds* interests equity
KRR
R
Note (d)
(B (d)
HKS000
BETR

Eil
Rogfk
Note (d)
(B (o)
HK$'000
B8R

RERR: FERER BE4E

HKS'000
BETR

HKS'000
ERTR

HKS'000
ERTR

HKS'000.
ARTR

5280 (@912)

37953
82725

424501
82725

am
83315

569,278
126,040

(8,570) (8570) (2.816) (11,38)

(8570) 82,125 14155 40499 114,654

(9,189) (9,189) (9,189)

4154

(2167)

- (78,794) -
10250 - 10250
(5.260) - 393)

= = 375
(13,030) - (13,030)
- (568) -

10,250 (13,030) (11482 36127 468,503 185,599 654,102

M2024F 12 A31 8  ZEREEREGRAVBMR LK
R HY 47 & E fth 7% 18 75 %5 468,270,000 7T (2023 4F : /B #
424,291,0007T) °

ZECR/NARBDHITRAZIRMEE  ()ARF
BETERREEDEBRIEARARBEFEEMAET
8 £ 32 4 i M B B BB 8 ) 2 IR 2 RO Z2 58 ¢ (Gii) 2R
SEERBRFTE 2 AA BEEFZEREREGEHEAR
FREEC MR ER  (vENIFERBRAE R IR
REEENERARREE RN ZE  RvREME
RNAERR 2 AR A BEZHNEZRET 2R
TEIFE R ITE ©

RIFFEARENE ((FE))BEEZRERBAT A
EETEFEKLIOZMMBARTFIARLRTEEF
HRI0%EEERE  RAEFADRFFNE - FEE2
EAARKEEBEIEMER  EALZENTH
RIBMBRRANESS RAMKELE - B Z=2024
FRANALFE ARBIBEEZEICRENS
%8 5761 568,000 7T (2023 4F : 7515 2,164,0007T) °

% B BAERTE29 K 3043 B 45 BR Y B AR A 7 S B AR
D REFE -

ZEMEREME28MBEENRMED - #522025F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERERER

Year ended 31 December 2024 #H ZE2024F 12 A31HILFE

Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Impairment of goodwill
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, net
Loss on disposal of intangible assets, net
Fair value changes of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income
Impairment losses on financial assets, net
Equity-settled share compensation expense

REED
75 A1 A1)
ERTHSRELFE
BEKA

BOABEFABRSNEREE

Frs A

W% - BB kR EaOIT
REMENNE
EREEENTE
R E

B EE#E
HEWE - BFE &&E
B8 - FE
HEBTVEENER

BAABEFABGENEREER

BENARBES
FlLE WA
SRBEREERZE

VAR g A5 B R B (D FB (B F X

E

)

HER

2024
2024 F
Notes HK$'000
B 5T BT T
162,110
8,641
(1,128)
6/13 45,933
6/14 1,396
6/15 23,229
6/16 1,575
6/17 548
5
153
5 =
(VE))
(3,743)
6 6,544
29/30 4,154

249,339

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Increase in trade and bills receivables

Increase in prepayments, other receivables, other
assets

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities

Increase in other payables and accruals

7% (),

B 5 & W IR K e W R 4R A A

BRI
HAth & B 1L N

S RNKREACRD), 18
BRAaEORD) HEm

Hofth & FRIE K & ET IR B S 0

pll

(1,922)
(15,326)

(3,879)

(4,352)
(744)

10,663

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

REEENAS
B PS5

233,779
(30,141)

Net cash flows from operating activities

REEBMERENEFHE

203,638
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2023
20234
HK$'000
BT T

157,212
8,589
(1,626)
43,012
1,416
19,590

1,162

192
980

4,523

3,753
3,241

242,044

430
(40,351)

(15,366)
3,658
4,464
6,637

201,516
(26,407)

175,109



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Investing activities

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets

Withdrawal of pledged deposits

Placement of pledged deposits

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of more than three months when acquired and

time deposits restricted from being used
Interest on non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity more than three months
when acquired
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Loans to a supplier

e

BERER

Year ended 31 December 2024 H ZE2024F 12 A31BILFE

Notes
k=3

REZFD
BEWE BMELREEE

HEME - BE &Rk RER

EEIERBMBRIE
REREEFFR
FABERFR
BERRIBABE=(EANU LD

SRR E H3F AR S PR il R &9

Eﬂﬂﬁw\

SRRIEBEE=E A E®

#ﬁﬁmﬂ? R 2B

WEHE AR  HBERNES
A — % H R E R

Income received from financial assets at fair BRAREBEEFABRZN SR 5
value through profit or loss BEMMSHRA

Disposal of wealth management products HERIE M

Net cash flows used in investing activities KREEHMARSREFHE

Financing activities REEE

Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BT RREFBRIA

Convertible bond redeemed by cash BATE £ 8 6] ) AT 2B 1 25

Contribution from a non-controlling interest HIEREREE

New bank loans FTILIRITER

Repayment of bank loans and other loans EEBTERREMER

Interest paid BAFE

Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMD TS HRIE

Principal portion of lease payments MENTKZ ARSI D

Dividends paid 2RKRE

Purchase of shares for a share award scheme BIR0 R EEE ZRH

Purchase of shares for cancellation 2] IR 1 7 8H

Net cash flows used in financing activities

BMERDTAREREFR

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

RERREESEWEMER
¢%ﬂﬁﬁiﬁ$&fiii{ﬁ¢%

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SNEMERZB ML - F8
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year RN BRERBSEEY 21
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERAESEBUWERDIN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits pledged for borrowings
and port access right

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity

of more than three months when acquired

e RIBITHERS
TERB RS O (L AR E Y
ﬂiﬂﬂﬁ/ﬁ\
SRRBIEIEAE=(EA A 8y
3Hﬁﬁﬁim%ﬁrm&

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of cash flows

BRERBRPIITHRER
REeEEY

2024 FEHRE

2024

2024 F
HK$°000
BET T

3,743

(1,21;)

1,128
1,523

(61,463)

30,000
(56,271)
323
59,501
(58,981)
(4,689)
3,618
(22,071)
(CRED))
(22,167)
(13,030)

(92,956)

49,219
227,250
(9,234)

267,235

308,448
(2,726)

(38,487)

267,235

B A6

2023
20234
HK$'000
BRI

(81,490)
1,567

470
(160)

(31,793)

(2,32;)
(7,948)

1,626

(120,055)

106,611
(84,337)
(6,506)
2,165
(16,133)
(27,355)
(14,514)

(40,069)

14,985
222,254
(9,989)

227,250

266,864
(160)

(39,454)

227,250

SRR B R A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 29 July 2015. The registered office address of the Company
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman Islands and the principal places of business are Suite
1015, 10/F, Ocean Centre, Harbour City, 5 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong and Buildings No. 77-78, Taida Science Park, No.
12 Zhuyuan Road, Shunyi District Beijing, People’s Republic of China
("PRC").The Company'’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited since 12 July 2016.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out below. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company was under the control of
Mr. LI Xiangli and Ms. ZHANG Aiying. Mr. LI Xiangli and Ms. ZHANG
Aliying are spouses.
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name*

LN

Huaxia Leon Inspection Limited

FENERBRERAT

Leon Overseas (Hong Kong) Limited
Leon Overseas (Hong Kong) Limited

Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd.
Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd.

Saybolt (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Saybolt (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Pt. Leon Testing and Consultancy
Pt. Leon Testing and Consultancy

Leon-Saybolt Inspection & Testing Sdn Bhd

Leon-Saybolt Inspection & Testing Sdn Bhd

Saybolt (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd
Saybolt (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd

Leon Inspection & Testing Argentina S.A
Leon Inspection & Testing Argentina S.A

Leon Inspection & Testing (Brazil)
Inspecao E Teste Ltda

Leon Inspection & Testing (Brazil)
Inspecao E Teste Ltda

Leon Inspection and Testing Nederland

B.V.
Leon Inspection and Testing Nederland
B.V.

Place of registration
Mt

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
e

Singapore

IR

Singapore

IR

Indonesia

HEER:

Brunei

PE

Malaysia

B

Argentina
FIRE

Brazil

Ef

Nederland

Issued
ordinary/registered
share capital
BRTEE/HMRA

HK$100
B#1007T

HK$1.00
BE1.007T

SGD1,000,000
1,000,000 f I3 7T

SGD341,714
341, 7145 %K TT

IDR10,005,000,000
10,005,000,000 E1/E &

B$1,000

1,000 303 T

RMB3,300,000

AE#3,300,0007

ARS100,000
100,000 FIRFE L R

BRL500,000

500,000 E M

EUR100,000

100,000 B 7T

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

AEIREEER &)

ERHEARER

RRAREZEMBRBFENT

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

RAREEEZEDL
Direct Indirect

EE BF:3

- 100
- 100

- 41 (note i)
- 41 (PR EED)

- 51
- 51

- 51
- 51

- 51
- 51

- 51

- 41 (note i)

41 (fEE)

2024 FEHE PE BB BIZEER A A

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding

REZB

Inspection and testing

s R

Inspection and testing

s R

Inspection and testing

s R

Inspection and testing

TR R
Standard technical and

quality control technical

services

R R E 81
BATRR

Inspection and testing
i YL

Inspection and testing
w5 R

Inspection and testing

e Rig

Inspection and testing

FEYY]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Name*

Lo

Leon Saybolt Inspection Corporation
Leon Saybolt Inspection Corporation

Leon Inspection & Testing Inc (Philippines)
Leon Inspection & Testing Inc (Philippines)

Saybolt (Tianjin) Metrology & Inspection
Co.Ltd.
8 (R B BB AR

Lihong Inspection Group Limited

NERBREEERANF

Hebei Lihong Minerals Inspection
Co., Ltd.
WIENBRERBRERAF

Shaanxi Huaxia Lihong Commodity
Inspection Co., Ltd.
RAEZENRERBRERAR

Place of registration

at i it B

South Korea
#HE

Philippines
FaEE

PRC

i

PRC
e

PRC

HE

PRC

FE
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Issued
ordinary/registered
share capital

BRITEE/HERRE

KRW640,000,000
640,000,000 58 7T

PHP10,439,999
10,439,999 F R EH R

US$2,000,000

2,000,000% 7T

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T

RMB60,000,000

AR #60,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AR #50,000,0007T

PAEIREEER &)

BARHEARER (&)
ARREIEMBARFBNOT : (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

FAREEEETIL

Direct

B

Indirect

BF:3

26 (note i)
26 (FizED)

44 (note i)
44 (PN

41 (note i)

41 (D)

100

100

100

55

55

Principal activities

TEER

Inspection and testing

R SR

Inspection and testing

Py

Inspection and testing

i R

Inspection and testing

T8 BB

Inspection technical advisory
service

TSR AR

Quality inspection service

EERBRS



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

* The English names of the companies registered in the PRC, represent the best
efforts of the management of the Company in directly translating the Chinese
names of the companies as no English names have been registered.

(i) These companies are subsidiaries of Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd. The interests
disclosed here represented the Group's effective equity interests in these
subsidiaries. The directors of the Company are in the opinion that the Group
has control over these subsidiaries through its control over Leon Overseas Pte.
Ltd, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(ii) These companies were established during the year ended 31 December 2024.

All these companies were incorporated with limited liability.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results
or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

1.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

AEIREEER &)

BARME DT ER (&)
fi s -
© ARETEEMOARNLAEMEXERE &6

ERBEARMEAXABRAARFEEEERY
EARPXE -

(i) Z% % A\ 719 A Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd KM B A& °
hEREENEZALNEERZENBARNE
BiEm - ARRESTRAREEFEBE YLleon
Overseas Pte. Ltid (R A RIHFEZEMBE QR B
SIS ZENBAREA LRI -

(ii) HE2024F 12 A311IEFE - ZZARBKTL °
FBEZERREFMALABRAR]
MEMBARTRFEREBTEMNEBRES -
EREBINEAAFNESRABEAEEEENE
ERBEEXIEFENALRAMBAR K

RAEERR  BHIREMMBARZFHE -
ELERBRILE

2024 FEHE PE BB BIZEER A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")
Accounting Standards (which include all International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“1ASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling
interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the
fair value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. EIBE®)

2.1

CLEEE
meaREE(E)

BMEIR S c REL R T =%
Bk M HEA R K S AR FE R
BTASES AR ZHAR ARIFERE
@ MEARAKERBERARRSH

SENEELEE #a Wa X
MR RECNEE ARR BN -

HMEERERKA LAEHZEN=ER
Ehe—EAXZEEREEHE - AKE
SENMEHREHRE L HERIZHE -
RREZHIENOK B AR MARERE
HEARREERS -

A LB R EL B QB IE S - B
HRIIERAMEEE (BEEE) &
18 SRt s M B SR B s
VHERMREBTAREN A EERE
BEPEMELELEN BRI
AEBCERHERBEERRE X
AT EL A 2 T U 25 P HE AR ) AN SR B AR £
MR RERARREEERDEE
B REE(ER)

2024FEHRE FEIIBRBIZEBRERAD
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRS Accounting
Standards for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)

Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and IFRS 7

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRS Accounting
Standards are described below:

(@ Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in
a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that
relates to the right of use it retains.

Since the Group has no sale and leaseback transactions
with variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate occurring from the date of initial application
of IFRS 16, the amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an
equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Additional
disclosures are required for non-current liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of
its liabilities as at 1 January 2023 and 2024 upon initial
application of the amendments. As at 1 January 2023,
the Group had a convertible bond with carrying amount
of HK$50,861,000, and a maturity date of 11 June 2026
(note 26), which has fully redeemed in cash on 11 June
2024. Prior to the initial application of the amendments,
the convertible bonds were classified as non-current
liabilities. Upon initial application of the amendments, the
convertible bonds were reclassified as current liabilities
since the conversion options were not classified as equity
and are exercisable at any time on or after 1 July 2023 at
the bondholders’ options. The quantitative impact on the
consolidated statements of financial position is summarised
below.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. EIBE®)
22 BHBEEHREE (B

(b)

2024 FEHE  EIEE

2020F (TR B A B
ﬁ/ﬁ@bﬁ%/ﬂb@ZiﬁﬁE FL? A
BEEEZEE UREEBE
BNEARRERAREFE -AEZ
DEAIZERITEHTEESER
AN RE - ZFERNE
B BBERULAREEEZERT
BEE URREEANEKRERE
PrBRERERSERERT
BEAGRR BEZBRAI TG
BHOM 202F ] E—FE
E% AL HEECBBER®

CRBEEERREBRR AWM
AETIRETGXEARSE
ﬁﬁ@jg';//lu@°ifﬁ‘\ﬁﬁ§%#&
HHB12MEARNBEEBTFRKRE
HZIEMBAE - FETRRIMRE -

LB

-H-

N

AEBMORBEREAZSER R
EEH T E R 2023F 202445
TATERBEBRR RGN - R
2023F1A1H  AEEBREE
7% 50,861,000 JLHY AT AR E 5 -
FHA A A202656 A 118 (ft s
26) 220246 511 HIAE
CERHER - g AEAREEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  (continued)

Current liabilities REBEE
Convertible bonds AR E S

Total current liabilities BB ELREE

Net Current Assets MENEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAEE

Non-current liabilities *kRBEE
Convertible bonds AR EFH

Total non-current liabilities SERBBEERE

The adoption of the amendments did not have any impact
on the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statements
of cash flows for the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.
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SEBER )
22 BHBEREFHREEE)

(b)

As at

31 December
2024

72024 F
12A831H
HK$'000
BETT

N/A £ 3 B

N/A £ 38 B

N/A £ 38 B

N/A £ 38 B

N/A R A

N/A £ 38 B

(&)
Increase/(decrease)
#in,/ (%)
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2023 2023
2023 4F R2023F
12A831H 1A1H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEETF T
N/A 13 F 50,861
N/A A~ 3 B 50,861
N/A 13 F 50,861
N/A 3 F 50,861
N/A 77 (50,861)
N/A 7T~ 3 (50,861)

KMZFETHEE20245F &
2023F12A3MBLEFENTA
RAIEARERREABRLERAER
REBRT  -Bxm Hta2milk
HRGERERERTETRFE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(0)

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the characteristics
of supplier finance arrangements and require additional
disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended to assist
users of financial statements in understanding the effects
of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities,
cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.

As the Group does not have supplier finance arrangements,
the amendments did not have any impact on the Group’s
financial information.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. EIBE®)
2.2 BHBREEHREE @)

@ (EEETER)E7RR(ERE
BHEERADE 7R 2 EFTMAH
EEMEREZHH XREAR
MEERHEFHEINEE - %F
BRI 2 WBEREE E BB ]R
REMETHRHEBEREL Y
ERBZEBE ReRERRPE
TRRZFE -

RRAEEY EHEEHRE

WZEETHAEE Y MBER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International Financial

Reporting Standards Accounting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRS

Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements. The Group intends to
apply these new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 18

IFRS 19

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 21

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Accounting

Standards — Volume 11

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures?

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Lack of Exchangeability"

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9,
IFRS 10 and IAS 72

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International Financial
Reporting Standards Accounting Standards

(Continued)

Further information about those IFRS Accounting Standards that
are expected to be applicable to the Group is described below.

IFRS 18 replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
While a number of sections have been brought forward from
IAS 1 with limited changes, IFRS 18 introduces new requirements
for presentation within the statement of profit or loss, including
specified totals and subtotals. Entities are required to classify
all income and expenses within the statement of profit or loss
into one of the five categories: operating, investing, financing,
income taxes and discontinued operations and to present
two new defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures about
management-defined performance measures in a single note and
introduces enhanced requirements on the grouping (aggregation
and disaggregation) and the location of information in both the
primary financial statements and the notes. Some requirements
previously included in IAS 1 are moved to IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, which is
renamed as IAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements.
As a consequence of the issuance of IFRS 18, limited, but
widely applicable, amendments are made to IAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows, |AS 33 Earnings per Share and IAS 34 Interim
Financial Reporting. In addition, there are minor consequential
amendments to other IFRS Accounting Standards. IFRS 18
and the consequential amendments to other IFRS Accounting
Standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2027 with earlier application permitted. Retrospective
application is required. The Group is currently analysing the
new requirements and assessing the impact of IFRS 18 on the
presentation and disclosure of the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International Financial
Reporting Standards Accounting Standards
(Continued)

IFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply reduced disclosure
requirements while still applying the recognition, measurement
and presentation requirements in other IFRS Accounting
Standards. To be eligible, at the end of the reporting period, an
entity must be a subsidiary as defined in IFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, cannot have public accountability and
must have a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that prepares
consolidated financial statements available for public use which
comply with IFRS Accounting Standards. Earlier application is
permitted. As the Company is a listed company, it is not eligible
to elect to apply IFRS 19. Some of the Company’s subsidiaries are
considering the application of IFRS 19 in their specified financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 clarify the date on which a
financial asset or financial liability is derecognised and introduce
an accounting policy option to derecognise a financial liability
that is settled through an electronic payment system before the
settlement date if specified criteria are met. The amendments
clarify how to assess the contractual cash flow characteristics of
financial assets with environmental, social and governance and
other similar contingent features. Moreover, the amendments
clarify the requirements for classifying financial assets with non-
recourse features and contractually linked instruments. The
amendments also include additional disclosures for investments
in equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial instruments with contingent
features. The amendments shall be applied retrospectively with
an adjustment to opening retained profits (or other component
of equity) at the initial application date. Prior periods are not
required to be restated and can only be restated without the
use of hindsight. Earlier application of either all the amendments
at the same time or only the amendments related to the
classification of financial assets is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International Financial
Reporting Standards Accounting Standards
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute
a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 was removed by the IASB. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess whether
a currency is exchangeable into another currency and how it
shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require disclosures
of information that enable users of financial statements to
understand the impact of a currency not being exchangeable.
Earlier application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or to
the cumulative amount of translation differences accumulated in
a separate component of equity, where appropriate, at the date
of initial application. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective International Financial
Reporting Standards Accounting Standards
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards — Volume
11 set out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7 (and the accompanying
Guidance on implementing IFRS 7), IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and IAS 7.
Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

o IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendments
have updated certain wording in paragraph B38 of IFRS
7 and paragraphs 1G1, IG14 and IG20B of the Guidance
on implementing IFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification
or achieving consistency with other paragraphs in the
standard and/or with the concepts and terminology used in
other standards. In addition, the amendments clarify that
the Guidance on implementing IFRS 7 does not necessarily
illustrate all the requirements in the referenced paragraphs
of IFRS 7 nor does it create additional requirements. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

o IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments clarify that
when a lessee has determined that a lease liability has
been extinguished in accordance with IFRS 9, the lessee is
required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of IFRS 9 and recognise
any resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. In addition, the
amendments have updated certain wording in paragraph
5.1.3 of IFRS 9 and Appendix A of IFRS 9 to remove
potential confusion. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group'’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective International Financial
Reporting Standards Accounting Standards
(Continued)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The
amendments clarify that the relationship described in
paragraph B74 of IFRS 10 is just one example of various
relationships that might exist between the investor and
other parties acting as de facto agents of the investor,
which removes the inconsistency with the requirement in
paragraph B73 of IFRS 10. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments replace
the term “cost method” with “at cost” in paragraph 37 of
IAS 7 following the prior deletion of the definition of “cost
method”. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. S BEw®
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXEFEHE®E)
Fair value measurement RAEEFNE
The Group measures certain financial instruments at fair value REREHR  FEERAABERE
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that ETemIA - AREEAMBGLMEE

would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

182 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2024

R ERHMEEFRZH Hj’ﬁéﬁﬁfrﬂﬁl
B ERREERA B HERS -

/Lff“f@ﬁriﬂﬁﬁﬁjmﬁ’iéﬁiﬁié
BEMNRXSREESRBETEM S (£
%%I%ﬁi%’%%?)%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁ
miEd - TBAZRABENHEER/LE
BREANTS BEXBBENAAE
ENRBRTS2EEREELAEBE

BEREURELHENRITENE -

FEMEENARBEFERGETS
SEERBARARECAZEEER
RERE  IBZEELE THEEKR
EEAZEEERRERRNEMTS
DEEMEELB R =ML o

AREBRBBEBBNRTIRBRAAEET S
BEARFEQIRBENMBETE A
EEFRERUBERBABBEREER
DERTAEREABE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

U]

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 4.75%
23.75%

19% t0 31.67%
Over the shorter of

Motor vehicles
Electronic equipment and others
Leasehold improvements
the lease terms and
10% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
investment properties using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives. Owner-occupied property is transferred to
investment property when there is a change in use evidenced by
the end of owner occupation.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding three
to five years, commencing from the date when the products are
put into commercial production.

Patents and software

Purchased patents and software are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over 1 to 10 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (Continued)
Customer relationships and inspection certifications

Customer relationships and inspection certifications acquired
in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relationships and inspection
certifications have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the expected life of
the customer relationship and inspection certifications of 6 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Leased properties 1to 11 years
Leased machinery 3 years

Leasehold land 24 to 40 years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)  Right-of-use assets (Continued)
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

(b)  Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office buildings and
other equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as an
operating lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease term and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
and bills receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment occurs if there is a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primary
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. The Group considers that there has been a
significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade and
bills receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial instruments that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
convertible bonds, interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or
losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for the
gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables,
convertible bonds and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial
position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible
bonds, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and
this amount is carried as a long term liability on the amortised
cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option
that is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option
is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction costs are
apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and equity components when the instruments are first
recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset,
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or
loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way
of a reduced depreciation charge.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@  The Group performs analytical tests and issues testing
certificates or reports after completion of the on-site
preparation. The performance obligation is satisfied upon (i)
completion of testing services and/or (ii) issuance of testing
certificate. A contract liability is recognised for advance
payments received for sales in which revenue has yet been
recognised.

(b)  The Group provides surveying services and witnessing and
ancillary services (excluding supervision and equipment
maintenance services) on-site. Service reports are issued
after services rendered. The performance obligation is
satisfied upon (i) completion of provision of services and/
or (i) issuance of service reports, if any. A contract liability
is recognised for advance payments received for sales in
which revenue has yet been recognised.

(0 The Group provides supervision and equipment
maintenance on-site. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs. Revenue is recognised for these services based
on the stage of completion of the contract using output
method.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to
a customer before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the contract terms, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets. They are reclassified to trade and bills receivables
when the right to the consideration becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an
asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(©)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) and a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”). Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model or market price of granted date, further
details of which are given in notes 29 and 30 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period. For share award that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
award granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately.

This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Company and its subsidiaries which operate
in Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
Company and its subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The employee of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in other
countries/regions are required to participate in the applicable
defined contribution plan in accordance with relevant local laws
and regulations. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the defined
contribution plan. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
defined contribution plan.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Events after the reporting period

If the Group receives information after the reporting period, but
prior to the date of authorisation for issue, about conditions
that existed at the end of the reporting period, it will assess
whether the information affects the amounts that it recognises
in its financial statements. The Group will adjust the amounts
recognised in its financial statements to reflect any adjusting
events after the reporting period and update the disclosures that
relate to those conditions in light of the new information. For
non-adjusting events after the reporting period, the Group will
not change the amounts recognised in its financial statements,
but will disclose the nature of the non-adjusting events and an
estimate of their financial effects, or a statement that such an
estimate cannot be made, if applicable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in note 11 to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the
exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the
hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation.
These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount
is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and
credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences are
attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of an overseas subsidiary are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiary
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

2.

3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life
of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the
commercial property, that it retains substantially all the significant risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties which are
leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the
lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is
a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control
and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew
or to terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or
leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits,
together with future tax planning strategies. Further details on deferred
taxes are disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements.

The Group has tax losses of HK$ 207,426,000 (2023: HK$182,139,000)
carried forward. These losses related to subsidiaries that have a history
of losses, have not expired, and may not be used to offset taxable
income elsewhere in the Group. The subsidiaries have neither any
taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities
available that could partly support the recognition of these losses as
deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Group has determined that it
cannot recognise deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried forward.

If the Group had been able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets, the profit and equity would have increased by HK$45,788,000.
Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements.
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HAREBEUAEESENERT SN AR
ERAEECHBEE -ERNEEHEAKE
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MELEENSHE BECHEZE—PHFBR
BRI s 27 R o

N B B 4T IA B 188 15 207,426,000 T
(20234 : % 182,139,000 7T) ° ZH5E1EF
N EHEOMB AR - EARERA RS
AARKEASBEH Mt T ERTUA -
ZEMBARTWEAF D T HEZEHIERE
REEERIBEENERH YR ZHELHEE
e E . Al AEBEET T BEER
EBEBERAEERBEE -

HMAEBENEREBRERNECHIEBE
B o BRI M b 25 45 18 108 5 45,788,000 7T ©
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as the Group that does not
enter into financing transactions). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available.

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivable.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills receivables
(Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade and bills receivables is
disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwiill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties, the Group periodically
reviews the changes in market conditions, the expected physical wear
and tear, and the maintenance of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on historical experience of the Group
with similar assets that are used in a similar way. Depreciation amounts
will be adjusted if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment and investment properties
are different from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.

Share option scheme

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value requires
determining the most appropriate valuation model for a grant of
equity instruments, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of
the grant. This also requires determining the most appropriate inputs to
the valuation model including the expected life, volatility and dividend
yield and making assumptions about them. Continuous estimation is
required for the calculation of cumulative share-based payment cost at
each reporting date until vesting, including estimate of the number that
will vest. Details of share option scheme are disclosed in notes 29 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

OPERATING SEGMENT 4, RBEHE

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being MARAMITES(AFEEERETE ([EE
the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"), for the purposes BEREE))) 2RUFEETERD LT
of resource allocation and assessment focuses on revenue analysis B & BHE ER IR T P R AL B E A
by geographic location of customers. No other discrete financial DT BRAE B R EE R BRI -
information is provided other than the Group’s results and financial MEEHEMBYMEER Bt E2%R
position as a whole. Accordingly, only entity-wide disclosures are ERIRESIE-

presented.

Geographical information b 35 & R

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) MIEEFUA

p1p2:} 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Greater China RAER 695,513 650,368
Singapore and other countries/regions FnEREMER tE 567,616 468,146
Total revenue U A 1,263,129 1,118,514
(b) Non-current assets (b) *RBEE
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Greater China RAER 279,670 277,933
Singapore and other countries/regions FnEREMER thE 86,223 85,536
Total non-current assets ERBNEERTE 365,893 363,469
The non-current asset information above is based on the locations FHERBEEER N EREEMEA
of the assets and excludes financial instruments and deferred tax B TeEemTANMRERIBEE -
assets.
Information about a major customer —EXEERFNEH
During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no single HZE2024F 128318 1EFE  $iEREE—
customer (2023: one) from which the revenue amounted to 10% or BFE(2023F : —2BP)MBMAGAEER
more of the Group's total revenue WA 10% SHBA £ ©
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BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES, NET 5.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

WA~ AR EIE 5

WADHTEAT

2024
2024 F
HK$°000
BET T

795,024
358,397
109,708

1,263,129

2024

2024 F
HK$°000
BET T

795,024
358,397
109,708

1,263,129

Revenue from contracts with customers BEPE WA
Testing services ORI IR 7
Surveying services ETERS
Witnessing and ancillary services RENREB RS
Total #BEt
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHBA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) WAERHEHA
Type of services liiEy3 kil
Testing services 1ROBI AR 75
Surveying services = R
Witnessing and ancillary services R K B RS
Total #5t
Geographical markets h & 35
Greater China NGEE

Singapore and other countries/regions

Hoong Rk EmBER, R

695,513
567,616

Total

#Et

1,263,129

Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time
Services transferred over a period of time

LN AT
EX—RREEE RS
E—-BRERER RS

1,262,063
1,066

Total

1,263,129
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2023
20234
HK$'000
BETIT

716,422
303,933
98,159

1,118,514

2023

20234
HK$'000
BT T

716,422
303,933
98,159

1,118,514

650,368
468,146

1,118,514

1,118,053
461

1,118,514



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES, NET

(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

WA HtRAREEBFE®

BEFAHWA (&)
(a) WAERBHME)
2024 2023
2024 F 20234

HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT

1,263,129 1,118,514

Revenue from contracts with customers BEEAHBA
External customers SNEREE P
Total F

1,263,129 1,118,514

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

Total FEE

TRETHAREPERANBADE -
RESHERERCHFARNAGBLD
RBEHRBITHEAOR TR

2024 2023
2024 5 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT

8,029 3,565

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligation is
summarised below:

The Group performs analytical tests and issues testing certificates
or reports after completion of the on-site preparation. The
performance obligation is satisfied upon (i) completion of testing
services and/or (ii) issuance of testing certificate. A contract
liability is recognised for advance payments received for sales in
which revenue has yet been recognised.

The Group provides surveying services and witnessing and
ancillary services (excluding supervision and equipment
maintenance services) on-site. Service reports are issued after
services rendered. The performance obligation is satisfied upon (i)
completion of provision of services and/or (ii) issuance of service
reports, if any. A contract liability is recognised for advance
payments received for sales in which revenue has yet been
recognised.

(b) BEREME
AEBBENEEERBANT

AEBRTRRERETO BT G
BRinE E U lmE - BAORER0)RA
BR# TEAK K,/ 3 (i) E ARG B B 1R E
X o A K BER WO 1 R T R R 1
RRBCHWHETRNKIA -

REBIRMETRG RIREG R B N EHB
R#% (T BREEE RREEERS) - R©
RUERBERLARBEHRS -BHEER
(i) TERK AR R AR 7 B3k i) th B AR 5 4R 5
(WE) BEK - A KB ERKRA H R HE
REFWHER SR ST RE -
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BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (Continued)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES, NET

5. WA - ERARKEEFFE@E)
BEEGHBA )
(b) BHEE(E)

The Group provides supervision and equipment maintenance on-

site. Such services are recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs. Revenue is recognised for these services

based on the stage of completion of the contract using output

method.

Al services provided by the Group are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated

to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

An analysis of other income and losses is as follows:

REBRURGEE MRIBEERT
e 25 P FE 7 52 [ B 40 1 [0 BRF LA 2 O
AEBRBEAOREHEROAE - AIRFRH
BHASN —BREEARERKN —IEED
BE - WARBEHNTHERERE
EHERZERT o

REBRHEAMBRBE S —FHINA
P o 5 a0 (B B B 75 o 5 2B RID SR 15 5%
FERT - BOBLEZFRERA KN
SEBTTHE -

HWARBEIFIT

2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 %
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T PR T IT
Other income H g A
Bank interest income HRITH B A 989
Value-added tax additional deduction BN IEER 1,048
Government grants BT #H B 2,813
Rental income e U A 1,272
Other interest income from financial assets at fair ~ H AR BEFABHNESREED
value through profit or loss At A B A 1,626
Others HAth 1,007
Total other income Hiig A ez 8,755
Other losses, net Hib & T8
Loss on liability component of convertible ER®REREFEESHNERE
bonds on redemption -
Loss on foreign exchange difference HMNEE FE 5, = FB 5 18 (1,622)
Loss on disposals of items of property, HEME BMEEEEEE®
plant and equipment, net 18 - FEE (192)
Loss on disposals of items of intangible assets, net HE®EFEEEE MEE  F8 (980)
Others Hi 287
Total losses, net BESTE - FEE (2,507)
Total other income and losses, net MEMBAKREE - T 6,248
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

i A R
7R g W BB B R A TS AR 1B 4

2024 2023
2024 2023 F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
N BET T PR T T
Cost of sales 5 RO 747,980 638,384
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment¥3 - fi/E MR ENITE 13 45,933 43,012
Depreciation of investment properties WEMENTE 14 1,396 1,416
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENTE 15 23,229 19,590
Amortisation of intangible assets AT A B O 17 548 1,162
Impairment of goodwill S 16 1,575 -
Lease payments not included in the Tt AHEB B ENHEENK
measurement of lease liabilities 4,237 5,075
Research and development costs* Tiff B Ak A * 30,657 27,970
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2Bl 5 BM 2,356 2,277
Employee benefit expenses EERFAZ (BEEER
(including directors’ and T ABHM)
chief executive’s remuneration):
— Wages and salaries —TIERkF® 435,901 377,776
— Pension scheme contributions — RIREEEIHEER 31,396 25,589
— Equity-settled share-based payment — A ENRMD AR
expense 4,154 3,241
— Welfare and other expenses — A R H AR 118,218 99,766
Total #Et 589,669 506,372
Impairment of financial assets: TRIEEME
Impairment of trade and bills receivables B 5 W R K
R ERE 18 3,362
Impairment of prepayments, TEATFRIE - H i WK IE K
other receivables and other assets Hih&EERE 391
Total Bt 3,753
* During the year ended 31 December 2024, research and development costs HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE - HERRLEE

of approximately HK$27,544,000 (2023: HK$27,688,000) were included in

employee benefit expenses.

27,544,000 7T (20234 : # % 27,688,0007T) &
ANMEERAAX -
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BE A
BARAHHHITMT -

2024
2024 F
HK$°000
BET T

2,821
2,952
2,868

Interest on bank loans RITERF A
Convertible bonds AR EFH
Interest on lease liabilities HERENE
Total fee

8,641

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year, disclosed

pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

EERRSTHRAESMH

2023
2023 %
HK$'000
BT
2,476

3,118
2,995

8,589

RBBCETRAD - BB BEDD 5 383(1)
@ b)) QFOEAR(RAR (WEEENR
BR)ROIDE2HMBEBEZFAEE LRI

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as BAEFHMIT :
follows:
2024
2024 F
HK$'000
BT T
Fees we 300
Other emoluments: Hibii < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NIER FE
Other welfares HEF
Performance related bonuses HERRITEAL
Equity-settled share-based payment expense LA E RN AT
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHE R
Subtotal INET
Total s

224 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2024

2023
20234
HK$'000
BT T

300

5,918
300
813
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230

8,798
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the year, three directors were granted share award, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share award scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such award, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

EERBRESITHAEHMHN @

FA ZRESHREHAEENRERIELR
REMR D BB B ER T IO ER - £
FHBEHN T HERKRM L0 - ZRBOAAE
ERREAHEE YREBHARBREER
R Mt ARNFEMBRENSEDFA
PREERERTRASHMEEA -

() BIUFHITES
FARBILIFATEFTNNESHT

year were as follows: mr
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
ZHAO Hong =k 100 100
WANG Zichen EHE 100 100
LIU Hoi Keung B 100 100
Total it 300 300
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FRAWEERBIIFNTEFINHE

non-executive directors during the year (2023: Nil).

b B & (2023 4F : ) o
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERBESITHAEFMm
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director (b) HITESBRFHTES

Salaries, Equity-settled

allowances Performance  share-based Pension

and benefits Other related payment scheme
in kind welfares bonuses expense  contributions Total

e RER BEVHE LEZREED BHhe
FRERH Hitt @A A ROXARX aHEIfS b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BRI BETT BRI BRI

Executive directors BITEF
Li Xiangli @
LiuYi 27
Yang Rongbing BRI
Zhang Alying REH

Subtotal N

Non-executive director FRITES
Hao Yilei i

Total Bt
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive director

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

8. EERRESITHAEEFM®

(b) BTEERFIATESHE

(Continued)
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances Performance share-based Pension
and benefits Other related payment scheme
in kind welfares bonuses expense  contributions Total
e 2ER BREE  EREED Bike
ERE HbiEH L BRIAXAREX ST FoEe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BB BETL BB BT BETL BB
2023 2023F
Executive directors RNTES
Li Xiangli @A 2,715 100 456 473 72 3,816
LiuYi 215 1,376 100 195 355 70 2,09
Yang Rongbing BRE 1,300 100 - 414 88 1,902
Zhang Aiying RER 527 - 162 295 - 984
Subtotal NG 5918 300 813 1,537 230 8,798
Non-executive director EHTES
Hao Yilei i - - - - - -
Total Foe 5918 300 813 1,537 230 8,798

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.

(c) Chief executive

Mr. Li Xiangli was also the chief executive of the Company.

FRUTEEMEFIESTERABK
EXABEREEAHFHOLE

() ESITHAE

FRAMEETREARRZDITHRA

il

\
A
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HEBEFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included one executive FRNTEGRTNEEERE —BHRTES
director (2023: one executive director), details of whose remuneration (20235 : —BHITESE) - BABRFTH WA
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of FHBREIR EXWES c IEARBEE IR
the remaining four (2023: four) highest paid employees who are neither SITHRABEMSB TEA (2023F : OF) &=
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: FMEENFANFMFFEHIILOT
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries, allowances, benefits in kind and e 2 FEReFE
other welfares 12 E 38 ) 10,947 10,119
Performance-related bonuses ERUARATEAL 7,765 7,149
Pension scheme contributions RIRSFTEIME R 388 403
Total Et 17,671
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid FMEN TEHIENIEESTNIERSTHAER
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as WE=ITMEEMASET
follows:
Number of employees
EEA™
2023
2023 %
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 763,000,001 7T 2 # % 3,500,000 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 751 3,500,001 70 2 7 ¥ 4,000,000 7T 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 7 4,000,001 7T 2 % ¥ 4,500,000 7T -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 714,500,001 7T 2 7% ¥ 5,000,000 7T 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 7515 5,000,001 7T 2% 5 5,500,000 7T -
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 755,500,001 7T 2 7% ¥ 6,000,000 7T 1
Total Bt 4
During the year ended 31 December 2024, none of non-director and EHZE2024F12A3MAIEFE  BiEMAEES
non-chief executive highest paid employees was granted share options MEBRRITRAENESTWEESERLER
or award shares (2023 Nil). sk SEE AR5 (2023 4F : £&) o
No remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the directors or the EE2024F 12 AN BAIEFE - ANEEIE R
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining EMESR A A &= T ES X EAEE -
the Group or as compensation for loss of office for the year ended 31 YE AW B] N A S 5 [ =k hn A 7N 5 [ 1% /9 52
December 2024 (2023: Nil). BRI (E (20234 - M) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the local rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to
income tax at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits.
The tax on the dividend income from a subsidiary in Chinese Mainland
has been provided at the rate of 5% during the year.

The Company'’s subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland are subject to income
tax at a statutory rate of 25% on their respective taxable profit, except
for certain subsidiaries, which have been identified as high and new
technology enterprises entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15%
for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The Company'’s subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore are subject to
income tax at the rate of 17% on the estimated assessable profits.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

10. FTB%

REFSHELEBHEBARESNELRA
FOER  AEBEHBESMERNRSES RE
BHREBRBESEN

AR IR E B 5 A S M B A /B BT A
FE 38 B4 718 1216.5% 10 B 5K SR BT S B o 48
e Pyt — T B 28 1 OB 2 A BT 5%
BRiHE -

ARRRFEAMNHBARERES AR
RELF) IR 25% KA TE R EBNFTST - %
THIE R RIBRIN - EMERE BRI EMEE -
RNEE2024F 202312 A31BILEER
L 15% BB THE B RBNAEE -

0

T

RN B A F AN RE B SZ A P BB R R ZA B TR
R IR 17% e R AP S T -

2024 2023

2024 F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

18,948 15,328
18,368 19,577
(1,246) 144

Current tax BVERTR 18

— Chinese Mainland — R E A

— Other jurisdictions —HMAEEERR
Deferred tax EREFH IR
Total tax charge for the year FRBIAS HETE

36,070 35,049
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory tax rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled and/or operated to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the
statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, is as follows:

FrBH @)

BEKXBHWERRTER, &L FTE R
EEBEEAAEMETEEARTAAE 2
MIBRY  AREEBREAECRBEREZZ
HEE URBRAME (BEERER) BERH
R ZHEMT

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before tax 75 Al ) 162,110 157,212
Tax at PRC statutory tax rate of 25% RHEDEFERE
25% AT E BT IE 40,527 39,303
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the 5% ?ETD ﬁ%‘f$§%. R EIRT B A A
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC SEEANERZE
subsidiaries 4,482
Effect of the preferential income tax rate BHERHENTE (9,090)
Effect of different tax rates applicable to FFJ REHEMENEAEEREZH
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions MEARR TR EN L (6,018)
Tax losses not recognised REERMBIEEE 11,828
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BT HARE BN EATR IE A 2
previous periods (1,942)
Expense not deductible for tax ANAERTR A% X2 2,907
Income not subject to tax AR A (1,069)
Additional tax deduction for research and T 3 5 2 ANEHHBR
development expenditure (5,352)
Tax charge for the year at the Group’s RASBEEBNETED
effective rate FARIBFX 36,070 35,049
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12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

DIVIDENDS 11. BE
2024 2023
2024 &£ 20234
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
2023 final — HK$0.0174 (2022 final — 2023F RH — BREBR
HK$0.0272) per ordinary share P51 0.0174 7T (2022 F K A7
— B#0.02727T) 13,293
2024 interim — Nil (2023 interim — 2024 F AR HE — T (2023 F H Hf
HK$0.0269) per ordinary share — BREREARER0.02697T) 14,566

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the Company were recognised
as distribution during the year after consideration of dividends on the
shares held by the Company’s share award scheme under the trust,
including 2023 final dividend of HK$242,000 declared paid (2022 final
dividend of HK$208,000 declared paid and 2023 interim dividend of
HK$296,000 declared paid).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the board of directors
has resolved not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$0.0174 per ordinary share).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary share of
579,029,022 (2023: 583,074,385) in issue during the year, as adjusted
to reflect the rights issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, adjusted to reflect the interest and fair value gain on the
convertible bonds, where applicable (see below). The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings
per share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

12.

KEBRBETAARARD EETEFE
2RO ERE  RETFAQABEBRAER
WIRENFAERADIK  BIEE TR &K
12023 F R ERRR B8 85 242,000 T (EF IR &
KA 2022 FF R BRI 28 #5 208,000t R E &
& KR 2023 4 A B iR 28 85 296,000 7T) ©

RBEHKE ESgRIATERREEE
2024F 12 A31HIEFEMREKE (2023
FFREREREK0.01747T) °

RARERERRAARGER

2 F

BREABFCERARARNLTBESETEA
JE (R W E R K& FRE % 77579,029,022 i
(20234 : 583,074,385 [I%) & i@ % hn#E F 19 8K
HE R B R AR o

BREERANSHERARAEBREETEA
EEFREMAE  ERHBARBRABRE
HMBER AR EENKE (HEM) (R TX)
SAEMRANERRMETFARAES
BEABANMRBNFASHETEBREAE -
ARBRERBITEXERMEREEEN
B BB AT R EEET S RN
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

12. EARNING PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

Earnings B7

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the BRI E BREAREF| 2 A QR L\
Company, used in the basic earnings per share A ARG RN

12. ARFEEREREABRGER

B F )

BRERNNEERNOTEER

2024
2024 F
HK$°000
BET T

calculation:
Adjusted for: BLAT %
Interest on convertible bonds AR & 5 T B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders ARFtEEREERT 2
of the Company, used in the diluted earnings ARREBERFEEAEERT

per share calculation:

83,031

2023
20234
HK$'000
BETIT

80,048

80,048

Number of shares

RADEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR ESRERRN 2 FA

in issue during the year used in the basic BT R IR T8 (M)

earnings per share calculation (Notes) 579,029,022
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEEE — LmRimnETHE

number of ordinary shares:

Share options fE AR 1,068,750

Convertible bonds AR (E 75 4,657,534
Total st 584,755,306
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EARNING PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) The weighted average number of ordinary shares shown above for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 have been arrived at after adjusting the
shares held by the Company’s share award scheme under the trust.

(b) The weighted average number of ordinary shares shown above for the year
ended 31 December 2024 have been arrived at after adjusting the shares upon
exercise of share options and convertible bonds.

(©) In addition, the number of shares adopted in the calculation of the basic and
diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023
have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect bonus shares which became
effective in July 2024.

(d) The weighted average number of shares was after taking into account the
effect of shares held for Share Award Scheme and cancellation.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 does not assume the exercise of certain
of the Company’s share options because the exercise price of those
options was higher than the average market price for shares for 2024
and 2023.

At the year ended 31 December 2023, because the diluted earnings per
share amount increased when taking convertible bonds into account,
the convertible bonds had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings
per share for the year and were excluded in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share.

Therefore, the diluted earnings per share amount is calculated based on
the profit for the year of HK$83,031,000, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 584,755,306 in issue during the year.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

ARFREBERERARLER

B R )

BREAREERNNAEDER : (B)

B EE -

EXRTREE 2024 & 2023F 12 A31H IEF
EOTRRMETHEDEABRIBETHE
RNARG EEGEFBEORGBIES -

FXHUREE2024F 12 B31 B I FEHETER
METFHH TS AEBRIEITEERNORG R
BB EHBER -

PEAN - G E B E 2024 F £ 2023F 12 A31H 1
FENTRERNREERFERBORN S
BB - LR 2024 F 7 AEREATIR -

Bt nHE P19 B E At R gt Bt B BB 2
Bty RAEHMEE -

SEEE2024F R2023F12A3MBIEEE
NEREERFRTERSARRS TER
RERETE W THRZEERENTEER
2024 F K 2023 F R M THE o

HZE2023F12A31BIEFE > ARt RA#
BREHBSRESEASEILI TRRE
FHFANEREABFEBERBESYE &
STEEREERT IR -

At EREEEANEBEHIENFERNFES
183,031,000 T & F A B 17 I 8B % hntE F
981 584,755,306 Ix 5T & -
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ - BMERRXRE

Electronic
Motor  equipment Leasehold  Construction

Buildings vehicles and others improvements  in progress Total
EFRME HEMF

BF RE REAM % EEIR st

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BET T BT T i BT T

31 December 2024 2024512 A31H

At 1 January 2024 R2024F1 718 :
Cost PR A 94,755 43,948 179,135 57,412 43,799 419,049
Accumulated depreciation REE (28,930) (27,861) (97,791) (30,484) = (185,066)
Net carrying amount BEFE 65,825 16,087 81,344 26,928 233,983

At 1 January 2024, net of 202461 718
accumulated depreciation MR EFATERRE

and impairment 16,087 81,344 PEER LX)
Additions NE 3,907 34,331 64,372
Disposals & (272) (1,883) (2,155)
Depreciation provided FRTERE

during the year (4,545) (5,498) (27,746) - (45,933)
Transfers (note 17) B (5117) 1,058 - 896 (8,836) (216)
Exchange realignment IR (1,355) 33 (2,534) (1,221) (5,864)

At 31 December 2024, netof 202412 318

accumulated depreciation Nk RTE 61,023 14,257 84,408 30,964 53,535 244,187
At 31 December 2024 M2024F 128318 :

Cost AR 93,828 45,055 203,336 69,602 465,356

Accumulated depreciation 2iE (32,805) (30,798) (118,928) (38,638) (221,169)

Net carrying amount REFE 61,023 14,257 84,408 30,964 244,187
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. 1% BERRKRE®

Electronic
Motor equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings vehicles and others  improvements in progress Total
TTRE HEM%E
BT HE REM K ERIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT EETT BETT BETT BT

31 December 2023 20235 12A31H

At 1 January 2023: R2023F1A18 :
Cost A 95,741 40,292 141,878 47,914 22,709 348,534
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (24,754) (25,355) (70,854) (23,148) - (144,111)
Net carrying amount REEE 70,987 14,937 71,024 24,766 22,709 204,423

At 1 January 2023, net of R2023F1R18
accumulated depreciation N 2HATERRE

and impairment 70,987 14,937 71,024 24,766 22,709 204,423
Additions NE - 6,947 33,371 8,121 25,030 73,469
Acquisition of a subsidiary G- =N - - 3,726 - - 3,726
Disposals e - (133) (1,062) (565) - (1,760)
Depreciation provided FARERE

during the year (4,550) (5,472) (25,597) (7,393) - (43,012)
Transfers (note 17) R (E17) 383 - 256 2,184 (3471) (648)
Exchange realignment (RS (995) (192) (374) (185) (469) (2,215)

At 31 December 2023, netof  742023F 12 A31H

accumulated depreciation Mk Rt E 65,825 16,087 81,344 26,928 43,799 233,983
At 31 December 2023: 20236124318

Cost A 94,755 43,948 179,135 57,412 43,799 419,049

Accumulated depreciation ZETE (28,930) (27,861) (97,791) (30,484) - (185,066)

Net carrying amount REFE 65,825 16,087 81,344 26,928 43,799 233,983
As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s buildings with a total M2024F12A318  AEBEETEF (F
carrying value of HK$26,030,000 (2023: HK$29,065,000) were pledged Al 4218 /& 75 # 26,030,000 7T (2023 4 : B #
to obtain a banking facility from a bank amounting to HK$29,804,000 29,065,0007T)) B I - LB RITERE
(2023: HK$19,215,000) (note 25). # 29,804,000 ¢ (20234 : 7 #19,215,000

TO)HYIRTTRLE (MisE25) -
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BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. REWE

HK$'000
BT
Cost: MR
At 1 January 2023 F2023F1 A 1H 30,040
Exchange realignment WA (430)
At 31 December 2023 M 2023F12 A31H 29,610
Exchange realignment N AE (634)
At 31 December 2024 2024412 A31H 28,976
Accumulated depreciation: RitiTE
At 1 January 2023 f2023F1 A1 H (12,554)
Depreciation charge for the year FAFEZH (1,416)
Exchange realignment M 5 2 189
At 31 December 2023 2023F12A31H (13,781)
Depreciation charge for the year FAFEXH (1,396)
Exchange realignment M 5 AR 315
At 31 December 2024 R2024F 12 A31H (14,862)
Net carrying amount IRTEFE
At 31 December 2023 M 2023F 12 A31H 15,829
At 31 December 2024 A 2024%12H831H 14,114

The Group leases out commercial properties under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 3 years (2023: 1 to 3 years), with unilateral rights to
extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees only. Majority of
the lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend. None of the leases includes variable

lease payments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the
end of lease term.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 20 years with 5% residual value.

The Group's investment properties consist of two commercial properties
in Beijing and Cangzhou, the PRC. The Directors have determined
that the class of the investment properties is commercial based on
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The Group’s
investment properties were valued on 31 December 2024 based on
valuations performed by an independent professionally qualified valuer,
at HK$23,066,000 (2023: HK$23,526,000) based on direct comparative
and income methods approach which is classified as level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. There is no change from the valuation method used
in the previous year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There were
no transfers into or out of level 3.

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Group's investment properties
(2023: HK$15,226,000) were pledged to obtain banking facilities (2023:
HK$11,043,000).

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to the
financial statements.

14.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

BEWE @

S [ B B A E 2 P S B S
B W EMAEEOUNEBRERE AN
EEEFE - ZEHEANLTBEFBRE
EERE /FABAREBESRRBEYED
BRI -

LR EMEREFEER20FRITE - Rtk
BIERAS% °

REEMEEYEREF LT LA MM
EEREDE -EZREBEREVENNE &
MREMENRREEETAEAERN K
EEMBEEYMEN2024F12 A31 BIREBE L
BELERGE L EEEBE RIRAEAT
{E(G1E » (H1E A 23,066,000 7T (2023 4 :
715 23,526,0007T) - WA AAABERER
FE-ER -FTENGEEREZRBAFETE
B NEFWEAABER  EEVESR
SREEREEALRAHERNAZ - WEEA
HEHE=ER -

MR2024F 12318 AEBREMEMNE
(20234 : ##15,226,0007T) B W - A
FESIRITEVE (20234 1 B 11,043,0007T) °

KREMEREKLEHERTE=71 BHE—
SRR BN B IHRERMEE 15 -

2024 EHHE TEOBSBBIERBERAR

237



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

As at 31 December 2024

7"2024%12H831H

15. LEASE 15. HE
The Group as a lessee EEBEREEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of leased properties REBEHERARAECENHEYE REME
and machinery used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made EEEMEEEDN - BRATEL —RMERNR
upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods NmEZWEHRE T HEA24Z405F -
of 24 to 40 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the MBRZE T HMBEENGRR TS BEN
terms of these land leases. Leases of properties generally have lease Ko HEME-—RBHRBIENF - HEHM
terms between 1 and 11 years. Leases of machinery generally have —MREHAIF -HELTH —KHEBAR24E
lease terms 3 years. Leases of land generally have lease terms between 40F - —RME  ASEBETEKHEEER
24 and 40 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and AREBENIINSEELRERE - ETHESNET
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There are several lease FRERREIEBEERE  HE—SPFMRRTX o
contracts that include extension and termination options, which are
further discussed below.
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the FR-AEESHEEENREERE
movements during the year are as follows: g
Leased Leased Leasehold
properties machinery land Total
HEWE HEW HELH &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B¥Trx BT B¥Tx
As at 1 January 2023 R2023F1A1H 51,335 - 15,040 66,375
Additions NE 29,608 - - 29,608
Depreciation charge TEZH (19,079) - (511) (19,590)
Exchange realignment ME 5, F8 2 (281) - (212) (493)
As at 31 December 2023 and 2023612 A31H K
1 January 2024 2024F1A1H 61,583 - 14,317 75,900
Additions nE 18,630 1,040 - 19,670
Depreciation charge WESH (22,494) (231) (504) (23,229)
Exchange realignment PE 54 F (1,186) (12) (299) (1,497)

56,533
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15. LEASE (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

15. HE )

REBFER/EEA ()

(b)

HEEE
FR-HERENREERESHNT

2024 2023
2024 & 20234
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT

61,655 49,897
19,649 28,140
2,868 2,995
(24,939) (19,128)
(1,208) (249)

58,025 61,655

Carrying amount at 1 January ®1A1AEEEAE
Additions NE
Accretion of interest recognised during the year F A & R K| B 12 17
Payments R
Exchange realignment I 5, 58 28
Carrying amount at 31 December W12 A31 AEEEE
Analysed into: DR
Current portion mENED
Non-current portion SERBNEL

20,249 17,863
37,776 43,792

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 40 to
the financial statements.

MEARBOEHEDTERBERIERE
FiiEE40 °
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

15. LEASE (Continued)

15. A& W)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) EEBEREEAE)
(c)  The amount recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as (0 REZEREBHHEMNSTOT

follow:

Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Expense relating to short-term leases (included
in cost of sales, administrative expenses and
selling and distribution expenses)

2024 2023
2024 & 20234
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT T BRI

HEBEFRNE 2,868 2,995

FAEEERES D 23,229 19,590

HEHAEsENEY
(BIEHERA - 1THAX
A RSHE M7 ER %) 4,237 5,075

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

RERERNESTE 30,334 27,660

(d) Extension and termination option

(d) ZERRLILEERE

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension AEEETHESGNBEERRKILE
and termination options. These options are negotiated by BE -ZSEEERTEEREN NE
management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset EERHEEEMAS  WAREAEHE
portfolio and they are aligned with the Group’s business needs. WEBFR - HEBKRKP AL EBIEITE
There are no period following the exercise date of extension and ERREEIEEREZ B 21BN HR -

termination options that are not included in the lease terms.
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15. LEASE (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(e) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of

cash flows is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% S a P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

15.

HE®
AEBEAREAE
() HEBETHME

REnEXRTEEMNEERSRHARE

wnr

p1p2:} 2023

2024 F 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Within operating activities LEEENA 4,237 5,075
Within financing activities MEEFHA 24,939 19,128
Total “st 29,176 24,203

The Group as a lessor

AEEERHEA

AEERBCEHELCHASHLEYE (K
H14)  KEHEENHEESRRAE—E=F K
EERFANERNE S WA BB 1,464,000
JC (2023 4F © ##1,272,0007C) * FFEHR Y
BHREMEES o

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term of one to three
years. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$
1,464,000 (2023: HK$ 1,272,000), details of which are included in note
5 to the financial statements.

R2024F 12 A31H - AEEEBFERKE

At 31 December 2024, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by

the Group in future periods under operating leases with its tenants are

as follows:

BRBEEHERKRNARMBERENKNOT

2024 2023

2024 2023 F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Within one year —FR" 1,530 1,535
Over 1 to 2 year B —E=mF 281 1,535
Over 2 to 3 year BB _E=%F - 285
Total Bt 3,355

2024 F ERE PR IBRR
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

16. GOODWILL 16. EHE

HK$'000

BT
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2023 202351 A1 AWK A RREEE 30,341
Acquisition of a subsidiary g1 by PNG)| 3,140
Exchange realignment ME 5, F8 B 540
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2023 72023412 A 31 BWRA KREFE 34,021
Impairment during the year FHRE (1,575)
Exchange realignment PE 54 F (1,001)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2024 R2024F 12 A1 BNAA K REFE 31,445

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units (“CGUs") for impairment testing:

BREBAHIMENEHECOEENTHR
CEABRM((REEEEMD ERER -

o Regional commodity inspection service-rendering CGUs in Greater
China;

° Regional commodity inspection service-rendering CGUs in
Singapore;

° Regional environmental testing service-rendering CGUs in Greater
China;

° Regional commodity inspection service-rendering CGUs in other

locations; and

o Regional environmental monitoring service-rendering CGUs in
Greater China.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to the CGUs are as follows:

Regional commodity inspection
service-rendering CGUs in Greater China
Regional commodity inspection
service-rendering in CGUs Singapore
Regional environmental testing
service-rendering in CGUs Greater China
Regional commodity inspection
service-rending CGUs in other locations
Regional environmental monitoring
service-rendering CGUs in Greater China

PR E R E) MR M miniR
RGRHUREEEEM
TAFT DN H 3 (2 1 7 mR A B
G R e ELEEM
RAFE R MR TR TR
RIS IR S EE B
RE AR B 3 R M i 5
RGRHREEEEM
AP EE R R0 & 1 IR IT 8L R
IR HR e ELEF M

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

16. BE )

PEERSELBUMNPMEREMENT
2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 %
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
2,686 2,774
17,165 17,724
274 1,867

8,322 8,593

2,998 3,063

Total “aEt

31,445 34,021

The recoverable amount of the regional commaodity inspection service-
rendering CGU in Greater China has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 13%
(2023: 13%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
regional commodity inspection service-rendering unit beyond the five-
year period is 2% (2023: 2%). In the opinion of the directors, there is
no impairment required as at the end of each reporting period.

The recoverable amount of the regional commodity inspection service-
rendering CGU in Singapore which was acquired in year 2019 has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 14% (2023: 14%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the regional commodity inspection
service-rendering unit beyond the five-year period is 2% (2023: 2%). In
the opinion of the directors, there is no impairment required as at the
end of each reporting period.

RAFEZERMNEEERBBRERERS
EXBNHTKRESENRERBESRE
FERGEFERAEEMETE  ZReRETER
NEREREEMERE A FHMNTKE
HAHEE -BRESREBAMFATENIRE X
513% (20234 : 13%) - HEE R EE SRR
RRGREECBATFHRHENBLRERN
FRMERR 2% (2023F 1 2%) - BER
B RERERRBAETIRARE -

RETIMERN R G REBRRFIREMASE
EBEMR2019F S - HAl e £ 8 IR &
FRBEREBEAFECAEEMNET %
BeReEBALSGEREEAMERERTF
BN BEEAEE - BRESRETE R
BRI RTAGIR R B 14% (2023F : 14%) - #E
MR RAeRRSIREENBRAFEE
MRS MEMEARIEREE2% (20234 ¢
2%) c BEERE - REWMERBEIRAE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

16. GOODWILL (Continued) 16. BE )

The recoverable amount of the regional environmental testing service-
rendering CGU in Greater China has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 22%
(2023: 17%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the regional environmental testing service-rendering unit beyond the
five-year period is 2% (2023: 2%). The carrying amount of the regional
environmental testing service-rendering CGU in Greater China was
impaired by HK$1,575,000 during the year ended 31 December 2024.
Consequently, the carrying amount of goodwill was written down by
HK$1,575,000. The impairment loss recognised was included in “other
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The recoverable amount of the regional commodity inspection service-
rendering CGU in other location has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 17%
(2023: 17%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the regional commodity inspection service-rendering unit beyond the
five-year period is 2% (2023: 2%). In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, there is no impairment required as at the end of the
reporting period.

The recoverable amount of the regional environmental monitoring
service-rendering CGU in Greater China has been determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 15%
(2023: 15%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
regional environmental testing service-rendering unit beyond the five-
year period is 2% (2023: 2%). In the opinion of the directors, there is
no impairment required as at the end of the reporting period.
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REM IR A= SRR BRIRBREES
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BRAFEFEREEMEE  ZReRETER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the CGUs
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections
to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margin — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved during the year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of each CGU
to exceed its recoverable amount.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, for the regional
environmental testing service-rendering, a reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions of the cash flow projections would cause its
carrying amount exceed its recoverable amount. If the budgeted gross
margin increased or decreased by 10% from 50%, the impairment
loss would decrease by HK$1,575,000 or increase by HK$274,000,
respectively, during the year ended 31 December 2024. If the discount
rate increased or decreased by 10% from 22%, the impairment
loss would increase by HK$274,000 or decrease by HK$768,000,
respectively, during the year ended 31 December 2024.

16.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

BHE @

SHER2024F HM2023F 12 A31BNREE
FEMNFEABEREBETEBR - UTAE
BEREHRE SRS TN B #ETRER
AN EEB®BE

BEENX — AREEREENEEENE
ERNFANMERNFHERNE - FAFEF K
KT RIEF HISHAEME

BRI E — PIRANBREAWARE - &
BRT AR E AR -

BEERRE TUZERRNEMAEE
EPregysReELEUNEREERD
HAJ el ¢ 5 o

RAREZRAE MEMRFERRBIRBREMR
ms BenEBlFTERENEEA EE
PeEYAREEBLETKRE S5 - 8
EEFEAS50% G Mz 10% @ BIE =
2024F 12 A31 HILFERBEREBE S BRI
78 # 1,575,000 7T =K 3 AN 7% & 274,000 7C © {8
AR B 22% G NS R 4> 10% - BIE E 2024
F12A3M B IEFEREESER S BIEINEE
274,000 7T 33 > 7 5 768,000 7T ©

2024 EHHE TEOBSBBIERBERAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2024
Cost at 1 January 2024, net of
accumulated amortisation
Addition
Transfers (note 13)
Amortisation provided
during the year
Exchange realignment

20245128311

7202451 A1 B
A - kR RET#E N

NE

s (MFE13)

FEREHEE

O 34 B

At 31 December 2024, net of
accumulated amortisation

R2024F12A318 >
BR RATEEGH

At 31 December 2024:

A20245F128318 :

Cost BN
Accumulated amortisation RFHEH
Net carrying amount BRERE

31 December 2023
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of

202312 A31H
720231 A1 A

17.

Patents
and
licences

ERRER
HK$'000
BT

BIVEE

Software

LA
HK$'000
AT

2,334
133
216

(431)
(42)

4,271
(2,061)

2,210

Customer
relationships
and
inspection
certifications
EFBRARR
RBRARE
HK$'000
BT T

Total

att
HK$'000
BB

accumulated amortisation A - HNBR R AT 1,349 2,033 522 3,904
Addition NE 97 117 - 214
Transfers (note 13) s (M 13) - 648 - 648
Amortisation provided FREHRE

during the year (244) (433) (485) (1,162)
Disposal HE (980) - - (980)
Exchange realignment M 5 AR (12) (31) 4 39
At 31 December 2023, net of R2023F12 8318

accumulated amortisation HBR REHEEGH 210 2,334 41 2,585
At 31 December 2023: A2023F12H8318 :

Cost BN 630 4,007 2,708 7,345

Accumulated amortisation R (420) (1,673) (2,667) (4,760)
Net carrying amount REFE 210 2,334 41 2,585
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

18. EZBRUREREREE

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Trade and bills receivables 5N TE & E R E S 233,750 218,424
Impairment A (12,355) (9,583)
Total et 221,395 208,841

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally ranged from on demand and
up to three months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade and bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

No trade and bills receivables (2023: HK$20,210,000) were pledged to
secure a bank loan.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

AEEHREEPHNRZGERIBEREER
M EFPBEERBNRGI EEHER
NFRERERZ=EA AKESKER
THAREERERA SREEABTHE
T s  AEBY RIE HE WA R
R Z AR A AR ER R EAMERE
o BHRUHKBARBREETEES -

MECEAE S EEARERER (2023

F : B%20,210,000 7T) AERSIRTTER -

RBEHRRBERZAM2N T HRIBRE
BB 5B NIA M R IB R BRI D AT AT -

2024 2023

2024 £ 20234

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T PR T T

Within 3 months 3EAMUA 177,508 171,431
Over 3 to 6 months 3EANLEE6EAR 25,113 22,417
Over 6 months to 1 year 6EMANEETF 13,578 8,345
Over 1 to 2 years 16 EZE25F 3,641 5,107
Over 2 years 2F A F 1,555 1,541
Total HBET 221,395 208,841
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. ESEWFERERERE &)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and bills
receivables are as follows:

At beginning of the year F9)
Impairment losses, net WEEX  FE

BHRBFEARERERRERARENE
BT

2024 2023
2024 & 20234
HKS$ 000 HK$'000
BT T ST T

(CR1:)) (5,648)
(6,544) (3,362)
3,445 17

327 (590)

Amount written off as uncollectible I 85 5 A I B kI8
Exchange realignment VE 5 %
At end of year FR

(12,355) (9,583)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other
forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade and bills receivables are written off if
past due for more than five years and are not subject to enforcement
activity.

As at 31 December 2024, included in the above provision for
impairment of trade receivables was a provision for individually impaired
trade receivables of HK$1,670,000 (2023: HK$859,000) with a carrying
amount before provision of HK$1,670,000 (2023: HK$1,707,000).
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RERE HRRA R EREETREDN
Ut ERHMEERA - BEXDERAASE
MEERA (AR - ERER - BPEM R
o A DA B A R RE B E A A SR A5 A 4R B RO 7K
REE) W ZEF P 7 #BAE R B H A BETE -
ZAtERREARNEER EEHERR
BERHAGNERBESEE BRI R
RRGEERGBANEGERAISEER - — K
mE - BZEUFIAREREERANAFIA
LEMeE - BETXRBIMITEESMR

M2024F 12 A31 0 - Ll 8 B EREIBRE
BEPEERNREE 2 EWRIEAE 1,670,000
7T (20234 : B# 859,000 7T) * B ERIBREE
575 81,670,000 (20234 : 781,707,000
JT) °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. ES B EREBRREE @)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TEREINAEBEFRARBERAEANE HE
Group's trade and bills receivables using a provision matrix: WHELERZENEERBRER
As at 31 December 2024 M2024612A31H

Current Past due Total

BN A S}k #t

Gross carrying amount BERTE(E 180,329 51,751 232,080
ECLs RHEERL 2,821 7,864 10,685
Average loss rate T8k kK 1.56% 15.20% 4.60%
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12 831 H

Current Past due Total

RNER 2 4 B #E

Gross carrying amount BARTEE 171,950 44,767 216,717
ECLs TAEEEEX 518 8,206 8,724
Average loss rate FHHE R E 0.30% 18.33% 4.03%
As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s trade and bills MR2024F12831H  AEENE 5 EW
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RERERERESRT BEEEABE
HK$53,421,000 (2023: HK$46,474,000) which are past due as at the 53,421,000t (20234 : /& ¥ 46,474,000 7T )
reporting date. The past due balances is not considered as in default WEWEFAMEAHE e - ERERZ
due to the management'’s historical experience on the settlement EEBAGEEANEL LRI BADEN
pattern or record from these debtors and the good business relationship REZEEHBANRTEERE UEKE
with these debtors. B B A R IR EIR KD ©

2024 FEEHRE HESREHRIERERAT 249



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER ASSETS

Prepayments
Deposits, and other receivables
Loans to a supplier*

ST e
R A R SR
R — % L A ) B3¢

19.

BNFIE - HaEWERIER 4

BE

2024
2024 F
HKS$ 000
BT T

16,311
25,368
9,168

Allowance for credit losses

EEBRXEE

50,847

(460)

Portion classified as non-current assets

DBERIFRBEEND

50,387

(2,962)

Current portion

mENE D

47,425

* The loans to a supplier were given by the group based on market rate.

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits, deposit
paid for purchase of leasehold land and property, plant and equipment,
and deposits with suppliers. Where applicable, an impairment analysis
is performed at each reporting date by considering the probability of
default of comparable companies with published credit ratings.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts.
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the loss allowance was assessed to

be minimal.
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2023
20234
HK$'000
BT
18,026

19,640
7,948

45,614

(472)

45,142

(1,151)

43,991

* 7] — % S RE P MO B 3R Pl A SR R T 5 R R FR A

BehEMEWHEIEEEERE BE
MELH WX BERRBZRE RHE
BEE - WER KERAEIFEHTRDN
AELBRARNENOREER  REE®RER

HETTRE DT

BREELAZGHRNNEREE BN OSHT
EEO NS EEN EEIE - R2024F &
2023F 12 A31 8 BREBEWTTE AEM -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20. ¥ A ABHET AEBENEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Wealth management products B ER 1,471
Listed securities RS
— Perpetual equity securities — KARARF S 4,714
The above unlisted investments were wealth management products LI EMIRE AR ARITEITHEMER -
issued by banks in Hong Kong. They were mandatorily classified as ZERBEWBFSDBRARAABEMNAER
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual WEREE WIHHREANRSREWIE
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest. MEAENARESEFE -
The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair RSB AEEN A M2 E KSR R
value through profit or loss as the Group has not elected to recognise ANABERGZNEE  LAREREE S
the fair value gain or loss through other comprehensive income. BIEAABEFABENEREE -
21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 21. B2 RBITHER
2024 2023
2024 2023 %
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cash on hand FHERE 93 143
Bank balances RIT4E R 267,142 227,107
Time deposits TE BT 41,213 39,614
Cash and bank balances e MIRITHR 308,448 266,864
Less: Time deposits pledged for borrowings W ERIERREOERED
and port access right I8 BF 160
Non-pledged time deposits with original BEERIBHAE=FANL LS
maturity of more than three months FEHE IR E BRE X
when acquired 38,487 39,454
Cash and cash equivalents HekRaEED 267,235 227,250
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued) 21.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“"RMB”) amounted to
HK$146,723,000 (2023: HK$144,487,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Chinese Mainland’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

22. TRADE PAYABLES 22,

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

HeRBITEER®

RITASREESRRITERMELEBHH X
REOANE - EMEFRBEAKRENNRKR S
FRAENRE RHFA - L IRAE DN EHF K
MERDANE - RITEBREERERDER
RO EIERE L B AEERRTT -

RIBERK AEBUARE [AR%E]) &
ERIR S MIRTTH % BB % 146,723,000 T
(20234 : % 144,487,0007T) - AR T
BRELBAEMER - R - RIFPBEAH G
EEEEM) R(GEE - EBUARNEEER
) AEBEASBEREETIEERD
RITHARE L RIELMEE -

BEZENE

RBERRBSEAW2HHE SN R
BB ST -

2024 2023

2024 F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BB T

41,433 42,022
5,189 8,639
825 993
111 256

Within 3 months 3EANUA

Over 3 to 6 months 3EALAEZE6MEA
Over 6 months to 1 year 6MEAEE1EF
Over 1 to 2 years 1FEE2F
Total st

47,558 51,910

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-
day terms.
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. 6 AE

Details of contract liabilities are as follows: ERHBEEFBET

e NI 1T 31 December 1 January
2024 2023 2023

2024 F 20234 20234
12A31H 12H31H 1H1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT BETT

Short-term advances received from customers 2 Y 5 52 BiE8 3

Rendering of services R 8,029 3,565
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to render AEHNEERERERBE MK EHEN -
services. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2024 was mainly due to ARBER2024FE R T EZHERFER
the decrease in short-term advances received from customers in relation BB REEBENERE P EHRARRD
to the provision of inspection services at the end of the year.
24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. Hitt B RIEREFTIER
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits EitEe TENER 48,016 46,660
Other taxes payable H TR R 4,159 3,404
Payable to vendors of property, plant and equipment  JEf 42 - E MR B E X FUA 5,004 2,475
Other payables Hoh A~ RIE 22,813 18,616
79,992 71,155
Portion classified as non-current liabilities DEAIERBDEENILS ((F3)) (723)
Current portion T ENER 79,361 70,432
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed terms of HA I FIERAG E R EEEAER -
settlement.
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 25. iFERITER

As at 31 December 2024
M2024%12831R8

As at 31 December 2023
#2023 128318

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity HK$°000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BBRAIE (%) BR BT EGCEERD) R AETT
Current E
Bank loans — unsecured BITER — BIEH 2.7-3.9 13,516 3.65-4.1 2024 3,867
Bank loans — quaranteed/secured  $RITEH — BER/THA 2.75-35 34,366 25-86 2024 44,663
Total @ 47,882 48,530
Analysed into: AME:
Bank loans: RITER:
Within one year —£R 48,530

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s bank loans amounting to
HK$29,804,000 (31 December 2023: HK$19,215,000) were secured by
the Group's certain buildings of property, plant and equipment (Note
13).

As at 31 December 2024, Group’s bank loans amounting to HK$
4,562,000 (31 December 2023: Nil) were secured by Shenzhen High-
Tech Investment and Financing Guarantee Co., LTD. (a third party
finance company). Lihong Inspection Group Limited has executed a
counter-guarantee to Shenzhen High-Tech Investment and Financing
Guarantee Co., LTD. in respect of this loan. The Group did not pay or
incur any liability during the current year (2023: Nil) for the purpose of
fulfilling the guarantee.

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Group’s bank loans (31
December 2023: HK$11,043,000) were secured by certain investment
properties (Note 14). None of the Group’s bank loans (31 December
2023: HK$14,405,000) were secured by trade and bills receivables (Note
18).

Bank loans carry a weighted average effective interest rate at 2.7% to
3.9% (2023: 2.5% to 8.6%) and will mature in 2024.
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M2024F 12318 "EBBITERS
#29,804,0007C (20234F12 A31 8 : B
19,215,00070) AAEEE T - BE KR
2 BT (5E13) -

MR2024F 128318 AEBEETEREE
4,562,0007C (2023412 A31H : ) g5
MEfEREERERAT (F=FHBAR])
REER - NERBEEERAGNCHLE
HAARINTERFERERERBRABIFILR
ER - ANEBMRAFEANL EFRBITERM
RN EEEMAR (20235 « &) °
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25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Continued) 25. ST EBITER @)
The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the following BFEARENL T EE -
currencies:

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Singapore dollar T - 5,919

RMB AR 47,882 34,124

United States dollar ETT = 8,487

Total #Et 48,530
An analysis of the carrying amounts of borrowings by type of interest ERRAEERMNEEREDHATAT

rate is as follows:

2024 2023

2024 % 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Fixed interest rate [ 7E F) & 15,346 -

Variable interest rate A # FI 2R 32,536 48,530

Total st 47,882 48,530
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 26. AIRRES

The Company issued HK$50,000,000, 2% convertible bonds at a
par value of HK$1 each on 11 June 2021. The convertible bonds are
denominated in HK$. The convertible bonds entitle the holders to
convert them into ordinary shares of the Company since the date
falling six months of the date of issue of the convertible bonds to up
to and including the date which is 3 days prior to the maturity date on
11 June 2026 at a conversion price of HK$1.63 per conversion share.
The conversion price shall be adjusted as provided in the convertible
bond instrument in specific cases. The holder has the option to require
the Company to redeem all or part of the convertible bonds together
with any then outstanding unpaid interest on the dates, including
third anniversary, the day falling three years and six months, the
fourth anniversary and the day falling four years and six months of the
issue date of the convertible bond with redemption price at 118%,
121%, 124% and 127% of the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible bonds respectively. If the convertible bonds have not been
converted, they will be redeemed on 11 June 2026 at 130% of the
then outstanding principal amount of those convertible bonds or any
part thereof together with outstanding interest accrued thereon.

On 26 June 2023, the Company proposed to amend the terms of the
Convertible Bonds (the “Amendments”) with the bondholder, as
follows:

(@  changing the currency of denomination of the Convertible
Bonds from HK$ to USS$, such that the principal amount of
the Convertible Bonds was changed from HK$50,000,000 to
US$6,410,256.41 (based on an exchange rate of HK$7.8 to
US$1.0 and rounded off to two decimal places), such that the
principal amount remained unchanged save for the conversion to
a rounded off US$ equivalent;

(b) changing the currency of payment for all future payment
obligations (including payment of any interest and principal) of
the Company under the Convertible Bonds from HK$ to US$ (for
the avoidance of doubt, there shall be no retrospective effect to
any payment under the Convertible Bonds which has been made
prior to the effective date of the Amendments);
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(0

(d)

(e)

changing the Conversion Price to US$0.1730 and adding an
agreed exchange rate of HK$7.8 to US$1.0 (rounded down to
four decimal places) (the “Conversion Exchange Rate"”), such
that the Conversion Price was the rounded down US$ equivalent
to HK$1.35 (being the Conversion Price after the Convertible
Bonds Adjustment). For the avoidance of doubt, the number of
Conversion Shares to be allotted and issued upon full conversion
of the Convertible Bonds remained largely the same as that after
the Convertible Bonds Adjustment save for a slight increase in
number due to the rounding of the Conversion Price, i.e., from
37,037,037 Shares to 37,053,505 Shares;

other consequential changes as a result of the Amendments
above, including changing the denomination of the outstanding
principal amount when the bondholder requests for early
redemption or transfer from HK$1,000,000 to US$200,000 or
any integral multiples thereof; and

other housekeeping change including updating the principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company.

Save for the Amendments, all other principal terms of the Convertible
Bonds remain unchanged.

At the date of the change of terms, the fair value of the liability

component was estimated at that date using an equivalent market

interest rate for a similar bond without a conversion option. The

residual amount is assigned as the equity component and is included in
shareholders’ equity.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 26. ATARES @)

On 11 June 2024, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Convertible Bonds, the Company has fully redeemed the principal under
the outstanding Convertible Bonds in cash.

On 8 October 2024, the Company issued US$3,846,153.85 (equivalent
to HK$30,000,000 based on an exchange rate of HK$7.8 to US$1
and rounded off to two decimal places), 5% convertible bonds. The
convertible bonds are denominated in US$. The convertible bonds
entitle the holder to convert the whole or part of the principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds into Conversion Shares from the date falling
six months of the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds up to and
including the date which is three days prior to the Maturity Date on
8 October 2029 at a conversion price of US$0.1923 (equivalent to
HK$1.50 based on the exchange rate of HK$7.8 to US$1 and rounded
down to four decimal places) per Conversion Share. The conversion
price shall be adjusted as provided in the convertible bond instrument in
specific cases. The holder shall have the right at its option, to require the
Company to redeem (a) all or part of the Convertible Bonds together
with any then outstanding unpaid interest by giving the Company a
notice of redemption in accordance with the terms of the Convertible
Bonds if any event of default under the CB Instrument occurs and is
continuing with redemption price at 115% of the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds, and (b) all the Convertible Bonds
together with any then outstanding unpaid interest by giving the
Company a notice of redemption in accordance with the terms of the
Convertible Bonds at any time during the period between the first day
of the 25 months following the Issue Date and the last day immediately
preceding the Maturity Date with redemption price at 108% of
the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Bonds. If the
convertible bonds have not been converted, they will be redeemed on
8 October 2029 at 108% of the then outstanding principal amount of
those convertible bonds or any part thereof together with outstanding
interest accrued thereon.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated at the issuance
date using an equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond without
a conversion option. The residual amount is assigned as the equity
component and is included in shareholders’ equity. The holder has the
option to require the Company to redeem all or part of the convertible
bonds together with any then outstanding unpaid interest on the dates.
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 26. ATRARKRESE @
The movement of the convertible bonds for the year is set out as below: FRAMBRESEBHEINNT :
HK$'000
BT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2023 MN2023F1 A1 AKREE 50,861
Changes in fair value charged to profit or loss REZHRN AR EEZD 3,517
At 28 June 2023 7202346 F28H 54,378
Loss on change to terms of convertible bond AT AR E iR B e 2 18 270
Transfer to equity reserve ERE RS (5,633)
Exchange realignment ME H & 34
Liability component at the terms change date REREB A M aER D 49,049
Interest expense FERZ 2,627
Convertible exercised BITE A BRERES (3,042)
Exchange realignment M B (22)
Liability component at 31 December 2023 2023F 12 A31BEEED 48,612
Interest expense FMEM% 2,646
Convertible bond redeemed by cash 20246 A1 AR S E R A RARES
on 11 June 2024 (56,271)
Loss on liability component of convertible bond ERHRKRESBESHVERE
on redemption 1,234
Transfer from reserves upon redemption BOREEA G 3,923
Exchange realignment VE % (144)
Liability component at 11 June 2024 2024F6 A1 BEESS -
At 8 October 2024 7202410 A8 H
Nominal value of convertible bonds issued FRE BT BRRKRESREE
during the year 30,000
Equity component AL (10,250)
Liability component at the issuance date ZITHEMNBER D 19,750
Interest expense *J,%'\E'-ﬂfi 306
Exchange realignment WA (111)
Liability component at 31 December 2024 MR2024F 12 A3 AMBEE D 19,945
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27. EEBIR
ERETEHEREREAENEDHOT |

27. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are
as follows:

EEHESE

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value
adjustment
on intangible
assets
arising from
Right-of use ~ Withholding  acquisition of
assets tax subsidiaries
RREHE
AREEN
BREEN
ERAEEE BB QAEERE Hith &%
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2024 R2024%1818 10,581 2,988 314 134 14,017
Deferred tax ERHE
Charged/(credited) to the statement ~ FRK A,/ (GFA) BER
of profit or loss during the year (f3E10)
(note 10)
Transfer to current tax (note 10) B AERIE (51 10)
Exchange realignment B 5 o8

R2024512 A31 BEL
HEakes

Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31
December 2024

EEBREE

Provision for
impairment
of trade
receivables
and other
receivables
E S EW
RIERHAM
e
RERE
HK$'000
BT T

Deferred tax assets

Lease
liabilities

HERE
HK$°000

At
HK$°000
BT

BT T

At 1 January 2024

Deferred tax
(Charged)/credited to the statement of

profit or loss during the year (note 10)

Exchange realignment

R202451818

EERETA
FAGKRAE)FABRRER
(K 10)
bE 5 S

10,548

(101)
(309)

Gross deferred tax assets at
31 December 2024

R 2024F 12 B 31 BIELERIA
BEBE

10,138
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27. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 27. IELERIE ()
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are FNELEHEEEREENEZEHNAT | (B)

as follows: (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEEE
Fair value
adjustment
on intangible
assets
arising from
Right-of Withholding  acquisition of
use assets tax subsidiaries Others Total
S EER B
NAEEM
EVAEM
PREEE BIE AABEAE Hit Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETL EETT BETT BT

At 1 January 2023 W2023F1 818 9,037 1,877 319 135 11,368
Deferred tax EERE
Charged to the statement of profit ~ FRMKREEER
or loss during the year (note 10) (HEE10) 1,621 4,482 - - 6,103
Transfer to current tax (note 10) B HARIE (:10) - (3,371) - - (3,371)
Exchange realignment AR (77) - (5) (1) (83)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R2023F12 A31 BEL
31 December 2023 WEBREERE 10,581 2,988 314 134 14,017
Deferred tax assets EERBEE
Provision for
impairment
of trade
receivables
Lease and other
liabilities receivables Total
=Yy
FIE N E A
FEUGRIE
HEaE BB A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT BT

At 1 January 2023 7R2023F1A1H 8,721 958 9,679
Deferred tax IRIEF IR
Credited to the statement of profit FRFFAEREE
or loss during the year (note 10) (B 5E10) 1,898 690 2,588
Exchange realignment Rk (71) 291 220
Gross deferred tax assets at 7R2023F 12 A31 BIELEFRE
31 December 2023 BEEMTE 10,548 1,939 12,487
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27. EERIE @)

MIBME  ETEEHBEEERBEDHE
SRR RFIEE - LT REAEE I B3R
EMERLERBEGDT :

27. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the statement of financial position. The following
is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

2024 2023
2024 5% 20234

HK$ 000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

RERE B IEAR RIERE

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position RIERTE & =558 2,250
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERE BN R ER
consolidated statement of financial position BERIBBEFHE 3,780

The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in Chinese Mainland of
HK$ 86,058,000 (2023: HK$76,446,000) that will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

The Group also has accumulated tax losses arising in Hong Kong and
other countries/regions of HK$121,368,000 (2023: HK$105,693,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Chinese Mainland. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
tax on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chinese
Mainland. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Chinese Mainland and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
obtained the Hong Kong tax resident qualification and subsequently the
Company is subject to 5% withholding tax on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland.
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28.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 27.

At 31 December 2024, deferred tax liabilities of HK$2,507,000 have
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of HK$50,140,000 that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Chinese
Mainland for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately HK$173,835,000 at 31 December 2024 (2023:
HK$151,257,000). In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

EERIE (&)

MR2024F12A31H EERBEEBE
2,507,000 7T B Bt 78 & B T 8 A Rl B S T8 0
i B oK B H &2 )75 ¥ 50,140,000 7T FE (- 9 38
MR- MN2024F12 8318 B &
EANEHB AT AR ARAERELHBEE
BT B M 22 RABEE L 40 BB 1 173,835,000 7T
(20234 : #&#151,257,0007C) - EER A
ZEWBARER RARTRAEDRZE
B -

RN B i H BRSO AN B AR I A B 7 P45 A5
‘R -

SHARE CAPITAL 28. BRA
Shares 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
&3 202412 831H 2023412 A31H
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
RGEE H{E [4nE ¢E! [k
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T B BT T F A& BT
Issued and fully paid: BREITRHR
Ordinary shares of S R% E{E0.00005 % 7T
US$0.00005 each ) 3 3 Ak 599,600 541,631 210
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Group's issued capital is as follows:

28. BRA (@)
AEBMDETERSHPEMT -

Number of Share
shares capital
RBEE [N
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 January 2023 7R2023F1A1H 487,861 189
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options (note 2) 171 B A 114 B 1TAX 1D (M 5% 2) 2,356 1
Convertible bonds exercised (note 3) TER R ES (HFE3) 2,543 1
Issue of bonus shares (note 1) BEATHIAR (FTE1) 48,871 19
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 R2023F 12 A31B X 2024F1A1H 541,631 210
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options (note 4) 17 {# B X 14 21T 19 (M FE4) 3,770 2
Issue of bonus shares (note 1) BEATHIAR (FE1) 54,199 21
At 31 December 2024 M2024612A31H 599,600 233
Note 1:  During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company issued 48,871,498 MisE1: BEZE2023F12A31BLEFE  ARAER
bonus shares to the existing shareholders (the “2023 Bonus Issue”), on 2023F7RARERER/RA TRRMET—
the basis of one new share for every ten shares then currently held on 4 July 8 A 1 B9 EEE 1) 2R 75 % 3R %% 17 48,871,498

2023. ARAT AR (12023 FAIBR BT ) ©
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company issued 54,198,730 HZE2024F12A31BIEFE  ARAER
bonus shares to the existing shareholders (the “2024 Bonus Issue”), on 20247 R2BERERHE TIRERMHET—
the basis of one new share for every ten shares then currently held on 2 July %8 A 1 B9 E e 171 3R 75 % 3R %% 17 54,198,730

2024. FRAT AL ([2024 FALRR AT ) ©
Note 2:  The subscription rights attaching to 2,356,000 share options were exercised MisE2 : 2,356,000 1) & Ax 1 AT BT RS R R EE T
at the subscription price of an average of HK$1.053 per share (adjusted BB 1.0537T (KEITAREFE) 1T
after bonus issue of shares), resulting in the issue of 2,356,000 shares for i - B 217 2,356,000 f% B 17 - 42 (8 (30
a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$2,482,000. An amount MBS AT) A8 % 2,482,000 7T - BB AR IEETT
of HK$922 was transferred from the share option reserve to share capital 1% - B 922 TE MBREREERERE -

upon the exercise of the share options.

Note 3:  The subscription rights attaching to 2,542,912 convertible bonds were MEEE3 : 2,542,912 BRFTIARRE 5 FT P iR B IR R BB (B

exercised at the subscription price of an average of US$0.1573 (adjusted
after bonus issue of shares) per share and an agreed exchange rate of
HK$7.8 to US$1.0, resulting in the issue of 2,542,912 shares. An amount of
HK$992 was transferred from the convertible bond equity reserve to share
capital upon the exercise.
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29.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note 4:  The subscription rights attaching to 3,770,000 share options were exercised

at the subscription price of an average of HK$0.995 per share (adjusted
after bonus issue of shares), resulting in the issue of 3,770,000 shares for
a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$3,752,000. An amount
of HK$1,470 was transferred from the share option reserve to share capital
upon the exercise of the share options.

Note 5:  The Company purchased its shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at

a total consideration of HK$13,030,000.00 which was paid wholly in cash
in accordance with section 257 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
6,504,000 purchased shares will be cancelled in 2025. As at 31 December
2024, the Group had 27,829,000 (2023: 15,930,000, adjusted after bonus
issue of shares) purchased shares classified as shares held for the share
award scheme.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Group’s employees, directors and other
participants in order to retain and provide incentive to the employees
of the Group to achieve its business objectives. The Scheme became
effective on 5 May 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date. The refreshment of the
Scheme mandate limit was approved on 29 September 2021.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of approval by the shareholders of the Company and as such
limit is refreshed by the shareholders from time to time. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each eligible participant under the Scheme and
any other option schemes (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to an
eligible participant would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to such eligible participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
representing in aggregate over 1% of the total number of shares
in issue, such further grant must be separately approved by the
shareholders at the general meeting.

28.

29.
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRESTE (o

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors of the Company. For the share options granted up to 31
December 2023, the vesting period varies from Nil to three years and
the exercisable period is five years commencing from each vesting date.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of the Company
while any option remains exercisable, such corresponding alterations
(if any) shall be made in the number or nominal amount of shares
subject to the option so far as unexercised, and/or the subscription
price, provided that any alteration shall be made on the basis that
the proportion of the issued share capital of the Company to which a
grantee is entitled after such alteration shall remain the same as that to
which he or she or it was entitled before such alteration and that the
aggregate subscription price payable by a grantee on the full exercise of
any option shall remain as nearly as possible the same.

There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group does not have
a past practice of cash settlement for these share options. The Group
accounts for the Scheme as an equity-settled plan.

The number of shares and exercise price under the Scheme disclosed
below has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the bonus issue of
share that became effective on 2 July 2024 and 4 July 2023 (note 28).
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Particulars and movements of the target shares under the Scheme:

29. BRESTE e
BB AR HE S BITE TR R IR S A B

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at  Exercised Lapsed at  Exercised Lapsed at
1 January during during 31 December during during 31 December Exercise  Exercise
Grantee Date of offer Notes 2023 year year 2023 year year 2024 price  period
H20235F #2023 % #2024
1818 128318 128318
BRAL EREE (i KTE  ERTR FRXN KM FRTE FRAR TR RE RS
'000 '000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 '000 ‘000 ‘000
T T T T T T T T
(Adjusted) (Adjusted) (Adjusted) (Adjusted) (Adjusted) (Adjusted) (Adjusted) (Adjusted)
(aR%)  (g%RB)  (ER%) (B8 (8ER)  (E8@%) (BEB)  (48%)
Directors
2
YANG Rongbing 23 July 2018 (b) 1,464 (1,464) - - - - - 0965 23 July 2018 to 22 July 2023
BRE 201857 A 238 201857 A23BZ203%57F22A
YANG Rongbing 23 July 2018 (b) 1,464 - - 1,464 (1,464) - - 0965 23 July 2019 to 22 July 2024
BRE 2018578236 2019567 A23HZ20457A228
YANG Rongbing 23 July 2018 (b) 1,464 - - 1,464 - - 1,464 0965 23 July 2020 to 22 July 2025
BRE 2018578238 202067823AZ 202557 A28
LI Xiangli 15 July 2021 © 1,597 - - 1,597 - = 1,597 1.607 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027
Eor] 2021678158 02%7R15A2202757 A14R
LI Xiangli 15 July 2021 (© 1,597 - - 1,597 - - 1,597 1607 15]uly 2023 to 14 July 2028
i 202157 A158 202357 A1582208% 7R 14A
LI Xiangli 15 July 2021 (© 2,130 - - 2,130 - - 2,130 1607 15]uly 2024 to 14 July 2029
FmA| 202157158 20457 A15HZ2029%7 A 148
ZHANG Alying 15 July 2021 (© 999 - - 999 - - 999 1607 15July 2022 to 14 July 2027
REH 202157/ 158 0257 A15H2202757A 148
ZHANG Alying 15 July 2021 (© 999 - - 999 - - 999 1607 15July 2023 to 14 July 2028
RER 201578158 20357A15HZ2028%57A 148
ZHANG Alying 15 July 2021 (© 1,331 - - 1,331 - - 1331 1607 15]uly 2024 to 14 July 2029
RER 202157A158 204F7 A15HE2029%7 A 148
LU Yi 15 July 2021 © 1,198 - B 1,198 - - 1,198 1.607 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027
2 201578158 202F7 158202757 A 148
LIUYi 15 July 2021 (© 1,198 - - 1,198 - - 1,198 1607 15]uly 2023 to 14 July 2028
£l 2021457 A158 202357 A1582208%7F 14A
LIV Yi 15 July 2021 (© 1,597 - - 1,597 - - 1,597 1607 15]uly 2024 to 14 July 2029
2 202157 A 158 20457 A15HZ2029%7A 148
YANG Rongbing 15 July 2021 (© 1,398 - - 1,398 - - 1,398 1607 15July 2022 to 14 July 2027
LIS 202157158 0257 A15H2202757A 148
YANG Rongbing 15 July 2021 (@ 1,398 - - 1,398 - - 1,398 1607 15 July 2023 to 14 July 2028
BRE 201578158 203F7A15HZ2028%57A 148
YANG Rongbing 15 July 2021 (© 1,863 - - 1,863 - - 1,863 1607 15July 2024 to 14 July 2029
BRE 2021578158 2024%7F 1582202957 A14R
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. BRESTE o)
Particulars and movements of the target shares under the Scheme: BREGFHETENRENFERED - (B)
(Continued)
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at  Exercised Lapsed at  Exercised Lapsed at
1 January during during 31 December during during 31 December Exercise  Exercise
Grantee Date of offer Notes 2023 year year 2023 year year 2024 price  period
®2023% ®2023%F 120245
1818 12A318 128318
BRAL ZHAH i KIE  ERTR FRXM A ERTE ERER TR e RS
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Tk ik T i T ik & i
(Adjusted) (Adjusted) (Adjusted) (Adjusted)  (Adjusted) (Adjusted) (Adjusted)  (Adjusted)
(m@%) (183R%) (ma%) (1m8%) (%) (%) (ma%) (m8%)
Others
{1
Other employee 4July 2017 (@ 909 (908) (1) - - - N 0875 4luly2018t0 3 July 2023
HifES 201757848 2018%7A4B%Z2023%7 A3H
Other employee 4 July 2017 (@ 1,041 (314) (1) 726 (726) - - 0875 4July2019t0 3 July 2024
EtES 01757748 201957 A4RF202457A3R
Other employee 4 July 2017 () 2,671 - 2 2,669 (1,244) - 1,425 0.875  41uly 2020 to 3 July 2025
Einlgs 2017467848 2020057 A4B%F202547 A3H
Other employee 15 July 2021 © 8,804 - (160) 8,704 (372) B 8332 1.607 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027
HifEg 2021578158 202%7A158%2027%7 7148
Other employee 15 July 2021 © 8,864 - (160) 8,704 - - 8,704 1607 15July 2023 to 14 July 2028
EtES 2021574158 203F7A158Z2028%7 A 148
Other employee 15 July 2021 © 11,818 - (213) 11,605 - - 11,605 1607 15 July 2024 to 14 July 2029
Einlgs 2021578158 2045715852097 A 148
55,864 (2,686) (537) 52,641 (3,806) - 48,835
Exercisable at the 23,068 34,116 48,835
end of the year
AFIERER
Weighted average 1.50 1.52 157
exercise price
METHITEE
The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in ERENTEE NS AR TR AR
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the AIRAE AL e E L AR -

Company's share capital.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 4 July 2017, the board of directors of the Company approved the initial
grant only to the Group’s employees. The total number of the target shares
under the initial grant was 8,000,000, representing 2% of the then issued
share capital of the Company.

There are three unlocking dates: being the expiry dates of the first anniversary,
second anniversary and third anniversary of the grant date, subject to the
vesting conditions and upon expiry of which, 30%, 30% and 40% of the trust
benefit units granted to each participant shall be unlocked. The lock-up period
is from the grant date to each of the aforesaid unlocking dates, during which
the disposal of the trust benefit units is prohibited.

On 23 July 2018, the board of directors of the Company approved the grant to
a director, YANG Rongbing. The total number of the target shares under this
grant was 3,000,000, representing 0.75% of the then issued share capital of
the Company.

There are three unlocking dates: being the date of grant, the expiry dates of
first anniversary and second anniversary of grant date, subject to the vesting
conditions and upon expiry of which one third of the trust benefit units granted
to participant shall be unlocked. The lock-up period is from the grant date to
each of the aforesaid unlocking dates, during which the disposal of the trust
benefit units is prohibited.

On 15 July 2021, the board of directors of the Company approved the grant to
4 directors and the Group’s employees. The total number of the target shares
under this grant was 36,100,000, representing 8.14% of the then issued share
capital of the Company. The grant of the share options to LI Xiangli, ZHANG
Alying and LIU Yi were approved by the independent non-executive directors on
15 July 2021 and were approved by the shareholders on 29 September 2021.

There are three unlocking dates: being the expiry dates of the first anniversary,
second anniversary and third anniversary of the date of offer, subject to the
vesting conditions and upon expiry of which, 30%, 30% and 40% of the trust
benefit units granted to each participant shall be unlocked. The lock-up period
is from the grant date to each of the aforesaid unlocking dates, during which
the disposal of the trust benefit units is prohibited.
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

29.

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised
equity-settled share option expense of HK$ 1,375,000 (2023: HK$
3,241,000).

The 3,806,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in
the issue of 3,770,000 ordinary shares (including 356,000 shares
purchased before the 2024 Bonus Issue which was adjusted to 392,000
and 3,414,000 shares purchased after the 2024 Bonus Issue) of the
Company and new share capital of HK$ 1,470 (before issue expenses),
as further detailed in note 28 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 48,835,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 48,835,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of HK$18,954
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Company had 48,835,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 8.14% of the Company’s
shares in issue excluding shares held for cancellation as at the date of
this Annual Report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 27 October 2020 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company adopted
a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) to recognise
the contributions by certain persons (“Eligible Persons”), including
employees and directors of companies within the Group, entity in which
the Group holds any equity interests (“Invested Entity”), adviser,
consultant or expert in any area of business or business development
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity and other group or
classes of participants who have contributed or may contribute by way
of joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group, and to give incentives to them
in order to retain them for the continuing operation and development
of the Group, and to attract suitable personnel for further development
of the Group. Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by directors of the Company, the Share Award Scheme is valid and
effective for 10 years from the Adoption Date (the “Award Period”).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the directors of the Company
may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion, select any Eligible
Persons to participate in the Share Award Scheme as selected
participants and determine the shares to be granted, vesting criteria
and conditions, and period for the shares to be vested, subject to the
terms and condition set out in the Share Award Scheme. The directors
of the Company shall not grant further awards if they would result in
the number of the Award Shares (defined as below) under the Share
Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the Adoption Date.

The Company established a trust to purchase shares of the Company
for the benefit of employees and the directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries under the Share Award Scheme (the “Award Shares”)
and pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme to administer
the Share Award Scheme and to purchase and hold the Award Shares
during the Award Period.

Unless the board of directors determines otherwise at its absolute
discretion, an award shall automatically lapse upon (i) the voluntary
resignation or dismissal, or by termination of his employment or
service in accordance with the termination provisions of his contract
of employment or service by the Group otherwise than by reason of
redundancy; or (ii) termination of the selected participant’s employment
or early termination of the contractual engagement with the relevant
member of the Group by reasons of misconduct or otherwise pursuant
to law or employment or engagement contract.

If there occurs an offer by way of takeover, merger, scheme of
arrangement, share repurchase or otherwise, all the outstanding Award
Shares shall immediately vest on the date when such offer becomes or
is declared unconditional or in the case of a scheme of arrangement on
the record date for determining entitlements under such scheme and
such date shall be deemed the vesting date.

If there is an event of change in control of the Company, whether by
way of offer, merger, scheme of arrangement or otherwise, unless
otherwise directed by the board of directors of the Company at its
absolute discretion, all the outstanding Award Shares shall immediately
vest on the date when such change of control event becomes or is
declared unconditional and such date shall be deemed the vesting date.
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

30. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 30. BR1p R B & @)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Trustee purchased an
aggregate of 9,343,000 shares (including 1,760,000 shares purchased
before the 2023 Bonus Issue) of the Company from the market at
a total consideration of approximately HK$14,514,000 (including
directly attributable incremental costs) and the shares purchased at the
weighted average market price of HK$1.55 per share during the year.
No shares were granted to the Eligible Persons pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Trustee purchased an
aggregate of 13,987,000 shares (including 948,000 shares purchased
before the 2024 Bonus Issue) of the Company from the market at
a total consideration of approximately HK$22,167,000 (including
directly attributable incremental costs) and the shares purchased at the
weighted average market price of HK$1.58 per share during the year.
A total of 448,000 shares (493,000 shares after the 2024 Bonus Issue)
were granted to 28 eligible participants, including 28 employees on
19 January 2024 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, representing
approximately 0.08% of the then total number of issued shares. The
estimated fair value of each share granted was HK$1.51, which was
determined using market price of granted date. A total of 1,450,000
shares (1,595,000 shares after the 2024 Bonus Issue) were granted to
6 eligible participants, including 3 executive directors and 3 employees
on 8 April 2024 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, representing
approximately 0.28% of the then total number of issued shares. The
estimated fair value of each share granted was HK$1.45, which was
determined using market price of granted date. The Group recognised
equity-settled share award expense amounting to HK$2,779,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2024.
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31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme") established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in Hong Kong for all qualifying employees of its Hong
Kong incorporated subsidiaries. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributed 5% of the relevant payroll costs to the
MPF Scheme but limited to the cap of HK$1,500 for each employee.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement schemes
organised by the Group is required to make contributions to the
schemes at a percentage that is specified by the local government
authorities.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to those retirement
benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions. The total
expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$31,396,000 (2023:
HK$25,589,000) represents contributions paid or payable to these
schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had
no forfeited contributions under those schemes which may be used by
the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions. There were also
no forfeited contributions available at 31 December 2024 and 2023
under the schemes which may be used by the Group to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

31.
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

32. RESERVES 32. f#f&
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for AEERAEERBAFENFESBRLE
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement FE RIS RMEF 1602 161 B EZREE)
of changes in equity on pages 160 to 161 of the financial statements. KEF -

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. MEBRERERMT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) FEIBREXRSH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- ERN-AEBRAAREEREENEE
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$19,670,000 (2023: THNERBREERTEEGEIERSIE
HK$29,608,000) and HK$19,649,000 (2023: HK$28,140,000), N4> Bl #519,670,000 7T (2023 4F : 7
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for plant and # 29,608,000 7T) & % # 19,649,000 7T
equipment. (2023 4F : 7% 28,140,0007C) °

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RMETHELEZEERH
activities
2024 2024 F

Interest-
Lease bearing Convertible Interest

liabilities  bank loans bonds payables Total
e

HEEE HROEXN THRESF  EARNE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT A%t BETn  BE¥%Txn E%Tx

At 1 January 2024 M202461 K818 61,655 48,346 48,612 184 158,797
Changes from financing cash flows BEBREREE (24,939) 520 (26,271) (1,821) (52,511)
New leases HHE 19,649 - - - 19,649
Equity component of convertible bonds Al EHER S - (6,327) - (6,327)
Loss on liability component of convertible B E A/ # R 558 &

bond on redemption BHrrEE - 1,234 - 1,234
Interest expense FER% 2,868 pX:17] 2,821 8,641
Foreign exchange movement EREE (1,208) (1,028) (255) (1,140) (3,631)
At 31 December 2024 202412 A31H 58,025 47,838 19,945 44 125,852
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

33.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

mERERERMTw®

(b) MEITHELEZEGEREH ()

2023 2023
Interest-
Lease bearing Convertible Interest
liabilities bank loans bonds payables Total
i
HE&E BAER  TARES EfIFI 8 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2023 720231818 49,897 26,420 50,861 585 127,763
Changes from financing cash flows HEREREED (19,128) 22,275 - (3,511) (364)
New leases Mg 28,140 - - - 28,140
Equity component of convertible bonds nHRkEFERDH - - (5,633) - (5,633)
Convertible exercised BAFTERES - - (3,042) - (3,042)
Interest expense HERS 2,995 - 2,627 2,967 8,589
Fair value change AREEED - - 3,787 - 3,787
Foreign exchange movement ER% (249) (349) 12 143 (443)
At31 December 2023 120235128318 61,655 18,346 18,612 184 158,797
The total cash outflow for leases relating to leases that have HERENEERSMEAEDNIB
disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements. RN E 155 E -
34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. EEEH

35.

Details the Group’s pledged assets are included in notes 13, 14, 18 and
21, respectively, to the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023 and 2024, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

35.

BHRASEECEBEENFBD ISR
WERMFE13 14 18K% 21

XEERE

M2023F K 2024F 12 310 @ AN & @1 #E
EREASKEAE -

2024 FEWME FENEBRBZRERAF 275



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

36. COMMITMENTS 36. HiE

The Group had the following contractual commitments at the end of REBERWEARES AT EAREE
the reporting period:

2024 2023
2024 £ 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Contracted, but not provided for: BRT#{B R B
Property, plant and equipment M - REREE 9,227
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any other RIERKR FEBITEEMEMERELD
significant contractual commitments. HHE o
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BB AR S
(a) Compensation of key management personnel of (a) AEBEXEEBASNME
the Group:
2024 2023
2024 £ 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYET T BEFT
Short-term employee benefits EHEEREF 7,164 7,031
Pension scheme contributions RIKEETEIfER 230 230
Equity-settled share compensation expense A B E IR D M E R X 1,662 1,537
Total compensation paid to key management BN EZEERA BN & LHE
personnel 8,798
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments EEk&ERTRAEMEE—FPFHEH
are included in note 8 to the financial statements. N EE R
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost:

Trade and bills receivables

Financial assets included in deposits and
other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(mandatorily designated as such):
Wealth management products

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

M

RBHERATTENEREE
B HREFTIARERRER
AR E MA M EEIER
e RIPITES

BRAABEFABRENEREE
GaflEEmit) :
12 0

BRAABEGABRENEREE

(designated as such upon initial recognition): (MHRBABEEML)
Perpetual equity securities KAREEH
Total FCE
Financial liabilities A 8=Ri
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: BRBHERATENERAE:
Trade payables B 5 5R
Financial liabilities included in other SPAHMENFIBRESIER S
payables and accruals cRARE
Interest-bearing bank loans SFERITER
Convertible bonds AR ES
Total et

2024 FEHRE

38. BRI THNEMTE
REREEEF SEFSBMTANKEE

2024 2023
2024 5 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
221,395 208,841
34,076 27,116
314,805 266,364
1,471

4,697 4,714
574,973 509,006
2024 2023
2024 £ 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
47,558 51,910
27,817 21,091
47,882 48,530
19,945 48,612
143,202 170,143
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 75 S Ak P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHYOF 39. €T ENAABEREAAEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, convertible
bonds, trade payables, financial assets included in deposits and
other receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due from/to subsidiaries, interest-bearing bank loans
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the chief financial officer
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair value of the liability portion of the convertible bonds is
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using an
equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond with consideration of
the Group’s own non-performance risk.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Chinese Mainland and
Hong Kong. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on
the market interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IE e

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

30. e TENARBERLAAEBE
8 & )

ARBEEER
TRHEAAEESRTANAAEEEER:

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group's financial instruments:

BARBENENEE
7202412 A31H

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2024

Fair value measurement using

AREETERA
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
TE R BEATEHE EAFUTEE
miZRE AR WARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(E-E&R) (E=ER) (E=EHR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BETT BETT
Perpetual equity securities KARAEH 4,697 4,697
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12 831 H
Fair value measurement using
AREEHERA
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
P s BAAEHRE EATAEHE
M5 IRE B ABUR B ABUR st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—E#H) (BZEH) (B=ZB#H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BETT BETT BETT
Perpetual equity securities KARAEH 4,714 - - 4,714
Wealth management products BYER 1,471 - - 1,471
Total Bt 6,185 - - 6,185
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHYOF 39. R TEN A ABERAAEBE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) & & (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RABERERE)

Assets measured at fair value: (Continued) RAAREBEIFENEE . (B)
Liabilities measured at fair value. BEARBEFENEE-

As at 31 December 2024 72024%12A31H

Fair value measurement using

AREEBERA

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
TR EXUEE EBEATAUEE
miERE WASE WASE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—E#&R) (B=EHR) (B=ER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BETT

Convertible bonds R ES 19,945 19,945
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FAN - cRMEERESRABAGAABEITEDY
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for FERRF_EH2EALEER  JFEQ
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2023: Nil). AEETESASENE=ER (2023F 1 &) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank loans, convertible bonds, cash and bank balances. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to support for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade and other receivables and trade and other payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments are market
risk (interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's long term debt obligations with a
floating interest rate.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
pledged deposits, lease liabilities and fixed-rate convertible bonds.
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances and variable-rate bank loans. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of interest rates on bank balances and Loan Prime Rate of National
Interbank Funding Centre arising from the Group’s RMB denominated
bank loans. The Group manages its interest rate exposures by assessing
the potential impact arising from any interest rate movements based
on interest rate level and outlook. The management will review the
proportion of borrowings in fixed and floating rates and ensure they are
within reasonable range.

40.

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

MEEREERERBEER

FEENTIESRIABEFERITER
ABRRES ReLRTEH ZFERT
AT ZARIHAEENZE - NEEES
EREMEREERAG  LWEHRHEM
EWHBENANE S M EMEMNTIR  REE
KERAEBZEE -

KEASELRTANEZRR AT SRR (7
K@k - SNERR R EMERRR)  EEE
pRRBDETRAR EFEERALRBERE
FHEBEBRHBOR - ZFREMAMT

R AR

AEEHBNTSNRBEEE R T EEARE
BT BH XA ENRBERAZEER -

AEEEBECERER HEREREE
MEAMMEESABO DR EBENEXER -
SR [ TR B BLF B M R IRITAE AR S B A
ERTEREANRERENXEAR - AF
ENREREMNEXERTIEEPRAEEA
ARBETENRITERMELENRITERR
E2ERTEARRFER LN ERTISHRER
KWHE KB - REBRBENEKFE RIS
AEEMAMNEEPMEENEELE A
EEANERR - EEEKEHEE LFEH
MEOERLP - WHEREEREZHEN -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES HEEREEEEREE @

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being
undertaken globally, including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates (“IBORs"”) with alternative nearly risk-free rates. The
Group is closely monitoring the market and managing the transition to
new benchmark interest rates, including announcements made by the
relevant IBOR regulators.

At 31 December 2024, approximately 68% (2023: 100%) of the
Group's interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at floating rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in Hong Kong dollar interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings) and the Group'’s equity.

T =2 2 B (48)

BRIZEEY 2N EREEETRAMNR
2 eEMAETRITBRERERN K (TRT
1 B 3 47 5 R R |) B4 /5 H 3 1 M LR 1)
ME - ANEBEERVEEMZREEZBE
EMEENETNBER  SREABRTHERE
REEERBELORE -

M2024F 12 A31H  KEBE#68% (2023
F 1 100%) WET BfE R AFEFIERGT 2 -

T%ﬁlJﬂ? TEMEREMEERFTIENE)

BRSO TR A (L;@;T/¥EJJ7F‘J$1E
TAE’J%’E) AREEREEBEN XA HR
&I E B BURIE DT o

Increase
Increase /(decrease) Increase
/(decrease) in profit /(decrease)
in basis points before tax in equity*
2E A0 F R
®w,082) #inS0RS)  #®im R *
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
2024 20244
Hong Kong dollar ks 1% 325 274
2023 20234
Hong Kong dollar T 1% 483 405
* Excluding retained profits * T EFEREFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has currency exposures mainly from its cash and cash
equivalents and convertible bonds denominated in HK$ and United
States dollars. As at 31 December 2024, the Group's cash and cash
equivalents denominated in currencies other than functional currency
of the relevant group entities were equivalent to HK$990,000 (2023:
HK$36,758,000).

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in the functional currency exchange rate by 5%, with all other
variables held constant, on the Group’s profit after tax:

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

0. IBEREEEEREKE @

SN ELBR

AEBFZRRS RS EEYRATBR
EHLAEE RETFEMEBRINERR - ©®
2024F 12 A31H - ARENHBEEEED
BEEBUIINNEBTENRE R SEEY
/78 990,000 7T (2023 4F © 7 % 36,758,000
JT) e

ANEE B AT EINE SR BEK o AT - A
EEEESERIERR YHRER2E
ZREHPERIMNERR ©

TRIRTEMBEMEERFTENBER
T AEEREFNBEHDEEEEXS%OA
PR L E B R BRE DA -

2024 2024 F
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) increase
in foreign in profit
exchange rate after tax
SN BE = BT H
®mCRL) OR2), /#Em
HK$°000
BT T
If HK$ weakens against United States dollars i B R E TR E (€2))
If HK$ strengthens against United States dollars WS HE T HE 34
2023 20234
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) increase
in foreign in profit
exchange rate after tax
SME [ % i 12 )8
2o CRd)  CRd), /186
HK$'000
BT
If HK$ weakens against United States dollars B8 HETRE 5% 212)
If HK$ strengthens against United States dollars fin W 5T HHE (5%) 212
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES HEEREEEEREE @

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default on
their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group.
The Group's credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, pledged deposits and bank balances. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.

Trade and bills receivables arising from contracts with customers

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy parties.
Receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis and the
Group's exposure to credit risk is not significant. The credit quality of
customers is assessed after taking into account the customers’ financial
position and past experience with the customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
is mainly in the PRC and Singapore, which accounted for 44% and
47% (2023: 44% and 48%) of the total trade and bills receivables
respectively as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. As at 31 December
2024, the Group had concentration of credit risk, as 9% (2023: 8%) of
its total trade and bills receivables were due from its largest customer
and 29% (2023: 29%) of its total trade and bills receivables were
due from its five largest customers respectively. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit approvals.

Except for trade and bills receivables which are assessed individually,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model on trade
balances on a collective basis by using a provision matrix. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the end of reporting
period about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables, the directors make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of deposits and other
receivables based on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and/or qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information. The directors believe
that there are no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based on
12-month ECLs. For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
significant allowance for credit losses was recognised.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the
following categories.

Internal credit rating Description

RS E R Hut

Normal The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts

EH HF 7 EL R RAR &I EfE R

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates

but usually settle in full
£ BEBEALERIHBARER
LL%iﬁﬁﬁ

S

BE
m 7.

Doubtful There was an increase in credit risk since
initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

A &t RN FL S INEBPIIG E R -

EERR B VIATERIZIEM

Credit-impaired There is evidence indicating

the asset is credit-impaired

SERE ERBERTEECFEERE

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

BBREREERE

FERE &)

B& R H M EWRIE

FhAE & N H Al UK
B BELSRUARAIEEERES R

MATEMEEER /RELEH  HRE RE
At JRE S R TR A RJ U [ 14 A 1T E A 8 B A

EERABAVBRERNRZEZENEER
AEEER 1218 A ESE
BEAEERAE - HE2024F % 2023412 A
BERRERSEBREE-

B I 4 BB & SR AN -

NHIEFE -

AEBEZ AR EER

AR -

Trade and bills

2R BUR (#)

Hif &

B RF AR R 5 B DA T 2R R

receivables Other financial assets
B 5 EWRE HihEmEE
REWERE
Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECLs
not credit-impaired
HEHEEBL — NREABEHEERK
EEERE
Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECLs
not credit-impaired
HEHREEBL — NREABEHEERBRX
EEERE
Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

not credit-impaired

not credit-impaired

THEAEEIEL. — 2HEHEERX—
SEEERIE FEERE

Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired

2HIFEMEERLS — 2HBEHEERKL —
EERE =ERAE

2024 EHHE TEOBSBBIERBERAR

CEEREBE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BIEEREEEERBE®
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&)

Pledged deposits and bank balances EEAERRBITEL

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group's pledged deposits R2024F & 2023F 12 A31H AEENE
and bank balances are mainly placed with reputable banks which are BERFRRBROIGEREEZTFHRRNEERTN
all high-credit-quality financial institutions, and therefore the Group'’s RIT(HAREELEENSREE) Bt R
credit risk on liquid funds is limited. SEMRDHESEERBRABR -

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BERBREFARE

The table below shows the credit quality by reference to internal credit TRETN2024F 12 A3MENRELAER
rating and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s SEBCR (ZZ2ENBARBHER - BRIEEAM
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless EEEEBEMNHBZKANE N TR ES)
other information is available without undue cost or effort, and year- WEEEX (K2ZRNBEETR KESE
end staging classification as at 31 December 2024. The amounts ERBUAKRFRERSB 27 e8RS
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. A ENREEE -

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
12 A FEH 2SN
FEBRX FERX

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach

F1MEER F2MER EIRR  BLEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr EB¥Trn E¥Tr B¥Tr B¥Tx

2024 20245
Trade and bills receivables* B S EUWGRIA R W& * 233,750 233,750
Financial assets included in FTAES R EME

deposits and other receivables  WFEIEMN S RIEE

— Normal** —IEFE** 34,536 34,536
Cash and bank balances e RRITHEH

— Not yet past due — 8 HY 308,448 308,448
Total HBET 342,984 233,750 576,734
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% S a P =

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BIEEREEEERBE®
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued) FEERRE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BERBREFARE (8)
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
1218 B & Z TR H
EEBRX EEERX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach

SR 2R BIER BEIA
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ABTT AT  A%Tr  E%TT  EETE

2023 2023%F
Trade and bills receivables* B 5 EWRIE R B 1 * - - - 218,424 218,424
Financial assets included in StARS REAME
deposits and other receivables ~ WFIBMEREE
— Normal** — 1 ** 27,588 - - - 27,588
Cash and bank balances B RRITHEER
— Not yet past due — 3 4580 HR 266,864 - - - 266,864
Total #Et 294,452 - - 218,424 512,876
* For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * RAEEERREGCTENE S ERER
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed BRERMNE @ ERBEERENER TRER
in note 18 to the financial statements. TEHRARMIFE18
**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other % B AEMARIE HMERREREHNEENS
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not MEETVESH BHEENKRASHEEST
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a REREEERBAREN  LEEERMER
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit [E#] -TBH eHMEENEEEZHRAA
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. A
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BIEEREEEERBE®

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and bills receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in note 18 to
the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of borrowings and debts and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating-rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from existing interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

31 December 2024

Trade payables EHENTE

Financial liabiities included in other SAEMERTER
payables and accruals EAEEMERER

Interest-bearing bank loans HERIER

Lease liabilities HEBE

Convertible bonds MhkES

Repayable
on demand
or within
one year

BREXRE
A-FM
HKS'000
BBTR

47,558

21,817
48,466
2,12

1,498

147,451

31 December 2023

PR AL

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

40. BIEEREEEERBE @

RBESRR (&)
2024128318

In the third to Total
In the fifth years, Over undiscounted Carrying

second year inclusive five years cash flow amount
E-EERF
(B 33
EoF HRWE) BBIE HOREEE Kl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI

47,558 47,558
- - 21,817 21,817
- - 48,466 47,882

16,096 21,048 63,087 58,025
1,498 22,963 25,959 19,945

17,59 44,01 3,831 212,887 201,227

202312 A31H

Repayable
on demand In the third to Total
or within In the fifth years, Over  undiscounted Carrying
one year second year inclusive five years cash flow amount
-ZZLF
REKEER (B8 AHR
IR F2E BREME) BRRIE RENELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AETT AETT AEFT BT BETT
Trade payables EHENTE 51910 - - - 51,910 51,910
Financial liabiities included in other STAEMERTER
payables and accruals ERRMERAR 21,091 - - - 21,091 21,091
Interest-bearing bank loans HERITER 49,154 - - - 49,154 48,530
Lease liabilities HERE 19,863 17,075 2380 733% 68,114 61,655
Convertible bonds whkES 52,556 - - - 52,55 48,612
194,574 17,075 23,812 7334 242,825 231,798
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BIEEREEEERBE®

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its financial
instruments measured at FVTPL. For the investments in perpetual equity
securities measured at FVTPL, the Group has appointed a special team
to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk at the reporting date. For sensitivity analysis of
perpetual equity securities with fair value measurement categorised
within Level 1, the sensitivity rate is increased to 5% in the current year
as a result of the volatile financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 5% (2023:
5%) higher/lower, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2024 would have increased/decreased by HK$ 235,000 (2023: HK$
236,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by capital plus net debt. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
gearing ratio below 70%. Net debt includes trade payables, other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans, and convertible
bonds, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The gearing ratio at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

RS ERAR Y AE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

BERBEEEEEREIE®

EXEREE @)

AEERERELEEZFERN BRLEXER
BEFEBRUNERNMEBEFENEM - K
SEHOBRABBEARBLERERTO% -
BEFEERESRNRE EMENFR
KFEFTER - St ERITEFAR AT BB ES
BRASRBASEBY BEAEARAHEEA
FEfh R - NIEHRERLEMT

2024 2023

2024 F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

47,558 51,910
79,992 71,155
LyjR:1:7 48,530
19,945 48,612
(267,235) (227,250)

(71,858) (7,043)
468,503 424,501

Trade payables B 5N RIE

Other payables and accruals EoAth 5B K EET IR B
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER
Convertible bonds AR EH

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BRekREEED
Net surplus BERFR

Equity attributable to owners of the Company RATVHE ANEGER
Capital and net debt BERRBETE

Gearing ratio TEAR L &

396,645 417,458

Note: Gearing ratio is zero when the amount of cash and cash equivalents is higher
than gross debt (2023: Zero).

Mizk: ERESRELEEVLELNABBER - 82
bR AT (20234F : ) ©
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41.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company repurchased
a total of 6,504,000 of its ordinary shares (the “Shares”) on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$12,982,560 (exclude
expenses) (HK$13,030,026 include expense). All these repurchased
Shares were cancelled subsequently after the year end date.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
further repurchased 4,180,000 of its Shares on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$9,699,040 (exclude
expenses). Out of those repurchased Shares, 2,404,000 Shares of
approximately HK$5,457,040 (exclude expenses) were cancelled up to
the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other significant events after
the reporting period up to the date of this report.
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42. EEEAREEREZNII>ES
Ff &8 2 7]
Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd. ([ Leon Overseas |) &

HBEBERFZERERNMERRFBNT

42. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd. (“Leon Overseas”) and its
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests are set out
below:

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Current assets MENVE E 328,863 278,200
Non-current assets FERBEE 107,660 100,925
Current liabilities RN (122,897) (124,580)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (15,391) (28,578)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RARHEB ANEGER 144,508 109,728
Non-controlling interests of Leon Overseas Leon Overseas FE4% f% 4 25 138,841 105,424
Non-controlling interests of Leon Overseas’ Leon Overseas [ /& 2 71 89
subsidiaries e 5o 14,886 10,815
Revenue = 697,531 589,218
Expenses X (FARED) (507,652)
Profit for the year FRFE 76,345 81,566
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RNATHEER ANEETRE 36,860 38,899
Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests of ~ Leon Overseas 3F4% A% 12 25 Ji& 5 &1 B
Leon Overseas 35,414 37,374
Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests of ~ Leon Overseas [ /& 2 &) #) FE#5 B%
Leon Overseas’ subsidiaries E 2 B AR B 4,071 5,293
Profit for the year F R FE 76,345 81,566

2024 FEHRE

FE N EBRBIERERAR 293



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

43. A2 E BN &R

RREMREBEAR AU BAHRROERINT -

2024
2024 F
HK$'000
BT T

45,517

45,517

39,104

101,288

19,945

19,945

81,343

233
81,110

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN &
Investment in subsidiaries KEKB AR
Amount due from subsidiaries [ CiENE e
Right-of-use assets TREEE

Total non-current assets IEMBEEREAE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE

Other receivables H b fE W 5k 8
Amount due from subsidiaries JE YR BB A B FA
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEED
Total current assets MEBEERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Other payables H At & < 5RIE
Convertible bonds AR ESH

Lease liabilities HERE

Total current liabilities mEAERRE
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE (8fE) FE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHABERRBERE
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Convertible bonds AR E

Total non-current liabilities JEREBEBE
Net assets BEFE

EQUITY R

Share capital [N

Reserves ]

Total equity AR

81,343

294 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited

Annual Report 2024

2023

2023 %
HK$'000
BT

62,608
128,963
490

192,062

832
31,311
2,241

34,384

52,096
48,612
503

101,211

(66,827)

125,235

210
125,025

125,235
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43. AR BB BEMR R T @)

COMPANY (Continued)
A summary of the Company'’s reserve is as follows: KARREEREDT
Share- Shares
based held for Shares  Convertible ~ Exchange
Capital compensation  share award heldfor ~ bondequity  fluctuation Retained
reserve reserve scheme  cancellation reserve reserve profits Total
HRORER REREFE ke TRRE: EX
EARE  NWERE  FRRG  SERE  BEEE  RERE  RENE ait
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETn  RETr BETT BETn BgTn REfn BETn BETR
At 1 January 2023 RABEIA1A 293,770 15,404 (4473) - - (5,698) (174542) 124461
Profit and total comprehensive oss EmEHR2ERE
for the year k] - - - - - 387 21610 28,057
2022 final dividend declared BERNERERS - - - - - - (13,085) (13,085)
2023 interim dividend declared BERNBERERS - - - - - - (14,270) (14.270)
Equity-settled shares compensation expense MR EEMRHBERY - 3241 - - - - - 3241
Shares purchased for ashare award scheme AR (3 %3 1€ E 2 17 - - (14514) . - - - (14,514)
Change of terms of convertble bonds TRREFERED - - - - 5633 - - 5633
Transfer of convertible bonds ThREsEE 3394 - - - (353) - - 3041
Bonusissue of shares BAAR 80,130 - - - - - (80,149) (19
Issue of shares upon exercise of FBREREARG
share options 3391 (911) - - - - - 2480
At 31 December 2023 RABENA3A 380,685 17,734 (18.987) - 5280 (5311) (254,376) 125,025
Loss and total comprehensive EhBRR2EER
loss for the year a% (13,875) (13,739)
2023 final dividend declared BERABERHRE (9,189) (9,189)

Equity-settled shares compensation expense
Shares purchased for a share award scheme
Award shares vested
Transfer of convertible bonds
Bonus issue of shares
Shares purchased for cancellation
Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options
Redemption of convertible bonds

HEREENRIBERAR
L UESRE EEv )
ERRZARD
TARERER

BB

BORGEH
fRERER SR

BOTARES

At 31 December 2024

RAUENEIA

(22,167)
2119

4,991 (1241)
1357 =

461,806 17,868

(38,375)

(13,030)

(13,030)
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44. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 44. #it EEZE S BHEK

STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised FEVMBMREEEFN2025F3 A31 Bt
for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2025. IR E o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
20204 20214 2022 F 20234 2024 FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT BT T BT T BT T
Revenue 'ON 649,904 818,828 944,014 1,118,514 1,263,129
Profit before tax Ci-uplbE 99,748 112,761 136,341 157,212 162,110
Income tax expense Fris i = (19,752) (23,087) (31,513) (35,049) (36,070)
Profit for the year FRFE 79,996 89,674 104,828 122,163 126,040
Profit attributable to: DT ZIEEMLFE :
Owners of the Company ZA/NCIE ZEN 52,455 49,836 69,397 80,048 82,725
Non-controlling interests IR E R 27,541 39,838 35,431 42,115 43,315
As at 31 December
®W12A31H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
20204 20214 2022 F 20234 2024 FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ok e BT T BT T BEET T BT T
Total assets EEHAE 522,241 666,131 760,088 894,535 955,612
Total liabilities Rk 198,323 239,532 273,063 325,257 301,510
Equity attributable to owners AR AIHER A
of the Company FE(RRE = 297,567 347,638 378,268 424,501 468,503
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DEFINITIONS
B=

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following RAFERER B ESBHIEN > THFAEE

expressions shall have the following meanings.

“2021 Bonus Issue”

[2021 FATRR 31T ]

“2022 Bonus Issue”

[2022 FATRR 317 ]

“2023 Bonus Issue”

[2023 FALA 31T

"2024 Bonus Issue”

[2024 FATR% 2517 ]

"AGM(s)"

(ERBFRE]

“Articles”
[EF2408)]

" Audit Committee”
[(FEZZEZ]

“Board”
=34

"CEO"
[TTE A

"CG Code”
[{EE/RFAD]

“China” or “PRC" or “Mainland China”

[RE S ER

“Company”, “our Company”,
“Group”, “our Group”,
“China Leon”, “we"” or “us”

[RRAF] - [AREE] -
[0 sk [ 5]

BUATEE -

The bonus issue made on the basis of one (1) bonus share for every ten (10) existing
Shares in issue held on the record date, i.e. 5 July 2021, by the qualifying Shareholders
BIEGERRRENCHEBH (BI2021F7A58) BHETI0RABEBEITRG E
T— () RAL AR ) B ZE T T RO AL AR 3277

The bonus issue made on the basis of one (1) bonus share for every ten (10) existing
Shares in issue held on the record date, i.e. 4 July 2022, by the qualifying Shareholders
BRAEBRKRENCEBEH (202267 A4B8) BHEBETIORREEEHITRNE
T— () RAL AR ) BT RO AL AR 32 1T

The bonus issue made on the basis of one (1) bonus share for every ten (10) existing
Shares in issue held on the record date, i.e. 4 July 2023, by the qualifying Shareholders
BIEGERRRNCHEBH (A12023F7A4R) BHETORABEEBEITRG E
T— () RAL IR B B I TV AL AR 31T

The bonus issue made on the basis of one (1) bonus share for every ten (10) existing

Shares in issue held on the record date, i.e. 2 July 2024, by the qualifying Shareholders.

?a%fz BERRERCESEE (A1202457A2R) 8/ B T(100RBED BTN #
T— (N IRAT PR My A 1T RO AT AR B 7T

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

BARRNBRRBFRE

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time

BARBTRESRNBEMERAE

the audit committee of the Company

BEARRINEZEZES

the board of Directors of the Company
BARANESS

chief executive officer of the Company

AR R TTIRAEE

the “Corporate Governance Code” set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

ERCETRADM S FAENCEEERTRD

the People’s Republic of China
FEREARATE

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (/B 77 8 #: 52 15 J& B BR 22 1), an exempted
company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 29
July 2015 and except where the context indicated otherwise its subsidiaries
ERREDERBIERERAT - —KR2015F7 A298RIER SRS EZ2FMAZ
WERREREER ﬂ&(ﬁ%i%%ﬁﬁﬁ%‘é@l\)ﬁﬁ#%@ﬂ
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“Controlling Shareholders”

[ 2R AR

“Director(s)”

[E%]

"ESG”
[RIR - -HahEA]

“HKS"
8% ]

“Listing Rules”
[{EmRAD]
“Model Code”
[P A

“Nomination Committee”

[fR2ZE®

"“Prospectus”

[ ER]

“Remuneration Committee

[FMEEE]

"RMB”
AR

“SFO"

[(FE 7 R HE &P
“Share(s)”

(Rt

“Share Award Scheme”

[ B fn 22 Bh =t &)

DEFINITIONS
B=

Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi, Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited, Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited and Hawk Flying Investment Holding
Limited
HERMEE KRB ELZ 1+ - ZIB % £ - Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited ~ Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited } Hawk Flying Investment Holding
Limited

the director(s) of the Company
EARRRIES

Environmental, Social and Governance
RE g RESR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREBEEES &%

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended from
time to time)
(R PrRE S ER A (B ARERT)

the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
BAETRADMEECIFAE 2 EMBEITAEFETEF R ZHNEETAD

the nomination committee of the Company

BEARRMREEZES

the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2016
BARRFIHEA2016566 A29 HWER =R

the remuneration committee of the Company

BARRNHMEZE S

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

BHENEEEE AR

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as

amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEBEOIE ST BB HFRBERDD - EPRHERT » #FRSUA R KB

ordinary share(s) of par value US$0.00005 each in the issued share capital of our
Company

ARG E BT AN & IR HE {8 0.00005 2 T 1) A%

the share award scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 27 October 2020
HHEEEMN 20204 10 A 27 BiL/&E RERMHAR 5 2B 52

2024 EHHE TEOBSBBIERBERAR
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DEFINITIONS
B=

“Share Option Scheme”
[BE A=t 3]

“Shareholder(s)”
[A% 5 ]

"“Stock Exchange”
[k 32 P |

”year”

[REE]

nop
[%)]

the share option scheme approved and adopted by the Company at the annual general
meeting held on 5 May 2017
FEARRFR2017F5 A5 BRITHRRAF RS LH4E RIRAHBARE 2

holder(s) of the Shares
BRHIEE A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
HEBBMAERGMARRAA

from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
EE2024F 1 A1 HE2024F 12 A31H

per cent.
BB
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